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Cautionary Language Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ("Form 10-Q") contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management's expectations as of the
filing date of this report with the SEC. Statements that are not historical facts are hereby identified as forward-looking statements. In addition, words such as
"estimate," "anticipate," "project," "plan," "intend," "believe," "expect," "likely," "predicted," forms of these words and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Such statements include plans, projections and estimates contained in "Part I—Item 2. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Part I—Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" herein. Such
forward-looking statements include (1) expectations regarding anticipated growth in the wireless communication industry, carriers' investments in their
networks, new tenant additions, cancellations of customer contracts, including the impact of the iDEN network decommissioning, customer consolidation or
ownership changes, and demand for our towers and small cell networks, (2) availability of cash flows and liquidity for, and plans regarding, future
discretionary investments including capital expenditures, (3) anticipated growth in our future revenues, margins, Adjusted EBITDA and operating cash flows,
(4) expectations regarding the credit markets, our availability and cost of capital, and our ability to service our debt and comply with debt covenants, (5) our
intention to convert to a real estate investment trust ("REIT"), and the timing and impact thereof on our financial statements and our expected dividend policy,
(6) the potential advantages, benefits and impact of, and opportunities created by, converting to a REIT, (7) our intention to pursue certain steps and corporate
actions in connection with our potential REIT conversion, including our future inclusion of REIT-related ownership limitations and transfer restrictions
related to our capital stock, (8) our expected dividend policy and the timing and the amount and growth of any dividends, (9) timing of the Proposed AT&T
Transaction (as defined below) and (10) financing and funding of the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

Such forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including prevailing market conditions, risk factors described
under "Part II—Item 1A. Risk Factors" herein and in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2012 ("2012 Form 10-K") and other factors. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect,
actual results may vary materially from those expected. As used herein, the term "including," and any variation of thereof, means "including without
limitation." The use of the word "or" herein is not exclusive.
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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(In thousands of dollars, except share amounts)

 

September 30, 
2013  

December 31, 
2012

 (Unaudited)   
ASSETS    

Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 218,649  $ 441,364

Restricted cash 157,699  575,938

Receivables, net 236,211  192,833

Prepaid expenses 117,866  103,808

Deferred income tax assets 189,878  193,420

Other current assets 79,500  73,961

Total current assets 999,803  1,581,324

Deferred site rental receivables, net 1,031,966  864,819

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $4,611,200 and $4,249,183, respectively 6,904,346  6,917,531

Goodwill 3,140,308  3,119,957

Other intangible assets, net 2,821,812  2,941,696

Deferred income tax assets 21,311  33,914

Long-term prepaid rent, deferred financing costs and other assets, net 648,026  629,468

Total assets $ 15,567,572  $ 16,088,709

    
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    

Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable $ 119,689  $ 115,999

Accrued interest 64,571  52,592

Deferred revenues 248,807  241,127

Other accrued liabilities 131,273  140,084

Current maturities of debt and other obligations 115,378  688,056

Total current liabilities 679,718  1,237,858

Debt and other long-term obligations 10,660,076  10,923,186

Deferred income tax liabilities 153,967  65,830

Below-market tenant leases, deferred ground lease payable and other liabilities 1,076,521  910,571

Total liabilities 12,570,282  13,137,445

Commitments and contingencies (note 8)  

CCIC stockholders' equity:    
Common stock, $.01 par value; 600,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding: September 30, 2013—292,675,430 and

December 31, 2012—293,164,786 2,927  2,932

Additional paid-in capital 5,553,717  5,623,595

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (61,339)  (61,791)

Accumulated deficit (2,512,333)  (2,625,990)

Total CCIC stockholders' equity 2,982,972  2,938,746

Noncontrolling interest 14,318  12,518

Total equity 2,997,290  2,951,264

Total liabilities and equity $ 15,567,572  $ 16,088,709

 
See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Unaudited)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

 
Three Months Ended September 30,

2013  
Nine Months Ended September 30,

2013

 2013  2012  2013  2012

Net revenues:        

Site rental $ 620,766  $ 538,761  $ 1,853,030  $ 1,553,878

Network services and other 128,211  82,576  370,935  204,715

Net revenues 748,977  621,337  2,223,965  1,758,593

Operating expenses:        

Costs of operations(a):        

Site rental 181,966  135,314  538,587  389,756

Network services and other 81,998  50,029  229,574  121,812

General and administrative 58,504  55,862  171,539  153,941

Asset write-down charges 3,893  1,560  10,705  8,250

Acquisition and integration costs 4,369  2,937  13,186  12,112

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 195,408  154,867  572,518  446,749

Total operating expenses 526,138  400,569  1,536,109  1,132,620

Operating income (loss) 222,839  220,768  687,856  625,973

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs (142,016)  (144,949)  (446,641)  (427,361)

Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations (1)  —  (36,487)  (14,586)

Interest income 236  291  861  1,027

Other income (expense) (631)  (632)  (753)  (3,958)

Income (loss) before income taxes 80,427  75,478  204,836  181,095

Benefit (provision) for income taxes (33,959)  (32,300)  (88,254)  29,437

Net income (loss) 46,468  43,178  116,582  210,532

Less: Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest 632  1,133  2,925  2,443

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders 45,836  42,045  113,657  208,089

Dividends on preferred stock —  —  —  (2,629)

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders after deduction of dividends on preferred stock $ 45,836  $ 42,045  $ 113,657  $ 205,460

Net income (loss) $ 46,468  $ 43,178  $ 116,582  $ 210,532

Other comprehensive income (loss):        

Interest rate swaps, net of taxes of $5,678, $5,705, $17,054, and $11,415, respectively:        
Amounts reclassified into "interest expense and amortization deferred financing costs", net of

taxes (see note 4) 10,544  10,594  31,671  37,541

Foreign currency translation adjustments 5,874  6,876  (32,344)  7,120

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 16,418  17,470  (673)  44,661

Comprehensive income (loss) 62,886  60,648  115,909  255,193

Less: Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest 898  1,171  1,800  1,741

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders $ 61,988  $ 59,477  $ 114,109  $ 253,452
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, after deduction of dividends on

preferred stock, per common share:        

Basic $ 0.16  $ 0.14  $ 0.39  $ 0.71

Diluted $ 0.16  $ 0.14  $ 0.39  $ 0.71

Weighted-average common shares outstanding (in thousands):        

Basic 290,372  290,762  290,900  288,775

Diluted 291,378  292,098  292,043  290,527
________________
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

(In thousands of dollars)

 

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

 2013  2012

Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net income (loss) $ 116,582  $ 210,532

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:    
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 572,518  446,749

Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations 36,487  14,586

Amortization of deferred financing costs and other non-cash interest 78,241  74,269

Stock-based compensation expense 29,334  33,573

Asset write-down charges 10,705  8,250

Deferred income tax benefit (provision) 80,999  (35,140)

Other adjustments 2,167  13

Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of acquisitions:    
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest 11,979  (11,525)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 8,279  (494)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues, deferred ground lease payables, other accrued liabilities and
     other liabilities 127,463  31,230

Decrease (increase) in receivables (45,689)  (44,213)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses, deferred site rental receivables, long-term prepaid rent,
     restricted cash and other assets (190,199)  (203,372)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 838,866  524,458

Cash flows from investing activities:    

Payments for acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (55,131)  (1,236,238)

Capital expenditures (385,482)  (283,386)

Other investing activities, net 7,601  1,244

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (433,012)  (1,518,380)

Cash flows from financing activities:    
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 830,941  2,100,000

Proceeds from issuance of capital stock —  239

Principal payments on debt and other long-term obligations (77,986)  (59,579)

Purchases and redemptions of long-term debt (675,481)  (699,486)

Purchases of capital stock (99,217)  (35,984)

Borrowings under revolving credit facility 94,000  —

Payments under revolving credit facility (1,092,000)  (251,000)

Payments for financing costs (20,753)  (40,255)

Net (increase) decrease in restricted cash 415,498  19,533

Dividends on preferred stock —  (2,481)

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities (624,998)  1,030,987

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (3,571)  1,718

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (222,715)  38,783

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 441,364  80,120

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 218,649  $ 118,903

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND EQUITY

(In thousands of dollars, except share amounts) (Unaudited)

     CCIC Stockholders     

 
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock    AOCI       

 Shares  Amount  Shares  ($.01 Par)  
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Derivative
Instruments,

net of tax  
Accumulated

Deficit  
Noncontrolling

Interest  Total

Balance, July 1, 2013 —  $ —  292,685,462  $ 2,927  $5,544,205  $ 65,298  $ (142,789)  $ (2,558,169)  $ 13,420  $2,924,892
Stock-based compensation

related activity, net of
forfeitures —  —  (5,001)  —  9,862  —  —  —  —  9,862

Purchases and retirement of
capital stock —  —  (5,031)  —  (350)  —  —  —  —  (350)

Other comprehensive income
(loss)(a) —  —  —  —  —  5,608  10,544  —  266  16,418

Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  45,836  632  46,468

Balance, September 30, 2013 —  $ —  292,675,430  $ 2,927  $5,553,717  $ 70,906  $ (132,245)  $ (2,512,333)  $ 14,318  $2,997,290

     CCIC Stockholders       

 
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock    AOCI       

 Shares  Amount  Shares  ($.01 Par)  
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Derivative
Instruments,

net of tax  
Accumulated

Deficit  
Noncontrolling

Interest  Total

Balance, July 1, 2012 —  $ —  293,038,013  $ 2,930  $5,599,106  $ 96,028  $ (185,093)  $ (2,648,530)  $ 1,557  $2,865,998
Stock-based compensation

related activity, net of
forfeitures —  —  127,860  2  16,468  —  —  —  —  16,470

Purchases and retirement of
capital stock —  —  (4,804)  —  (311)  —  —  —  —  (311)

Other comprehensive income
(loss)(a) —  —  —  —  —  6,838  10,594  —  38  17,470
Disposition of noncontrolling
interest —  —  —  —  —  —    —  —  —

Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  —  —  —  42,045  1,133  43,178

Balance, September 30, 2012 —  $ —  293,161,069  $ 2,932  $5,615,263  $ 102,866  $ (174,499)  $ (2,606,485)  $ 2,728  $2,942,805
___________________________
(a) See the statement of operations and other comprehensive income (loss) for the components of "other comprehensive income (loss)" and note 4 with respect to the reclassification adjustment.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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     CCIC Stockholders     

 
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock    AOCI       

 Shares  Amount  Shares  ($.01 Par)  
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Derivative
Instruments,

net of tax  
Accumulated

Deficit  
Noncontrolling

Interest  Total

Balance, January 1, 2013 —  $ —  293,164,786 $ 2,932 $5,623,595 $ 102,125 $ (163,916) $ (2,625,990) $ 12,518  $2,951,264
Stock-based compensation

related activity, net of
forfeitures —  —  936,946  9  29,325 — — — —  29,334

Purchases and retirement of
capital stock —  —  (1,426,302)  (14)  (99,203) — — — —  (99,217)

Other comprehensive income
(loss)(a) —  —  —  —  — (31,219) 31,671 — (1,125)  (673)

Net income (loss) —  —  —  —  — — — 113,657 2,925  116,582

Balance, September 30, 2013 —  $ —  292,675,430  $ 2,927  $5,553,717  $ 70,906  $ (132,245)  $ (2,512,333)  $ 14,318  $2,997,290

     CCIC Stockholders       

 
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock  Common Stock    AOCI       

 Shares  Amount  Shares  ($.01 Par)  
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustments  

Derivative
Instruments,

net of tax  
Accumulated

Deficit  
Noncontrolling

Interest  Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 6,111,000  $ 305,032  284,449,372  $ 2,844  $5,312,342  $ 95,044  $ (212,040)  $ (2,811,945)  $ 619  $2,386,864
Stock-based compensation

related activity, net of
forfeitures —  —  1,124,969  12  33,801  — — — —  33,813

Purchases and retirement of
capital stock —  — (699,177) (7) (35,977) — — — —  (35,984)

Conversion of redeemable
preferred stock into common
stock (6,111,000)  (305,180) 8,285,905 83 305,097 — — — —  305,180

Other comprehensive income
(loss)(a) —  — — — — 7,822 37,541 — (702)  44,661
Dividends on preferred stock

and amortization of issue
costs —  148 — — — — — (2,629) —  (2,629)

Disposition of noncontrolling
interest —  — — — — — — — 368  368

Net income (loss) —  — — — — — — 208,089 2,443  210,532

Balance, September 30, 2012 —  $ —  293,161,069  $ 2,932  $5,615,263  $ 102,866  $ (174,499)  $ (2,606,485)  $ 2,728  $2,942,805
___________________________
(a) See the statement of operations and other comprehensive income (loss) for the components of "other comprehensive income (loss)" and note 4 with respect to the reclassification adjustment.

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

1. General

The information contained in the following notes to the consolidated financial statements is condensed from that which would appear in the annual
consolidated financial statements; accordingly, the consolidated financial statements included herein should be reviewed in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, and related notes thereto, included in the 2012 Form 10-K filed by Crown Castle
International Corp. ("CCIC") with the SEC. All references to the "Company" include CCIC and its subsidiary companies unless otherwise indicated or the
context indicates otherwise.

The Company owns, operates and leases shared wireless infrastructure, including: (1) towers, (2) DAS, a type of small cell network, and (3) third party
land interests. The Company conducts operations through subsidiaries of CCOC, including (1) certain subsidiaries which operate wireless infrastructure
portfolios in the United States, including Puerto Rico ("U.S." or "CCUSA") and (2) a 77.6% owned subsidiary that operates towers in Australia (referred to as
"CCAL"). The Company's core business is providing access, including space or capacity, to (1) its approximately 31,600 towers (of which approximately
29,900 towers are in CCUSA and approximately 1,700 towers are in CCAL) and, to a lesser extent, to (2) its small cell networks, and (3) third party land
interests, to wireless communication companies via long-term contracts in various forms. As further discussed in the 2012 Form 10-K, approximately 12,700
of the Company's towers are leased or operated under master leases and subleases. See also note 13 for a description of the Proposed AT&T Transaction (as
defined below).

As part of CCUSA's efforts to provide comprehensive wireless infrastructure solutions, it offers certain network services relating to its wireless
infrastructure, consisting of (1) customer equipment installation and subsequent augmentation (collectively, "installation services") and (2) the following
additional site development services relating to existing and new antenna installations on its wireless infrastructure: site acquisition, architectural and
engineering, zoning and permitting, other construction and network development related services.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements included herein are unaudited; however, they include all adjustments (consisting only of normal
recurring adjustments) which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to fairly state the consolidated financial position of the Company at September 30,
2013, and the consolidated results of operations and the consolidated cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. The year-end
condensed consolidated balance sheet data was derived from audited financial statements, but does not include all disclosures required by GAAP. Accounting
measurements at interim dates inherently involve greater reliance on estimates than at year end. The results of operations for the interim periods presented are
not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements are disclosed in the Company's 2012
Form 10-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements

No accounting pronouncements adopted during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 had a material impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements. No new accounting pronouncements issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 but not yet adopted are expected to have a
material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

3. Acquisitions

NextG Networks Acquisition

During the second quarter of 2013, the Company finalized the purchase price allocation for the NextG Acquisition. The final purchase price allocation is
approximately the same as the preliminary purchase price allocation disclosed in the Company's 2012 Form 10-K.

T-Mobile Acquisition

In September 2012, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with T-Mobile to acquire the exclusive rights to lease, operate or otherwise acquire
approximately 7,100 T-Mobile towers for approximately $2.5 billion. On November 30, 2012, the Company closed on the T-Mobile Acquisition. Upon
closing, the Company obtained the exclusive right to lease and operate the T-Mobile towers (that are otherwise not owned by the Company). See the 2012
Form 10-K for further discussion of the terms of the T-Mobile lease including the purchase option. The Company utilized cash on hand, inclusive of the
proceeds from the 5.25% Senior Notes, and borrowings from the 2012 Revolver to fund the T-Mobile Acquisition.

The purchase price and the purchase price allocation for the T-Mobile Acquisition is not finalized as of September 30, 2013. As such, the preliminary
purchase price allocation presented below is based upon a preliminary valuation which is subject to change as the Company obtains additional information,
including with respect to fixed assets, intangible assets, deferred taxes and certain liabilities. The principal changes in the preliminary purchase price
allocation between December 31, 2012 and September 30, 2013 relate to (1) a $37.8 million increase in property and equipment, (2) a $45.0 million increase
to the above-market lease deferred credit and (3) a corresponding increase in goodwill. The effect of the change in the preliminary purchase price allocation
on the Company's Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) is immaterial to the periods presented. The preliminary purchase price
allocation for the T-Mobile Acquisition, as of September 30, 2013, is shown below.

 Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation

 Presented September 30, 2013

Current assets $ 17,854
Property and equipment 1,497,204
Goodwill(a) 432,148
Other intangible assets, net 407,000
Deferred income tax assets 207,929
Below-market tenant leases and other non-current liabilities(b) (76,349)

Net assets acquired $ 2,485,786
    

(a) The preliminary purchase price allocation for the T-Mobile Acquisition resulted in the recognition of goodwill at CCUSA primarily because of the anticipated growth opportunities in the tower
portfolio. $371.3 million of the goodwill balance recorded is not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

(b) Inclusive of above-market leases for land interests under the Company's towers.

Unaudited Pro Forma Operating Results

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated results of operations combine the historical results of the Company, along with the historical results of
the WCP Acquisition, NextG Acquisition and T-Mobile Acquisition (collectively, "2012 Acquisitions") for the period presented below. The following table
presents the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated results of operations of the Company for the period presented as if each acquisition was completed
as of January 1, 2011. The unaudited pro forma amounts are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of future consolidated
results of operations.

 
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2012  

Net revenues $ 1,997,824 (a) 
Net income (loss) $ 197,262 (b)(c) 
Basic net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, after deduction of dividends on preferred stock, per common share $ 0.67  
Diluted net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, after deduction of dividends on preferred stock, per common share $ 0.66  

    
(a) Amounts are inclusive of pro forma adjustments to increase net revenues of $197.2 million that we expect to recognize related to the T-Mobile towers, inclusive of T-Mobile's contracted lease

of space on the towers acquired in the T-Mobile Acquisition.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(b) Amounts are inclusive of pro forma adjustments to increase depreciation and amortization of $107.5 million related to property and equipment and intangibles recorded as a result of the
combined effect of the 2012 Acquisitions.

(c) The pro forma adjustments are tax effected using the federal statutory rate and no adjustment was made with respect to the Company's reversal of valuation allowance.

See also note 13 for a description of the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

4. Debt and Other Obligations

 Original
Issue Date  Contractual

Maturity Date  
Outstanding
Balance as of

 September 30, 2013  
Outstanding
Balance as of

December 31, 2012  
Stated Interest

Rate as of
September 30, 2013(a)  

Bank debt - variable rate:           
2012 Revolver Jan. 2012  Jan. 2017 (b) 255,000 (b) 1,253,000  2.7% (c) 

Tranche A Term Loans Jan. 2012  Jan. 2017  462,500  481,250  2.7% (c) 

Tranche B Term Loans(d) Jan. 2012  Jan. 2019  2,370,100  1,584,000  3.3% (d) 

Total bank debt     3,087,600  3,318,250    
Securitized debt - fixed rate:           

January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes Jan. 2010  2035 - 2040 (e) 1,900,000  1,900,000  5.8% (e) 

August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes Aug. 2010  2035 - 2040 (e) 1,550,000  1,550,000  4.5% (e) 

2009 Securitized Notes July 2009  2019/2029 (f) 184,474  198,463  7.3%  
WCP Securitized Notes Jan. 2010  Nov. 2040 (g) 291,514 (g) 307,739  5.6%  

Total securitized debt     3,925,988  3,956,202    
Bonds - fixed rate:           

9% Senior Notes Jan. 2009  Jan. 2015  —  304,718  N/A  
7.75% Secured Notes Apr. 2009  May 2017  —  291,394  N/A  
7.125% Senior Notes Oct. 2009  Nov. 2019  498,275  498,110  7.1%  
5.25% Senior Notes Oct. 2012  Jan. 2023  1,649,970  1,650,000  5.3%  
2012 Senior Notes Dec. 2012  2017/2023 (h) 1,500,000  1,500,000  3.4%  

Total bonds     3,648,245  4,244,222    
Other:           

Capital leases and other obligations Various  Various  113,621  92,568  Various  
Total debt and other obligations     10,775,454  11,611,242    
Less: current maturities and short-term debt

and other current obligations     115,378  688,056    
Non-current portion of long-term debt and

other long-term obligations     $ 10,660,076  $ 10,923,186    
________________
(a) Represents the weighted-average stated interest rate.
(b) As of September 30, 2013, the undrawn availability under the $1.5 billion 2012 Revolver is $1.2 billion.
(c) The 2012 Revolver and the Tranche A Term Loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.0% to 2.75%, based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio.
(d) The Tranche B Term Loans, including the Incremental Loans (defined below), bear interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus 2.25% to 2.5% (with LIBOR subject to a floor of 0.75%

per annum), based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio. In April 2013, the Company refinanced the then outstanding Tranche B Term Loans with new loans pursuant to our existing credit
agreement in an aggregate principal amount of $1.6 billion. In August 2013, the Company borrowed $800.0 million of incremental tranche B loans ("Incremental Loans"). The proceeds of the
Incremental Loans were used to repay a portion of the 2012 Revolver.

(e) If the respective series of the January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes and August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes are not paid in full on or prior to 2015, 2017 and 2020, as applicable, then Excess
Cash Flow (as defined in the indenture) of the issuers (of such notes) will be used to repay principal of the applicable series and class of the 2010 Tower Revenue Notes, and additional interest
(of approximately 5% per annum) will accrue on the respective 2010 Tower Revenue Notes. The January 2010 Tower Revenue Notes consist of three series of notes with principal amounts of
$300.0 million, $350.0 million and $1.3 billion, having anticipated repayment dates in 2015, 2017 and 2020, respectively. The August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes consist of three series of
notes with principal amounts of $250.0 million, $300.0 million and $1.0 billion, having anticipated repayment dates in 2015, 2017 and 2020, respectively.

(f) The 2009 Securitized Notes consist of $114.5 million of principal as of September 30, 2013 that amortizes through 2019, and $70.0 million of principal as of September 30, 2013 that amortizes
during the period beginning in 2019 and ending in 2029.

(g) The anticipated repayment date is 2015 for each class of the WCP Securitized Notes. If the WCP Securitized Notes are not repaid in full by their anticipated repayment dates, the applicable
interest rate increases by an additional approximately 5% per annum. If the WCP Securitized Notes are not repaid in full by their rapid amortization date of 2017, monthly principal payments
commence using the excess cash flows of the issuers of the WCP Securitized Notes.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

(h) The 2012 Secured Notes consist of $500 million aggregate principal amount of 2.381% secured notes due 2017 and $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of 3.849% secured notes due 2023.

Contractual Maturities

The following are the scheduled contractual maturities of the total debt and other long-term obligations outstanding at September 30, 2013. These
maturities reflect contractual maturity dates and do not consider the principal payments that will commence following the anticipated repayment dates on the
Tower Revenue Notes and the rapid amortization date on the WCP Securitized Notes.

 

Three Months
Ended December

31,  Years Ending December 31,      
Unamortized

Adjustments, Net

 Total Debt and
Other Obligations

Outstanding 2013  2014  2015  2016  2017  Thereafter  Total Cash
Obligations   

Scheduled
contractual
maturities $ 26,632  $ 113,545  $ 125,405  $ 123,897  $ 1,146,074  $ 9,232,987  $ 10,768,540  $ 6,914  $ 10,775,454

Purchases and Redemptions of Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of purchases and redemptions of long-term debt during the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

 Principal Amount  Cash Paid(a)  Gains (Losses)(c)

9% Senior Notes 314,170  332,045  (17,894)

7.75% Secured Notes(b) 294,362  312,465  (18,103)

5.25% Senior Notes 30  30  —

Tranche B Term Loans 30,941  30,941  (490)

Total $ 639,503  $ 675,481  $ (36,487)
________________
(a) Exclusive of accrued interest.
(b) The redemption of the 7.75% Secured Notes was funded by the release of restricted cash.
(c) The losses predominantly relate to cash losses, including with respect to make whole payments.

Interest Expense and Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs

The components of "interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs" are as follows:

 Three Months Ended September 30,  Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2013  2012  2013  2012

Interest expense on debt obligations $ 121,246  $ 119,460  $ 368,400  $ 353,702

Amortization of deferred financing costs 5,366  5,293  19,426  15,383

Amortization of adjustments on long-term debt (971)  3,235  9,500  9,959

Amortization of interest rate swaps(a) 16,222  16,300  48,726  48,957

Other, net of capitalized interest 153  661  589  (640)

Total $ 142,016  $ 144,949  $ 446,641  $ 427,361
    

(a) Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

5. Income Taxes

For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company's effective rate differed from the federal statutory rate predominately due to state taxes of
$21.7 million, including the impact of certain subsidiaries without state income tax filing requirements incurring taxable losses for which no state benefit
could be recorded.  As further discussed in our 2012 Form 10-K, for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the Company's effective tax rate differed
from the federal statutory rate predominately due to its reversal of a total of $70.1 million of federal and $20.0 million of state valuation allowances to the
benefit (provision) for income taxes.

In September 2013, the Company announced that it was commencing the steps necessary to reorganize to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax
purposes. The Company expects to elect to be taxed as a REIT beginning with the taxable year commencing January 1, 2014.

After conversion into a REIT, the Company generally will not be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax to the extent it distributes its net taxable
income to its stockholders. As a REIT, the Company will also subject to a number of other organizational and operational requirements. In connection with
the Company's anticipated conversion from a taxable C corporation into a REIT, the Company would expect to de-recognize its previously recorded U.S.
federal and state deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the entities included in the REIT, because the expected recovery or settlement of the related assets
and liabilities would not result in a taxable or deductible amount in the future. In such cases, the Company would continue to record deferred taxes for certain
of its subsidiaries ("TRSs"), including its foreign subsidiaries and other taxable REIT subsidiaries. As a result of the expected de-recognition of the
aforementioned deferred tax assets and liabilities related to the entities included in the REIT, the Company would also then expect to record a corresponding
net non-cash income tax charge of approximately $130 million to $160 million in a future period in conjunction with the anticipated REIT conversion. The
de-recognition of the deferred tax assets and liabilities would be recorded if and when the Company has completed all necessary actions to qualify as a REIT
and has obtained final approval from the Company's board of directors.

6. Fair Value Disclosures

 
Level in Fair

Value Hierarchy

 September 30, 2013  December 31, 2012

  
Carrying
 Amount  

Fair
Value  

Carrying
 Amount  

Fair
Value

Assets:          
Cash and cash equivalents 1  $ 218,649  $ 218,649  $ 441,364  $ 441,364

Restricted cash, current and non-current 1  162,699  162,699  580,938  580,938

Liabilities:          
Long-term debt and other obligations 2  10,775,454  10,881,293  11,611,242  12,438,032

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash approximate the carrying value. The Company determines fair value of its debt securities
based on indicative, non-binding quotes from brokers. Quotes from brokers require judgment and are based on the brokers' interpretation of market
information including implied credit spreads for similar borrowings on recent trades or bid/ask prices or quotes from active markets if available. There were
no changes since December 31, 2012 in the Company's valuation techniques used to measure fair values.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

7. Per Share Information

Basic net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, after deduction of dividends on preferred stock, per common share excludes
dilution and is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders after deduction of dividends on preferred stock, by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders, after deduction of
dividends on preferred stock, per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders, after deduction of dividends on
preferred stock, by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period plus any potential dilutive common share equivalents as
determined under the if-converted method. The Company's restricted stock awards are considered participating securities and may be included in the
computation pursuant to the two-class method. However, the Company does not present the two-class method when there is no difference between the per
share amount under the two-class method and the treasury stock method.

 
Three Months Ended September

30,  
Nine Months Ended September

30,

 2013  2012  2013  2012

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders $ 45,836  $ 42,045  $ 113,657  $ 208,089

Dividends on preferred stock —  —  —  (2,629)
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders after deduction of dividends on preferred

stock for basic and diluted computations $ 45,836  $ 42,045  $ 113,657  $ 205,460

Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding (in thousands):        
Basic weighted-average number of common stock outstanding 290,372  290,762  290,900  288,775
Effect of assumed dilution from potential common shares relating to stock options and restricted

stock awards 1,006  1,336  1,143  1,752

Diluted weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 291,378  292,098  292,043  290,527

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC common stockholders after deduction of dividends on preferred
stock, per common share:        
Basic $ 0.16  $ 0.14  $ 0.39  $ 0.71

Diluted $ 0.16  $ 0.14  $ 0.39  $ 0.71

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, 0.6 million restricted stock awards were excluded from the dilutive common shares because
certain stock price hurdles would not have been achieved assuming that September 30, 2013 was the end of the contingency period.

See also note 13 for a description of our October Equity Financings (as defined below) as well as the announcement of our expectation to initiate a
dividend on shares of our Common Stock (as defined below), subject to the successful completion and financing of the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. While there are uncertainties inherent
in the ultimate outcome of such matters and it is impossible to presently determine the ultimate costs or losses that may be incurred, if any, management
believes the resolution of such uncertainties and the incurrence of such costs should not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position or results of operations. Additionally, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries are contingently liable for commitments and performance
guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business.

See also note 13 for a description of the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

9. Equity

Purchases of the Company's Common Stock

For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company purchased 1.4 million shares of Common Stock utilizing $99.2 million in cash.

See also note 13 for a description of our October Equity Financings, as well as our announcement of an expected dividend on shares of our Common
Stock.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

10. Operating Segments

The Company's reportable operating segments are (1) CCUSA, primarily consisting of the Company's U.S. operations and (2) CCAL, the Company's
Australian operations. Financial results for the Company are reported to management and the board of directors in this manner.

The measurement of profit or loss currently used by management to evaluate the results of operations for the Company and its operating segments is
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted ("Adjusted EBITDA"). The Company defines Adjusted EBITDA as net
income (loss) plus restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, acquisition and integration costs, depreciation, amortization and accretion,
amortization of prepaid lease purchase price adjustments, interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs, gains (losses) on retirement of long-
term obligations, net gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, impairment of available-for-sale securities, interest income, other income (expense), benefit
(provision) for income taxes, cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, income (loss) from discontinued operations and stock-based compensation
expense. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an alternative measure of operating results or cash flow from operations (as determined in accordance with
GAAP), and the Company's measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies. There are no significant
revenues resulting from transactions between the Company's operating segments. Inter-company borrowings and related interest between segments are
eliminated to reconcile segment results and assets to the consolidated basis.

 Three Months Ended September 30, 2013  Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

 CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated
Total  CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated

Total

Net revenues:                

Site rental $ 589,415  $ 31,351  $ —  $ 620,766  $ 507,247  $ 31,514  $ —  $ 538,761

Network services and other 122,063  6,148  —  128,211  78,287  4,289  —  82,576

Net revenues 711,478  37,499  —  748,977  585,534  35,803  —  621,337

Operating expenses:                

Costs of operations:(a)                

Site rental 172,791  9,175  —  181,966  126,059  9,255  —  135,314

Network services and other 77,929  4,069  —  81,998  46,592  3,437  —  50,029

General and administrative 52,312  6,192  —  58,504  50,461  5,401  —  55,862

Asset write-down charges 3,022  871  —  3,893  1,518  42  —  1,560

Acquisition and integration costs 4,243  126  —  4,369  2,937  —  —  2,937
Depreciation, amortization and

accretion 186,521  8,887  —  195,408  147,186  7,681  —  154,867

Total operating expenses 496,818  29,320  —  526,138  374,753  25,816  —  400,569

Operating income (loss) 214,660  8,179  —  222,839  210,781  9,987  —  220,768
Interest expense and amortization of

deferred financing costs (142,016)  (3,949)  3,949  (142,016)  (144,949)  (4,478)  4,478  (144,949)
Gains (losses) on retirement of long-

term obligations (1)  —  —  (1)  —  —  —  —

Interest income 144  92  —  236  210  81  —  291

Other income (expense) 3,295  23  (3,949)  (631)  3,825  21  (4,478)  (632)

Benefit (provision) for income taxes (32,538)  (1,421)  —  (33,959)  (31,864)  (436)  —  (32,300)

Net income (loss) 43,544  2,924  —  46,468  38,003  5,175  —  43,178
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to

the noncontrolling interest —  632  —  632  —  1,133  —  1,133
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC

stockholders $ 43,544  $ 2,292  $ —  $ 45,836  $ 38,003  $ 4,042  $ —  $ 42,045

Capital expenditures $ 125,941  $ 4,722  $ —  $ 130,663  $ 117,830  $ 5,860  $ —  $ 123,690
________________
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.
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 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013  Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

 CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated
Total  CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated

Total

Net revenues:                

Site rental $ 1,754,266  $ 98,764  $ —  $ 1,853,030  $ 1,463,126  $ 90,752  $ —  $ 1,553,878

Network services and other 352,982  17,953  —  370,935  187,304  17,411  —  204,715

Net revenues 2,107,248  116,717  —  2,223,965  1,650,430  108,163  —  1,758,593

Operating expenses:                

Costs of operations:(a)                

Site rental 509,617  28,970  —  538,587  363,066  26,690  —  389,756

Network services and other 215,812  13,762  —  229,574  110,240  11,572  —  121,812

General and administrative 154,098  17,441  —  171,539  135,655  18,286  —  153,941

Asset write-down charges 9,633  1,072  —  10,705  8,197  53  —  8,250

Acquisition and integration costs 12,875  311  —  13,186  12,058  54  —  12,112
Depreciation, amortization and

accretion 548,951  23,567  —  572,518  423,620  23,129  —  446,749

Total operating expenses 1,450,986  85,123  —  1,536,109  1,052,836  79,784  —  1,132,620

Operating income (loss) 656,262  31,594  —  687,856  597,594  28,379  —  625,973
Interest expense and amortization of

deferred financing costs (446,641)  (12,710)  12,710  (446,641)  (427,349)  (14,815)  14,803  (427,361)
Gains (losses) on retirement of long-

term obligations (36,487)  —  —  (36,487)  (14,586)  —  —  (14,586)

Interest income 592  269  —  861  665  362  —  1,027

Other income (expense) 11,922  35  (12,710)  (753)  10,869  (24)  (14,803)  (3,958)

Benefit (provision) for income taxes (82,455)  (5,799)  —  (88,254)  30,883  (1,446)  —  29,437

Net income (loss) 103,193  13,389  —  116,582  198,076  12,456  —  210,532
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to

the noncontrolling interest —  2,925  —  2,925  (268)  2,711  —  2,443
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC

stockholders $ 103,193  $ 10,464  $ —  $ 113,657  $ 198,344  $ 9,745  $ —  $ 208,089

Capital expenditures $ 373,653  $ 11,829  $ —  $ 385,482  $ 268,730  $ 14,656  $ —  $ 283,386
________________
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

The following are reconciliations of net income (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012.

 Three Months Ended September 30, 2013  Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

 CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated
Total  CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated

Total

Net income (loss) $ 43,544  $ 2,924  $ —  $ 46,468  $ 38,003  $ 5,175  $ —  $ 43,178
Adjustments to increase (decrease) net income

(loss):                

Asset write-down charges 3,022  871  —  3,893  1,518  42  —  1,560

Acquisition and integration costs 4,243  126  —  4,369  2,937  —  —  2,937

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 186,521  8,887  —  195,408  147,186  7,681  —  154,867
Amortization of prepaid lease purchase

price adjustments 3,870  —  —  3,870  3,858  —  —  3,858
Interest expense and amortization of

deferred financing costs 142,016  3,949  (3,949)  142,016  144,949  4,478  (4,478)  144,949
Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term

obligations 1  —  —  1  —  —  —  —

Interest income (144)  (92)  —  (236)  (210)  (81)  —  (291)

Other income (expense) (3,295)  (23)  3,949  631  (3,825)  (21)  4,478  632

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 32,538  1,421  —  33,959  31,864  436  —  32,300

Stock-based compensation expense 9,862  316  —  10,178  16,308  (126)  —  16,182

Adjusted EBITDA $ 422,178  $ 18,379  $ —  $ 440,557  $ 382,588  $ 17,584  $ —  $ 400,172

 Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013  Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

 CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated
Total  CCUSA  CCAL  Eliminations  Consolidated

Total

Net income (loss) $ 103,193  $ 13,389  $ —  $ 116,582  $ 198,076  $ 12,456  $ —  $ 210,532
Adjustments to increase (decrease) net income

(loss):          

Asset write-down charges 9,633  1,072  —  10,705  8,197  53  —  8,250

Acquisition and integration costs 12,875  311  —  13,186  12,058  54  —  12,112

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 548,951  23,567  —  572,518  423,620  23,129  —  446,749
Amortization of prepaid lease purchase

price adjustments 11,595  —  —  11,595  10,301  —  —  10,301
Interest expense and amortization of

deferred financing costs 446,641  12,710  (12,710)  446,641  427,349  14,815  (14,803)  427,361
Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term

obligations 36,487  —  —  36,487  14,586  —  —  14,586

Interest income (592)  (269)  —  (861)  (665)  (362)  —  (1,027)

Other income (expense) (11,922)  (35)  12,710  753  (10,869)  24  14,803  3,958

Benefit (provision) for income taxes 82,455  5,799  —  88,254  (30,883)  1,446  —  (29,437)

Stock-based compensation expense 29,335  550  —  29,885  33,413  1,951  —  35,364

Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,268,651  $ 57,094  $ —  $ 1,325,745  $ 1,085,183  $ 53,566  $ —  $ 1,138,749

11. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company derives the largest portion of its revenues from customers in the wireless communications industry. The Company also has a
concentration in its volume of business with Sprint, AT&T, Verizon Wireless and T-Mobile or their agents that accounts for a significant portion of the
Company's revenues, receivables and deferred site rental receivables. The Company mitigates its concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables
by actively monitoring the creditworthiness of its customers, utilizing customer leases with contractually determinable payment terms and proactively
managing past due balances.
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Major Customers

The following table summarizes the percentage of the consolidated revenues for those customers accounting for more than 10% of the consolidated
revenues (all of such customer revenues relate to our CCUSA segment). The following table is after giving effect to T-Mobile's acquisition of MetroPCS
(completed in April 2013), Sprint's acquisition of Clearwire (completed in July 2013) and AT&T's pending acquisition of Leap Wireless.

 Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2013  2012
Sprint(a) 28%  26%
T-Mobile(b) 23%  14%
AT&T(c) 22%  23%
Verizon Wireless 16%  18%
Total 89%  81%
________________
(a) For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, Sprint and Clearwire accounted for 25% and 3%, respectively, of consolidated net revenues. As of September 30, 2013, Sprint and Clearwire

are co-residents on approximately 2,700 towers. The weighted-average remaining term on these tower tenant contracts with Sprint and Clearwire is approximately seven years and three years,
respectively. Revenue from Clearwire on these 2,700 towers represented approximately 2% of consolidated site rental revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

(b) For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, T-Mobile and MetroPCS accounted for 17% and 6%, respectively, of consolidated net revenues. As of September 30, 2013, T-Mobile and
MetroPCS are co-residents on approximately 1,400 towers. The weighted-average remaining term on these tower tenant contracts with T-Mobile and MetroPCS is approximately nine years
and five years, respectively. Revenue from MetroPCS on these 1,400 towers represented approximately 2% of consolidated site rental revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

(c) For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, AT&T and Leap Wireless accounted for 19% and 3%, respectively, of consolidated net revenues. As of September 30, 2013, AT&T and Leap
Wireless are co-residents on approximately 1,300 towers. The weighted-average remaining term on these tower tenant contracts with AT&T and Leap Wireless is approximately 10 years and
four years, respectively. Revenue from Leap Wireless on these 1,300 towers represented approximately 1% of consolidated site rental revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

See also note 13 for a description of the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

12. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

 Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2013  2012

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:    

Interest paid $ 356,421  $ 364,507

Income taxes paid 12,769  3,092

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:    
Increase (decrease) in liabilities for purchases of property and equipment 28,549  21,139

Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock —  305,180
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CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-Unaudited (Continued)

(Tabular dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

13. Subsequent Events

Proposed AT&T Transaction

During October 2013, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with AT&T pursuant to which the Company will acquire rights to approximately
9,700 AT&T towers for $4.85 billion in cash at closing (subject to certain limited adjustments).("Proposed AT&T Transaction"). Pursuant to the Proposed
AT&T Transaction, the Company (1) will have the exclusive right to lease or sublease, or the exclusive right to operate and manage approximately 9,060 of
the AT&T towers ("MPL Towers") pursuant to a prepaid lease agreement for a weighted average term of approximately 28 years and (2) will purchase
approximately 640 towers from AT&T. In addition, the Company will have the option to purchase the leased towers at the end of the respective lease terms
for aggregate option payments of approximately $4.2 billion, which payments, if exercised, would be between 2032 and 2048. The Proposed AT&T
Transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2013. The Company expects to fund the purchase price with cash on hand, proceeds from the October
Equity Financings, discussed further below, and other debt financing, including additional borrowings under its revolving credit facility. Based on preliminary
unaudited financial information for the AT&T towers currently anticipated to be included as part of the Proposed AT&T Transaction, we estimate that, based
upon annualization of financial information for the month ended June 30, 2013, these AT&T towers generate annual third-party cash site rental revenues of
approximately $163 million and incur annual cash ground lease expense of approximately $142 million. In addition, the Company expects to receive
approximately $221 million in initial annual cash rental revenues from AT&T. The Company believes the Proposed AT&T Transaction will result in the
recognition of a significant amount of goodwill as a result of paying a purchase price that assumes the tower portfolio contains growth potential.

Common Stock and Preferred Stock Offering

On October 28, 2013, the Company completed an offering of approximately 41.4 million shares of the Company's common stock, par value $0.01 per
share ("Common Stock"), which generated net proceeds of approximately $3.0 billion.

On October 28, 2013, the Company completed an offering of approximately 9.8 million shares of the Company's 4.50% Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, Series A, par value $0.01 per share ("4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock"), which generated net proceeds of approximately
$949.6 million. The holders of the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends, when and if declared by the
Company's board of directors, at the rate of 4.50% per annum payable on February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing on
February 1, 2014, and to, and including, November 1, 2016. The dividends may be paid in cash or, subject to certain limitations, shares of Common Stock or
any combination of cash and shares of Common Stock.

Unless converted earlier, each outstanding share of the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock will automatically convert on November 1, 2016
into between 1.0811 and 1.3513 shares of Common Stock, depending on the applicable market value of the Common Stock and subject to certain anti-dilution
adjustments. At any time prior to November 1, 2016, holders of the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock may elect to convert all or a portion of
their shares into Common Stock at the minimum conversion rate of 1.0811, subject to certain anti-dilution adjustments.

The Common Stock and 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock offerings in October 2013 are collectively referred to herein as the "October
Equity Financings."

The Company expects to use the proceeds from the October Equity Financings to partially fund the Proposed AT&T Transaction. If for any reason the
Proposed AT&T Transaction does not close or closes with respect to a reduced number of towers or for reduced consideration, then the Company expects to
use any remaining net proceeds from the October Equity Financings for general corporate purposes. The net proceeds from the October Equity Financings are
currently held in cash and prime money market investments. 

Announcement of Plan to Initiate Common Stock Dividend

On October 21, 2013, the Company announced its expectation, subject to the successful completion and financing of the Proposed AT&T Transaction,
to initiate a quarterly dividend on shares of Common Stock of $0.35 per share beginning in the first quarter of 2014. The declaration, amount and payment of
dividends, pursuant to the Company's Common Stock dividend policy, are subject to the final determination of the Company's board of directors based on
then-current and anticipated future conditions, including earnings, net cash provided by operating activities, capital requirements, financial condition, relative
market capitalization, existing federal net operating losses and other factors deemed relevant by the Company's board of directors.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS



The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the response to Part I, Item 1 of this report and the consolidated financial statements of the
Company including the related notes and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" ("MD&A")
included in our 2012 Form 10-K. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Item have the same meaning given to them in our 2012 Form 10-K. Unless
this Form 10-Q indicates otherwise or the context requires, the terms "we," "our," "our company," "the company," or "us" as used in this Form 10-Q refer to
Crown Castle International Corp. and its subsidiaries.

General Overview

Overview

We own, operate or lease shared wireless infrastructure, including: (1) towers, (2) distributed antenna systems, a type of small cell network, and (3)
third party land interests. Our core business is providing access, including space or capacity, to our towers, and to a lesser extent, to our small cell networks
and third party land interests via long-term contracts in various forms. Site rental revenues represented 83% of our third quarter 2013 consolidated net
revenues, of which 95% was attributable to our CCUSA operating segment. The vast majority of our site rental revenues is of a recurring nature and has been
contracted for in a prior year. See our 2012 Form 10-K for a further discussion of our business, including our long-term strategy, growth trends in the wireless
communications industry and our wireless infrastructure portfolio.

The following are certain highlights of our business fundamentals and results as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.

• Potential growth resulting from wireless network expansion and new entrants
◦ We expect wireless carriers will continue their focus on improving network quality and expanding capacity by adding additional antennas

and other equipment on our wireless infrastructure.
◦ We expect existing and potential new wireless carrier demand for our wireless infrastructure will result from (1) next generation

technologies, (2) continued development of mobile internet applications, (3) adoption of other emerging and embedded wireless devices,
(4) increasing smartphone penetration, (5) wireless carrier focus on expanding coverage and capacity and (6) the availability of additional
spectrum.

◦ Substantially all of our wireless infrastructure can accommodate additional tenancy, either as currently constructed or with appropriate
modifications to the structure.

◦ U.S. wireless carriers continue to invest in their networks.
◦ Our site rental revenues grew $299.2 million, or 19%, from the nine months ended September 30, 2012 to the nine months ended

September 30, 2013. Our site rental revenue growth during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was impacted by:
▪ Our 2012 Acquisitions ("Item 2. MD&A—Consolidated Results of Operations" and note 3 in our 2012 Form 10-K).
▪ The fact that we have effectively pre-sold via a firm contractual commitment a significant portion of the modification of the existing

installations relating to certain LTE upgrades. We have done so by increasing the future contracted revenue above that of a typical
escalation over a period of time, typically a three to four year period. As a result, for any given period, the increase in cash revenue
may not translate into a corresponding increase in reported revenues from the application of straight-line revenue recognition.

• Site rental revenues under long-term customer contracts with contractual escalations
◦ Initial terms of five to 15 years with multiple renewal periods at the option of the tenant of five to ten years each.
◦ Weighted-average remaining term of approximately eight years, exclusive of renewals at the customer's option, representing

approximately $19 billion of expected future cash inflows.
• Revenues predominately from large wireless carriers

◦ Sprint, T-Mobile, AT&T and Verizon Wireless accounted for 89% and 87% of consolidated revenues and site rental revenues,
respectively, after giving effect to T-Mobile's acquisition of MetroPCS (completed in April 2013), Sprint's acquisition of Clearwire
(completed in July 2013), and AT&T's pending acquisition of Leap Wireless. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our 2012 Form 10-K and
note 11 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

• Majority of land interests under our towers under long-term control
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◦ Approximately nine-tenths and three-fourths of the site rental gross margin derived from our towers has land interests that we own or
control for greater than ten and 20 years, respectively. The aforementioned amounts include towers that reside on land interests that are
owned in fee or where we have perpetual or long-term easement, which represents more than one-third of such site rental gross margin.

• Relatively fixed wireless infrastructure operating costs
◦ Our wireless infrastructure operating costs tend to increase at approximately the rate of inflation and are not typically influenced by new

tenant additions.
• Minimal sustaining capital expenditure requirements

◦ Sustaining capital expenditures were approximately 1% percent of net revenues.
• Debt portfolio with long-dated maturities extended over multiple years, with the majority of such debt having a fixed rate (see "Item 3.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a further discussion of our debt)
◦ 71% of our debt has fixed rate coupons.
◦ Our debt service coverage and leverage ratios were comfortably within their respective financial maintenance and cash trap covenants.

See "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital Resources" for a further discussion of our debt covenants.
• Significant cash flows from operations

◦ Net cash provided by operating activities was $838.9 million.
◦ We believe our core business of providing access to our wireless infrastructure can be characterized as a stable cash flow stream, which

we expect to grow as a result of future demand for our wireless infrastructure.
◦ We currently pay minimal cash income taxes as a result of our net operating loss carryforwards. We have approximately $2.7 billion of

federal net operating losses to offset future taxable income. See "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital Resources."
• Capital allocated to drive long-term total stockholder value (see also "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital Resources")

◦ Historical discretionary investments include (in no particular order): purchasing our Common Stock, acquiring or constructing wireless
infrastructure, acquiring land interests under our towers, improving and structurally enhancing our existing wireless infrastructure, and
purchasing, repaying or redeeming our debt.

◦ Discretionary investments included:
▪ The purchase of 1.4 million shares of our Common Stock for $99.2 million.



▪ Discretionary capital expenditures of $358.3 million, including wireless infrastructure improvements in order to support additional
site rentals, construction of wireless infrastructure and land purchases.

▪ In April 2013, we refinanced all of the outstanding Tranche B Term Loans, which effectively lowered the interest rate margin by
75 basis points. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

▪ In January 2013, we completed the repurchase and redemption of all the outstanding 9% Senior Notes and 7.75% Secured Notes.



The following are certain highlights of our full year 2013 and 2014 outlook that impact our business fundamentals described above.
• We expect that our full year 2013 site rental revenue growth will be impacted by acquisitions (including the 2012 Acquisitions) and the above

mentioned pre-sold arrangements for modifications of existing customer installations.
• We expect that our full year 2014 site rental revenue growth will also be impacted by both of the items that impacted our 2013 site rental

revenue growth, namely pre-sold arrangements and acquisitions (including a substantial expected contribution from the Proposed AT&T
Transaction). See notes 3 and 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for further discussion of our 2012 Acquisitions and our
Proposed AT&T Transaction, respectively.

• We expect site rental revenues from new tenant installations to increase during full year 2013 as compared to 2012 and also expect the site rental
revenue contribution from new tenant installations to increase in 2014 from 2013, as a result of our customers' focus on improving network
quality and capacity.

• Additionally, we do not expect that recent customer consolidations, and any related non-renewal of customer contracts anticipated in 2014 and
2015, will have a material adverse effect on our operations and cash flows for 2013 and subsequent periods. We expect a reduction to our
consolidated site rental revenues (approximately 1% in 2014 and approximately 2% reduction coming after 2014) as a result of Sprint's non-
renewal of tenant contracts stemming from Sprint's decommissioning of its iDEN network.

• We expect sustaining capital expenditures of approximately 2% of revenue for full year 2014.
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Proposed AT&T Transaction and Equity Financing

During October 2013, we entered into the Proposed AT&T Transaction, pursuant to which we expect to acquire rights to approximately 9,700 AT&T
towers for $4.85 billion in cash at closing (subject to certain limited adjustments). Also during October 2013, we completed an offering of (1) approximately
41.4 million shares of Common Stock, which generated net proceeds of approximately $3.0 billion and (2) approximately 9.8 million shares of the 4.50%
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for approximately $949.6 million in net proceeds. See note 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Announcement of Plan to Initiate Common Stock Dividend

During October 2013, we announced our expectation, subject to the successful completion and financing of the Proposed AT&T Transaction, to initiate
a quarterly dividend on shares of Common Stock of $0.35 per share beginning in the first quarter of 2014. See note 13 to our condensed consolidated
financial statements.

REIT Election

In September 2013, we announced that we are commencing the steps necessary to reorganize to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
We expect to elect to be taxed as a REIT beginning with the taxable year commencing January 1, 2014. As a REIT, we will generally be entitled to a
deduction for dividends that we pay and therefore will not be subject to U.S. federal corporate income tax on our net taxable income that is currently
distributed to our stockholders. Even if we qualify for taxation as REIT, we may be subject to certain federal, state, local and foreign taxes on our income and
assets, including alternative minimum taxes, taxes on any undistributed income, and state, local or foreign income, franchise, property and transfer taxes. In
addition, we could in certain circumstances be required to pay an excise or penalty tax, which could be significant in amount, in order to utilize one or more
relief provisions under the Internal Revenue Code ("Code") to maintain qualification for taxation as a REIT. Our small cell operations will initially be
conducted through one or more wholly-owned TRSs. Additionally, we intend to include in TRSs our tower operations in Australia, and may include certain
other assets and operations. Those TRS assets and operations would continue to be subject, as applicable, to federal and state corporate income taxes and to
foreign taxes in the jurisdictions in which such assets and operations are located. Our foreign assets and operations most likely will be subject to foreign
income taxes in the jurisdictions in which such assets and operations are located, regardless of whether they are included in a TRS or not.

To qualify and be taxed as a REIT, we will generally be required to distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (determined without regard to
the dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain) each year to our stockholders. Our determination as to the timing and amount of future dividends
that we may make as a REIT will be based on a number of factors, including investment opportunities around our core business and our federal net operating
losses of approximately $2.7 billion (see note 9 to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10-K). We do not expect to make any distribution
(commonly referred to as a "purging" dividend) prior to our REIT conversion.

See note 5 of our condensed consolidated financial statements and "Item 1A—Risk Factors" for additional information concerning our REIT election.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

The following discussion of our results of operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated financial statements and our 2012
Form 10-K. The following discussion of our results of operations is based on our condensed consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with
GAAP, which requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts (see "Item 2. MD&A—Accounting and Reporting Matters—
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and note 2 to our consolidated financial statements on our 2012 Form 10-K).

Comparison of Consolidated Results

The following information is derived from our historical consolidated statements of operations for the periods indicated.

 Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended   
 September 30, 2013  September 30, 2012   

 Amount  Amount  
Percent

Change(b)

 (Dollars in thousands)   
Net revenues:      

Site rental $ 620,766  $ 538,761  15 %

Network services and other 128,211  82,576  55 %

Net revenues 748,977  621,337  21 %

Operating expenses:      
Costs of operations(a):      

Site rental 181,966  135,314  34 %

Network services and other 81,998  50,029  64 %

Total costs of operations 263,964  185,343  42 %

General and administrative 58,504  55,862  5 %

Asset write-down charges 3,893  1,560  *

Acquisition and integration costs 4,369  2,937  *
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 195,408  154,867  26 %

Total operating expenses 526,138  400,569  31 %

Operating income (loss) 222,839  220,768  1 %

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs (142,016)  (144,949)  (2)%

Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations (1)  —   
Interest income 236  291   
Other income (expense) (631)  (632)   
Income (loss) before income taxes 80,427  75,478   
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (33,959)  (32,300)   
Net income (loss) 46,468  43,178   
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest 632  1,133   
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders $ 45,836  $ 42,045   
________________
* Percentage is not meaningful
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.
(b) Inclusive of the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations. See "Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating Segments—CCAL."
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 Nine Months Ended  Nine Months Ended   
 September 30, 2013  September 30, 2012   

 Amount  Amount  
Percent

Change(b)

 (Dollars in thousands)   
Net revenues:      

Site rental $ 1,853,030  $ 1,553,878  19%

Network services and other 370,935  204,715  81%

Net revenues 2,223,965  1,758,593  26%

Operating expenses:      
Costs of operations(a):      

Site rental 538,587  389,756  38%

Network services and other 229,574  121,812  88%

Total costs of operations 768,161  511,568  50%

General and administrative 171,539  153,941  11%

Asset write-down charges 10,705  8,250  *

Acquisition and integration costs 13,186  12,112  *
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 572,518  446,749  28%

Total operating expenses 1,536,109  1,132,620  36%

Operating income (loss) 687,856  625,973  10%

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs (446,641)  (427,361)  5%

Gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations (36,487)  (14,586)   
Interest income 861  1,027   
Other income (expense) (753)  (3,958)   
Income (loss) before income taxes 204,836  181,095   
Benefit (provision) for income taxes (88,254)  29,437   
Net income (loss) 116,582  210,532   
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to the noncontrolling interest 2,925  2,443   
Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders $ 113,657  $ 208,089   
________________
* Percentage is not meaningful
(a) Exclusive of depreciation, amortization and accretion shown separately.
(b) Inclusive of the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations. See "Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating Segments—CCAL."

Third Quarter 2013 and 2012. Our consolidated results of operations for the third quarter of 2013 and 2012, respectively, consist predominately of our
CCUSA segment, which accounted for (1) 95% and 94% of consolidated net revenues, (2) 95% and 95% of consolidated gross margins, and (3) 95% and
90% of net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders. Our operating segment results, including CCUSA, are discussed below (see "Item 2. MD&A—
Comparison of Operating Segments"). The T-Mobile acquisition impacted our consolidated results of operations from the third quarter of 2013 by (1)
increasing consolidated net revenues by $66.5 million and (2) reducing net income by $5.2 million (exclusive of the interest expense associated with the
financing to fund this acquisition).

First Nine Months of 2013 and 2012. Our consolidated results of operations for the first nine months of 2013 and 2012, respectively, consist
predominately of our CCUSA segment, which accounted for (1) 95% and 94% of consolidated net revenues, (2) 95% and 94% of consolidated gross margins,
and (3) 91% and 95% of net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders. Our operating segment results, including CCUSA, are discussed below (see
"Item 2. MD&A—Comparison of Operating Segments"). The 2012 Acquisitions impacted our consolidated results of operations from the first nine months of
2012 to the first nine months of 2013 by (1) increasing consolidated net revenues by $266.1 million and (2) reducing net income by $14.7 million (inclusive
of the impact of debt assumed in the WCP acquisition, but exclusive of the interest expense associated with the financing to fund each of these acquisitions).
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Comparison of Operating Segments

Our reportable operating segments for the third quarter of 2013 are (1) CCUSA, consisting of our U.S. operations, and (2) CCAL, our Australian
operations. Our financial results are reported to management and the board of directors in this manner.

See note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for segment results, our definition of Adjusted EBITDA, and a reconciliation of net
income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders to Adjusted EBITDA (defined below).

Our measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate our operating performance and operating segments is earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted ("Adjusted EBITDA"). Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies, including companies in the tower sector and other similar providers of wireless infrastructure, and is not a measure of
performance calculated in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is discussed further under "Item 2. MD&A—Accounting and Reporting Matters—Non-
GAAP Financial Measures."

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) plus restructuring charges (credits), asset write-down charges, acquisition and integration costs,
depreciation, amortization and accretion, amortization of prepaid lease purchase price adjustments, interest expense and amortization of deferred financing
costs, gains (losses) on retirement of long-term obligations, net gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, impairment of available-for-sale securities, interest income,
other income (expense), benefit (provision) for income taxes, cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, income (loss) from discontinued
operations and stock-based compensation expense (see note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements). The reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA
to our net income (loss) is set forth in note 10 to our condensed consolidated financial statements. Adjusted EBITDA is not intended as an alternative measure
of operating results or cash flows from operations as determined in accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA is discussed further under "Item 2. MD&A—
Accounting and Reporting Matters—Non-GAAP Financial Measures."

CCUSA—Third Quarter 2013 and 2012

Net revenues for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $125.9 million, or 22%, from the same period in the prior year. This increase in net revenues
resulted from an increase from the same period in the prior year in (1) site rental revenues of $82.2 million, or 16%, and (2) network services and other
revenues of $43.8 million, or 56%.

The increase in site rental revenues was impacted by the following items, inclusive of straight-line accounting, in no particular order: new tenant
additions across our entire portfolio, renewals or extensions of customer contracts, escalations, acquisitions and cancellations of customer contracts. Tenant
additions were influenced by our customers' upgrading to LTE and their ongoing efforts to improve network quality. Site rental gross margins for the third
quarter of 2013 increased by $35.4 million, or 9%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in the site rental gross margins was related to the
previously mentioned 16% increase in site rental revenues, including as a result of the 2012 Acquisitions.

Network services and other gross margin increased by $12.4 million, or 39%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in our gross margin
from our network services and other revenues is a reflection of the volume of activity from carrier network enhancements such as LTE upgrades and the
general volatility in the volume and mix of network services work. Our network services business is of a variable nature as these revenues are not under long-
term contracts.

General and administrative expenses for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $1.9 million, or approximately 4%, from the same period in the prior
year. General and administrative expenses were 7% of net revenues for the third quarter of 2013 compared to 9% of net revenues for the third quarter of 2012.
General and administrative expenses are inclusive of stock-based compensation charges, which decreased $3.0 million in the third quarter of 2013, primarily
as a result of a one-time employee stock grant in the third quarter of 2012. The increase in general and administrative expenses in nominal dollars was
commensurate with the growth in our business, partially as a result of our acquisitions. Typically, our general and administrative expenses do not significantly
increase as a result of new tenant additions on our wireless infrastructure.

Adjusted EBITDA for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $39.6 million, or 10%, from the same period in the prior year. Adjusted EBITDA was
positively impacted by the growth in our site rental and network services activities and our 2012 Acquisitions.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $39.3 million, or 27%, from the same period in the prior year
predominately as a result of the fixed asset and intangible asset additions related to our 2012 Acquisitions.

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs decreased $2.9 million, or 2%, from the third quarter of 2012 to the third quarter of 2013,
as a result of our refinancings during 2012 and 2013 partially offset by additional borrowings to fund acquisitions during 2012. During the full year 2012, we
completed several debt transactions, resulting in (1) lowering our average
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cost of debt, (2) funding for our 2012 Acquisitions, (3) the refinancing of certain of our debt and (4) the extension of our debt maturities. During 2013, we
redeemed and repaid the remaining outstanding 7.75% Secured Notes and 9% Senior Notes. For a further discussion of our debt, see note 4 to our condensed
consolidated financial and see note 6 to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10-K.

The benefit (provision) for income taxes for the third quarter of 2013 was a provision of $32.5 million, compared to a provision of $31.9 million for the
third quarter of 2012. For the third quarter of 2013, the effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate predominately due to state taxes, including the
impact of certain subsidiaries without state income tax filing requirements incurring taxable losses for which no state benefit could be recorded.  For the third
quarter of 2012, the effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate predominately due to state taxes. See Item 2. MD&A—General Overview and also
note 9 to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10-K.

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the third quarter of 2013 was net income of $43.5 million compared to net income of $38.0
million for the third quarter of 2012. The change in net income was predominately due to growth in our site rental and network service gross margins.

CCUSA—First Nine Months of 2013 and 2012

Net revenues for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $456.8 million, or 28%, from the same period in the prior year. This increase in net
revenues resulted from an increase from the same period in the prior year in (1) site rental revenues of $291.1 million, or 20%, and (2) network services and
other revenues of $165.7 million, or 88%.

The increase in site rental revenues was impacted by the following items, inclusive of straight-line accounting, in no particular order: new tenant
additions across our entire portfolio, renewals or extensions of customer contracts, escalations, acquisitions and cancellations of customer contracts. Tenant
additions were influenced by our customers' upgrading to LTE and their ongoing efforts to improve network quality. Site rental gross margins for the first nine
months of 2013 increased by $144.6 million, or 13%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in the site rental gross margins was related to the
previously mentioned 20% increase in site rental revenues, as well as a result of our 2012 Acquisitions.

Network services and other gross margin increased by $60.1 million, or 78%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in our gross margin
from our network services and other revenues is a reflection of the volume of activity from carrier network enhancements such as LTE upgrades and the
general volatility in the volume and mix of network services work. Our network services business is of a variable nature as these revenues are not under long-
term contracts.

General and administrative expenses for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $18.4 million, or approximately 14%, from the same period in the
prior year. General and administrative expenses were 7% of net revenues for the first nine months of 2013 compared to 8% of net revenues for the first nine
months of 2012. The increase in general and administrative expenses in nominal dollars was commensurate with the growth in our business as a result of our
acquisitions. Typically, our general and administrative expenses do not significantly increase as a result of new tenant additions on our wireless infrastructure.

Adjusted EBITDA for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $183.5 million, or 17%, from the same period in the prior year. Adjusted EBITDA
was positively impacted by the growth in our site rental and network services activities and our 2012 Acquisitions.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $125.3 million, or 30%, from the same period in the prior year.
This increase predominately resulted from the fixed asset and intangible asset additions related to the 2012 Acquisitions consummated in April 2012 and
November 2012, respectively.

Interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs increased $19.3 million, or 5%, from the first nine months of 2012 to the first nine months
of 2013, as a result of our refinancings during 2012 and 2013 partially offset by additional borrowings to fund the 2012 Acquisitions. During full year 2012,
we completed several debt transactions, resulting in (1) lowering our average cost of debt, (2) funding for the 2012 Acquisitions, (3) the refinancing of certain
of our debt and (4) the extension of our debt maturities. During the first nine months of 2013, we redeemed and repaid the remaining outstanding 7.75%
Secured Notes and 9% Senior Notes. As a result of repurchasing and redeeming certain of our debt during the first nine months of 2013 and the first nine
months of 2012, we incurred losses of $36.5 million and $14.6 million, respectively. For a further discussion of our debt, see note 4 to our condensed
consolidated financial and see note 6 to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10‑K.

The benefit (provision) for income taxes for the first nine months of 2013 was a provision of $82.5 million, compared to a benefit of $30.9 million for
the first nine months of 2012. For the first nine months of 2013, the effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate predominately due to state taxes,
including the impact of certain subsidiaries without state income tax filing
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requirements incurring taxable losses for which no state benefit could be recorded.  For the first nine months of 2012, the effective tax rate differs from the
federal statutory rate predominately due to the reversal of federal and state deferred tax valuation allowances, including the reversal of a total of $70.1 million
of federal and $20.0 million of state valuation allowances to our benefit (provision) for income taxes. See Item 2. MD&A—General Overview and also note 9
to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10-K.

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the first nine months of 2013 was net income of $103.2 million compared to net income of
$198.3 million for the first nine months of 2012. The change in net income was predominately due to (1) a change in our benefit (provision) for income taxes,
(2) the net impact of our financing activities, partially offset by (3) growth in our site rental and network service gross margins.

CCAL—Third Quarter 2013 and 2012

The increases and decreases between the third quarter of 2013 and the third quarter of 2012 were inclusive of exchange rate fluctuations. The average
exchange rate of one Australian dollar expressed in U.S. dollars for the third quarter of 2013 was approximately 0.92, a decrease of 12% from approximately
1.04 for the same period in the prior year. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Total net revenues for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $1.7 million, or 5%, from the same period in the prior year. Site rental revenues for the
third quarter of 2013 decreased by $0.2 million, or 1%, from the same period in the prior year. The change in the exchange rate negatively impacted net
revenues and site rental revenues by approximately by $5.1 million and $4.2 million, respectively, and accounted for a decrease of 14% and 13%, respectively
for the third quarter of 2013 from the same period of 2012. Site rental revenues were impacted by various factors, inclusive of straight-line accounting,
including in no particular order: tenant additions on our wireless infrastructure, renewals of customer contracts, acquisitions, escalations, exchange rates, and
cancellations of customer contracts.

Site rental gross margins remained relatively consistent with approximately $22.2 million in both the third quarter of 2013 and the third quarter of 2012.
Adjusted EBITDA for the third quarter of 2013 increased by $0.8 million, or 5%, from the same period in the prior year. The increase in Adjusted EBITDA
was primarily due to the same factors that drove the increase in net revenues.

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the third quarter of 2013 was net income of $2.3 million, compared to net income of $4.0
million for the third quarter of 2012.

CCAL—First Nine Months of 2013 and 2012

The increases and decreases between the first nine months of 2013 and the first nine months of 2012 were inclusive of exchange rate fluctuations. The
average exchange rate of one Australian dollar expressed in U.S. dollars for the first nine months of 2013 was approximately 0.98, a decrease of 5% from
approximately 1.04 for the same period in the prior year. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk."

Total net revenues for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $8.6 million, or 8%, from the same period in the prior year. Site rental revenues for the
first nine months of 2013 increased by $8.0 million, or 9%, from the same period in the prior year. Site rental revenues were impacted by various factors,
inclusive of straight-line accounting, including in no particular order: tenant additions on our wireless infrastructure, renewals of customer contracts,
acquisitions, escalations, exchange rates, and cancellations of customer contracts.

Site rental gross margins increased by $5.7 million, or 9%, for the first nine months of 2013, from $64.1 million, for the first nine months of 2012.
Adjusted EBITDA for the first nine months of 2013 increased by $3.5 million, or 7%, from the same period in the prior year. The increases in the site rental
gross margin and Adjusted EBITDA were primarily due to the same factors that drove the increase in net revenues.

Net income (loss) attributable to CCIC stockholders for the first nine months of 2013 was net income of $10.5 million, compared to net income of $9.7
million for the first nine months of 2012. The increase in net income was primarily driven by the growth in the site rental business.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

General. We believe our core business can be characterized as a stable cash flow stream generated by revenues under long-term contracts (see "Item 2.
MD&A—General Overview—Overview"). Since we became a public company in 1998, our cumulative net cash provided by operating activities (net of cash
interest payments) has exceeded our sustaining capital expenditures and provided us with cash available for discretionary investments. For the foreseeable
future, we expect to continue to generate net cash provided by operating activities that exceeds our expected (1) principal amortization payments, (2) dividend
payments (see note 13 of our condensed consolidated financial statements) and (3) capital expenditures and will thus expect to have excess cash available for
discretionary investments. We seek to allocate the net cash provided by our operating activities in a manner that will enhance total stockholder value. In
addition to investing net cash provided by operating activities, in certain circumstances, we may also use debt financings and issuances of equity or equity
related securities to fund discretionary investments.

We seek to maintain a capital structure that we believe drives long-term total stockholder value and optimizes our weighted-average cost of capital. We
target a leverage ratio of approximately four to six times Adjusted EBITDA and interest coverage of approximately three times Adjusted EBITDA, subject to
various factors such as the availability and cost of capital and the potential long-term return on our discretionary investments. We may choose to increase or
decrease our leverage and coverage from these targets for periods of time.  As a result of our financing and investing transactions during 2012, including the
T-Mobile Acquisition, our CCIC consolidated leverage ratio (see "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt Covenants") is 6.1 times as of
September 30, 2013. This current CCIC consolidated leverage ratio is below our restrictive covenant of 7.0 times. We do not expect the Proposed AT&T
Transaction to significantly change our leverage.

In September 2013, we announced that we are commencing the steps necessary to reorganize to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
We expect to elect to be taxed as a REIT beginning with the taxable year commencing January 1, 2014. Historically, we have paid and we expect to continue
to pay minimal cash income taxes as a result of our net operating loss carryforwards and our expected REIT conversion. We have approximately $2.7 billion
of federal net operating losses to offset future taxable income. See "Item 2. MD&A—General Overview" and note 9 of our condensed consolidated financial
statements in the 2012 Form 10-K.

Historically, we have endeavored to utilize our net cash provided by operating activities to engage in discretionary investments. Our historical
discretionary investments include (in no particular order): purchasing our Common Stock, acquiring or constructing wireless infrastructure, acquiring land
interests under towers, improving and structurally enhancing our existing wireless infrastructure, and purchasing, repaying or redeeming our debt. The
Company expects to continue to utilize cash flow after dividends in a manner consistent with past practice of investing in acquisitions, the construction of
new sites (including small cell networks), land purchases and the purchase of the Company's own securities, including shares of Common Stock, which we
believe will maximize total stockholder value. We seek to maintain flexibility in our discretionary investments with both net cash provided by operating
activities and cash available from financing capacity. See "Item 2. MD&A—General Overview" and note 13 of our condensed consolidated financial
statements for a discussion of our announcement of our expectation to initiate a quarterly dividend on shares of our Common Stock beginning in the first
quarter of 2014. See also "Item 1A—Risk Factors."

Recent Events

During October 2013, we had certain recent events, which are further discussed in note 13 of our condensed consolidated financial statements and in
"Item 2. MD&A—General Overview," including the Proposed AT&T Transaction and the October Equity Financings.
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Liquidity Position. The following is a summary of our capitalization and liquidity position, after giving effect to the October Equity Financings. See
"Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" and notes 4 and 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional
information regarding our debt.

 September 30, 2013

 As Adjusted

 (In thousands of dollars)
Cash and cash equivalents(a) $ 4,145,660
Undrawn revolving credit facility availability(b) 1,245,000
Debt and other long-term obligations 10,775,454
Total equity 6,924,301

________________
(a) Exclusive of restricted cash.
(b) Availability at any point in time is subject to certain restrictions based on the maintenance of financial covenants contained in our credit agreement. See "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital

Resources—Financing Activities" and "Item 2. MD&A—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt Covenants."

Over the next 12 months:
• We expect that our cash on hand, undrawn revolving credit facility availability and net cash provided by operating activities (net of cash interest

payments) should be sufficient to cover our expected (1) debt service obligations of $115.4 million (principal payments) (2) capital expenditures in
excess of $500 million (sustaining and discretionary), (3) Common Stock dividend payments of approximately $470 million based on shares
currently outstanding, including after taking into account the October Equity Financings, (4) preferred stock dividend payments of approximately
$45 million and (5) the funding of the Proposed AT&T Transaction. As CCIC and CCOC are holding companies, this cash flow from operations is
generated by our operating subsidiaries.

• We have no debt maturities other than principal payments on amortizing debt. We do not anticipate the need to access the capital markets to
refinance our existing debt until at least 2015. See "Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a tabular presentation of
our debt maturities as of September 30, 2013.

Summary Cash Flow Information

 Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2013  2012  Change

 (In thousands of dollars)

Net cash provided by (used for):      
Operating activities $ 838,866  $ 524,458  $ 314,408

Investing activities (433,012)  (1,518,380)  1,085,368

Financing activities (624,998)  1,030,987  (1,655,985)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (3,571)  1,718  (5,289)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (222,715)  $ 38,783  $ (261,498)

Operating Activities

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities for the first nine months of 2013 of $314.4 million, or 60%, from first nine months of 2012,
was primarily due to (1) growth in our core business, including through the 2012 Acquisitions and a net increase of $64.6 million in prepaid rent related to
contributions from customers to reimburse us for capital expenditures, and (2) growth in our service offering, which historically has experienced volatility in
demand. Changes in working capital, particularly changes in deferred site rental receivables, deferred rental revenues, prepaid ground leases, restricted cash
and accrued interest, can have a significant impact on our net cash from operating activities, largely due to the timing of payments and receipts. We expect to
grow our cash flow provided by operating activities in the future (exclusive of movements in working capital) if we continue to realize expected growth in our
core business.
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Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures.

 Nine Months Ended September 30,

 2013  2012  Change

 (In thousands of dollars)

Discretionary:      
Purchases of land interests $ 60,528  $ 86,907  $ (26,379)

Wireless infrastructure construction and improvements 297,776  177,476  120,300

Sustaining 27,178  19,003  8,175

Total $ 385,482  $ 283,386  $ 102,096

Other than sustaining capital expenditures, which have historically been approximately 1% of net revenues annually, but which we expect to be
approximately 2% of net revenues for the year ending December 31, 2014, our capital expenditures are discretionary and are made with respect to activities
which we believe exhibit sufficient potential to improve our long-term total stockholder value. We expect to use in excess of $500 million of our cash flow on
capital expenditures (sustaining and discretionary) for full year 2014, with approximately 40% of our total capital expenditures targeted for our existing
wireless infrastructure related to customer installations and related capacity improvement. Our decisions regarding capital expenditures are influenced by the
availability and cost of capital and expected returns on alternative uses of cash such as payments of dividends and investments.

Capital expenditures for wireless infrastructure improvements typically vary based on (1) the type of work performed on the wireless infrastructure,
with initial installations of a new antenna typically requiring greater capital expenditures than a modification to an existing installation, (2) the existing
capacity of the wireless infrastructure prior to installation, and (3) changes in structural engineering regulations and our internal structural standards.
Wireless infrastructure construction capital expenditures increased from the first nine months of 2012 to the same period in 2013 primarily as a result of
improvements to towers to accommodate new tenant additions, and to a lesser extent additional small cell network builds and improvements.

Acquisitions. See notes 3 and 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our 2012 Acquisitions and the Proposed AT&T
Transaction. See also notes 3 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements in the 2012 Form 10-K for a further discussion of our 2012 Acquisitions.

Financing Activities

We seek to allocate cash generated by our operations in a manner that will enhance total stockholder value, which may include various financing
activities such as (in no particular order) paying dividends on our Common Stock (expected to be approximately $470 million in 2014), paying dividends on
our preferred stock (expected to be approximately $45 million in 2014), purchasing our Common Stock and purchasing or redeeming our debt. See note 13 to
our condensed consolidated financial statements for more information regarding our October Equity Financings and announcement of our expectation to
initiate a Common Stock dividend.

Credit Facility. The proceeds of our revolving credit facility may be used for general corporate purposes, which may include the financing of capital
expenditures, acquisitions and purchases of our Common Stock. Typically, we have used our revolving credit facility to fund discretionary investments and
not for operating activities such as working capital, which are typically funded by net cash provided by operating activities. As of November 1, 2013, there
was $209.0 million outstanding and $1.3 billion in undrawn availability under our revolving credit facility. During the nine months ended September 30,
2013, we repaid a total of $1.1 billion and borrowed $94 million under the 2012 Revolver. See also note 4 of our condensed consolidated financial statements,
regarding the refinancing of our Tranche B Term Loans.

Debt Purchases and Repayments. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a summary of our debt purchases and repayments
during the first nine months of 2013, including the gains (losses) on the redemption and repayment of the remaining 7.75% Secured Notes and the 9% Senior
Notes. The redemption of the 7.75% Secured notes was funded by the release of restricted cash.

Common Stock Activity. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had 292.7 million and 293.2 million common shares outstanding,
respectively. As of November 1, 2013, we had 334.1 million shares of Common Stock outstanding, inclusive of the October Equity Financings. See note 13 of
our condensed consolidated financial statements for more information regarding our October Equity Financings. See "Item 2. MD&A—General Overview" for
a discussion of our expectation to initiate a Common Stock dividend.
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4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. See note 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our 4.50%
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock offering in October 2013. As of November 1, 2013, we had approximately 9.8 million shares of preferred stock
outstanding as a result of the October Equity Financings.

Debt Covenants

We currently have no financial covenant violations, and based upon our current expectations, we believe our operating results will be sufficient to
comply with our debt covenants. Certain of our debt agreements contain ratios relating to financial maintenance, restrictive and cash trap reserve covenants.
See our 2012 Form 10-K for a further discussion of our debt covenants, certain restrictive covenants and factors that are likely to determine our subsidiaries'
ability to comply with current and future debt covenants. There are no significant changes in the ratios since December 31, 2012.

Accounting and Reporting Matters

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are those that we believe (1) are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of
operations and (2) require our most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that
are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting policies and estimates are not intended to be a comprehensive list of our accounting policies and estimates. In
many cases, the accounting treatment of a particular transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP, with no need for management's judgment. In other cases,
management is required to exercise judgment in the application of accounting principles with respect to particular transactions. Our critical accounting
policies and estimates as of December 31, 2012 are described in "Item 7. MD&A" and in note 2 of our consolidated financial statements in our 2012 Form 10-
K. The critical accounting policies and estimates for the first nine months of 2013 have not changed from the critical accounting policies for the year ended
December 31, 2012, although certain additional disclosure is provided below.

Accounting for Acquisitions—Leases

With respect to business combinations that include towers that we lease and operate, such as the T-Mobile towers and the Sprint towers, we evaluate
such agreements to determine treatment as capital or operating leases. The evaluation of such agreements for capital or operating lease treatment includes
consideration of each of the lease classification criteria under ASC 840-10-25, namely (a) the transfer of ownership provisions, (b) the existence of bargain
purchase options, (c) the length of the remaining lease term and (d) the present value of the minimum lease payments. With respect to the business
combinations related to the T-Mobile towers and Sprint towers, the Company determined that the tower leases were capital leases and the underlying land
leases were operating leases based upon the lease term criterion, after considering the fragmentation criteria applicable under ASC 840-10-25 to leases
involving both land and buildings (i.e., towers). The Company determined that the fragmentation criteria was met and the tower leases could be accounted for
as capital leases apart from the land leases, which are accounted for as operating leases, since (a) the fair value of the land in both business combinations was
greater than 25% of the total fair value of the leased property at inception and (b) the tower lease expirations occur beyond 75% of the estimated economic
life of the tower assets.

Impact of Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Adopted and Those Adopted in 2013

No accounting pronouncements adopted during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 had a material impact on our condensed consolidated
financial statements. No new accounting pronouncements issued during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are expected to have a material impact on
our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Our measurement of profit or loss currently used to evaluate the operating performance of our operating segments is earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and accretion, as adjusted, or Adjusted EBITDA. Our definition of Adjusted EBITDA is set forth in "Item 2. MD&A—Results of
Operations—Comparison of Operating Segments." Our measure of Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled measures of other
companies, including companies in the tower sector and other similar providers of wireless infrastructure, and is not a measure of performance calculated in
accordance with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for operating income or loss, net income or loss, net cash
provided by (used for) operating, investing and financing activities or other income statement or cash flow statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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We believe Adjusted EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating our operating performance because:

• it is the primary measure used by our management to evaluate the economic productivity of our operations, including the efficiency of our
employees and the profitability associated with their performance, the realization of contract revenues under our long-term contracts, our ability
to obtain and maintain our customers and our ability to operate our site rental business effectively;

• it is the primary measure of profit and loss used by our management for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, our operating segments;

• it is similar to the measure of current financial performance generally used in our debt covenant calculations;
• although specific definitions may vary, it is widely used in the tower sector and other similar providers of wireless infrastructure to measure

operating performance without regard to items such as depreciation, amortization and accretion which can vary depending upon accounting
methods and the book value of assets; and

• we believe it helps investors meaningfully evaluate and compare the results of our operations (1) from period to period and (2) to our
competitors by removing the impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily
depreciation, amortization and accretion) from our operating results.

Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA:

• with respect to compliance with our debt covenants, which require us to maintain certain financial ratios including, or similar to, Adjusted
EBITDA;

• as the primary measure of profit and loss for purposes of making decisions about allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, our
operating segments;

• as a performance goal in employee annual incentive compensation;
• as a measurement of operating performance because it assists us in comparing our operating performance on a consistent basis as it removes the

impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges from our outstanding debt) and asset base (primarily depreciation, amortization and
accretion) from our operating results;

• in presentations to our board of directors to enable it to have the same measurement of operating performance used by management;
• for planning purposes, including preparation of our annual operating budget;
• as a valuation measure in strategic analyses in connection with the purchase and sale of assets; and
• in determining self-imposed limits on our debt levels, including the evaluation of our leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio.

There are material limitations to using a measure such as Adjusted EBITDA, including the difficulty associated with comparing results among more
than one company, including our competitors, and the inability to analyze certain significant items, including depreciation and interest expense, that directly
affect our net income or loss. Management compensates for these limitations by considering the economic effect of the excluded expense items independently
as well as in connection with their analysis of net income (loss).

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The following section updates "Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" in our 2012 Form 10-K and should be read in
conjunction with that report as well as our condensed consolidated financial statements included in Part 1, Item 1 of this report.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk relates primarily to the impact of interest rate movements on the following:

• the potential refinancing of our existing debt ($10.8 billion and $11.6 billion outstanding at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively);

• our $3.1 billion of floating rate debt at September 30, 2013; which represented approximately 29% of our total debt, as of both September 30,
2013 and as of December 31, 2012; and

• potential future borrowings of incremental debt.

We may refinance our current outstanding indebtedness on or prior to maturity at the then current prevailing market rates which may be higher than our
current stated rates, including as a result of potential future increases in risk free rates. We currently have no interest rate swaps hedging any refinancings.
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Sensitivity Analysis

We manage our exposure to market interest rates on our existing debt by controlling the mix of fixed and floating rate debt. As of September 30, 2013,
we had $3.1 billion of floating rate debt, which included $2.4 billion of debt with a LIBOR floor of 75 basis points per annum. As a result, a hypothetical
unfavorable fluctuation in market interest rates on our existing debt of 1/8 of a percent point over a 12 month period would increase our interest expense by
approximately $1 million when giving effect to our LIBOR floor and would increase our interest expense by approximately $4 million exclusive of the impact
of the LIBOR floor.

Tabular Information

The following table provides information about our market risk related to changes in interest rates. The future principal payments and weighted-average
interest rates are presented as of September 30, 2013. These debt maturities reflect contractual maturity dates and do not consider the impact of the principal
payments that commence if the applicable debt is not repaid or refinanced on or prior to the anticipated repayment dates on the tower revenue notes and the
WCP Securitized Notes (see footnote (c)). The information presented below regarding the variable rate debt is supplementary to our sensitivity analysis
regarding the impact of changes in the LIBOR rates. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our
debt.

 Future Principal Payments and Interest Rates by the Debt Instruments' Contractual Year of Maturity

 2013  2014  2015  2016  2017  Thereafter  Total  Fair Value(a)

 (Dollars in thousands)

Debt:                

Fixed rate(c) $ 14,432  $ 52,245  $ 51,605  $ 50,097 (c) $ 548,524 (c)(e) $ 6,964,037 (c) $ 7,680,940 (c) $ 7,822,551

Average interest rate(b)(c) 4.7%  4.9%  4.9%  6.9% (c) 2.8% (c) 7.8% (c) 7.4% (c)  

Variable rate $ 12,200  $ 61,300  $ 73,800  $ 73,800  $ 597,550 (f) $ 2,268,950  $ 3,087,600  $ 3,058,742

Average interest rate(d) 3.0%  3.0%  3.2%  4.1%  4.6%  6.0%  5.5%   
________________
(a) The fair value of our debt is based on indicative, non-binding quotes from brokers. Quotes from the brokers require judgment and are based on the brokers' interpretation of market information,

including implied credit spreads for similar borrowings on recent trades or bid/ask offers. These fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amount which could be realized in a current
market exchange.

(b) The average interest rate represents the weighted-average stated coupon rate (see footnote (c)).
(c) The impact of principal payments that commence if the applicable debt is not repaid or refinanced on or prior to the anticipated repayment dates are not considered. The January 2010 Tower

Revenue Notes consist of three series of notes with principal amounts of $300.0 million, $350.0 million and $1.3 billion, having anticipated repayments dates in 2015, 2017, and 2020,
respectively. The August 2010 Tower Revenue Notes consist of three series of notes with principal amounts of $250.0 million, $300.0 million and $1.0 billion, having anticipated repayment
dates in 2015, 2017, and 2020, respectively. If the tower revenue notes are not repaid in full by their anticipated repayment dates, the applicable interest rate increases by an additional
approximately 5% per annum and monthly principal payments commence using the Excess Cash Flow of the issuers of the tower revenue notes. The tower revenue notes are presented based
on their contractual maturity dates between 2035 and 2040 and include the impact of an assumed 5% increase in interest rate that would occur following the anticipated repayment dates but
exclude the impact of monthly principal payments that would commence using Excess Cash Flow of the issuers of the tower revenue notes. The full year 2012 Excess Cash Flow of the issuers
was approximately $482 million. If the WCP Securitized Notes with a current face value of $282.9 million are not repaid in full by their anticipated repayment dates in 2015, the applicable
interest rate increases by an additional approximately 5% per annum. If the WCP Securitized Notes are not repaid in full by their rapid amortization date of 2017, monthly principal payments
commence using the Excess Cash Flow of the Issuers of the WCP Securitized Notes. The WCP Securitized Notes are presented based on their contractual maturity dates in 2040. The full year
2012 Excess Cash Flow of Issuers of the WCP Securitized Notes was approximately $17 million. We currently expect to refinance these notes on or prior to the respective anticipated
repayment dates.

(d) The average variable interest rate is based on the currently observable forward rates. The 2012 Revolver and the Tranche A Term Loans bear interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR plus
2.0% to 2.75%, based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio. The Tranche B Term Loans bears interest at a per annum rate equal to LIBOR (with LIBOR subject to a floor of 75 basis points per
annum) plus 2.25% to 2.5%, based on CCOC's total net leverage ratio.

(e) Predominantly consists of a portion of the 2012 secured notes in an aggregate principal amount of $500 million of 2.381% secured notes due 2017.
(f) Predominantly consists of the 2012 Revolver and Tranche A Term Loans. See note 4 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign exchange markets have recently been volatile, and we expect foreign exchange markets to continue to be volatile over the near term. The vast
majority of our foreign currency risk is related to the Australian dollar which is the functional currency of CCAL. CCAL represented 5% of our consolidated
net revenues and 5% of our operating income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013. Over the past year, the Australian dollar has decreased
approximately 10% in value compared to the U.S. dollar. We believe the risk related to our financial instruments (exclusive of inter-company financing
deemed a long-term investment) denominated in Australian dollars should not be material to our financial condition. A hypothetical increase or decrease of
25% in the Australian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate would increase or decrease the fair value of our Australian dollar denominated financial instruments
by approximately $9 million.
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Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company conducted an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Company's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by
this report. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in alerting them in a timely manner to material information relating to the Company required to be included in the Company's
periodic reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the fiscal quarter covered by this report that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See the disclosure in note 8 to our condensed consolidated financial statements set forth in Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which
disclosure is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risk factors below, as well as the other information contained in this document and our 2012 Form 10-K, including the
risk factors discussed in "Item 1A—Risk Factors" in our 2012 Form 10-K.

The Proposed AT&T Transaction may not be completed within the expected timeframe, if at all, and the pendency of the Proposed AT&T Transaction
could adversely affect our business, financial conditions, results of operations and cash flows.

Completion of the Proposed AT&T Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver) of a number of conditions, many of which are beyond our
control and may prevent, delay or otherwise negatively affect its completion. We cannot predict when these conditions will be satisfied, if at all. Failure to
complete the Proposed AT&T Transaction would, and any delay in completing the Proposed AT&T Transaction could, prevent us from realizing the
anticipated benefits from the Proposed AT&T Transaction. Additionally, if we fail to close the Proposed AT&T Transaction and are otherwise in breach of our
obligations, we could be liable for damages. The Proposed AT&T Transaction is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 2013.

Pursuant to the terms of the definitive agreements governing the Proposed AT&T Transaction, fewer than the 9,708 towers currently anticipated to be
included in the Proposed AT&T Transaction may be included as part of the Proposed AT&T Transaction at closing.

On October 28, 2013, we completed the October Equity Financings, which generated net proceeds of approximately $3.9 billion that we expect to use to
fund, in part, the Proposed AT&T Transaction.  The net proceeds from the October Equity Financings are currently held in cash and prime money market
investments.  These investments remain subject to counterparty risks, market volatility and risk of loss, which could adversely affect our liquidity, financial
condition and ability to close the Proposed AT&T Transaction.

Failure to successfully and efficiently integrate the assets from the Proposed AT&T Transaction (the "AT&T Assets") into our operations may adversely
affect our business, operations and financial condition.

The integration of up to approximately 9,700 towers into our operations will be a significant undertaking and will require significant resources, as well
as attention from our management team. In addition, the integration of the AT&T Assets into our operations will require certain one-time costs for tasks such
as tower visits and audits and ground and tenant lease verifications. Additional integration challenges include:

• transitioning all data related to the AT&T Assets, tenants and landlords to a common information technology system;

• successfully marketing space on the AT&T Assets;

• successfully transitioning the ground lease rent payment and the tenant billing and collection processes;

• retaining existing tenants on the AT&T Assets; and

• maintaining our standards, controls, procedures and policies with respect to the AT&T Assets.

Additionally, we may fail to successfully integrate the AT&T Assets or fail to utilize the AT&T Assets to their full capacity. If we are not able to meet
these integration challenges, we may not realize the benefits we expect from the Proposed AT&T Transaction, and our business, financial condition and
results of operations will be adversely affected.

The bankruptcy of certain subsidiaries of AT&T which are lessors or sublessors of towers to one of our subsidiaries, or our failure to exercise the
purchase options available to us pursuant to the Proposed AT&T Transaction, may adversely affect our business.

If the Proposed AT&T Transaction is consummated, a substantial number of our towers relating to the towers that are part of the Proposed AT&T
Transaction will be located on land leased from third parties. At the closing of the Proposed AT&T
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Transaction, one of our subsidiaries will lease or sublease, or otherwise be granted the right to manage and operate, the MPL Towers from bankruptcy remote
subsidiaries of AT&T, in an arrangement similar to the master lease arrangements we have with other carriers with respect to certain existing towers. If one of
these AT&T subsidiaries nevertheless becomes a debtor in a bankruptcy proceeding and is permitted to reject the underlying ground lease, our subsidiary
could lose its interest in the applicable MPL Towers. If our subsidiary loses its interest in the applicable towers or if the applicable ground leases were to be
terminated, we would lose the cash flow derived from the towers on these towers, which may have a material adverse effect on our business. We will have
similar bankruptcy risks with respect to towers that we operate under management agreements.

Under the definitive agreements governing the Proposed AT&T Transaction, we will have the option to purchase certain towers at the end of their
respective lease or sublease terms for aggregate option payments of up to approximately $4.2 billion. We may not have the required available capital to
exercise our rights to purchase these towers at the time these options are required to be exercised. Even if we do have the required available capital, we may
choose not to exercise our rights to purchase some or all of these towers for business or other reasons. In the event that we do not exercise these purchase
rights, or are otherwise unable to acquire an interest that would allow us to continue to operate these towers after their respective lease terms, we will lose the
future cash flows from these towers, which may have a material adverse effect on our business. In the event that we decide to exercise these purchase rights,
the benefits of the acquisition of the applicable towers may not exceed the related costs, which could adversely affect our business.

Future dividend payments to our common stockholders will reduce the availability of our cash on hand available to fund future discretionary investments,
and may result in a need to incur indebtedness or issue equity securities to fund growth opportunities.   In such event, the then current economic, credit
market and equity market conditions may impact the availability and cost of such financing, which could hinder our ability to grow our per share results
of operations.

In October 2013, we announced our intention to initiate a quarterly dividend of $0.35 per share to our common stockholders beginning in the first
quarter of 2014 (an annual aggregate payment of approximately $470 million based on Common Stock outstanding after giving effect to the Common Stock
offering in October 2013). We have also announced our intention to commence the steps necessary to reorganize to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.  As a REIT, we anticipate making distributions to our common stockholders in the form of dividends in the future.

We have historically invested our cash from operations in discretionary investments such as (in no particular order): purchasing our Common Stock,
acquiring or constructing wireless infrastructure, acquiring land interests under towers, improving and structurally enhancing our existing wireless
infrastructure, and purchasing and repaying or redeeming our debt.  Alternative means of accessing cash to fund future discretionary investments similar to
those we have historically made, including through the credit or equity markets, either (1) may not be available to us or (2) may not be accessible by us at
terms that would result in the investment of the net proceeds raised yielding incremental growth in our per share operating results.  As a result, future
dividend payments may hinder our ability to grow our per share results of operations.

Although we have chosen to commence the steps necessary to reorganize as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we may not be successful in
completing the necessary steps to convert to a REIT effective January 1, 2014, or at all.

In September 2013, we announced that we are commencing the steps necessary to reorganize to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
We expect to elect REIT status beginning with the taxable year commencing January 1, 2014. There are implementation and operational complexities to
address in connection with converting to a REIT, including completing certain internal reorganizations. In addition, we intend to adopt certain charter
provisions that implement certain customary REIT-related ownership and transfer restrictions.

The timing and outcome of these matters may be outside our control. Further, changes in legislation or the federal tax rules could adversely impact our
ability to convert to a REIT or the attractiveness of converting to a REIT. Similarly, even if we are able to satisfy the existing REIT requirements, the tax
laws, regulations and interpretations governing REITs may change at any time in ways that could be disadvantageous to us. Recent press reports have
indicated that the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS") has decided to study the current legal standards it uses to define "real estate" for purposes of the REIT
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code"). It is our understanding that the IRS intends to determine if any changes or refinements should be made
to those current legal standards. We can provide no assurance that the results of this IRS study will not affect our ability to qualify to be taxed as a REIT.

Even if the transactions necessary to implement REIT conversion are effected, our board of directors may decide not to elect REIT status, or to delay
such election, if it determines in its sole discretion that such an election is not in the best interests of our stockholders. We can provide no assurance as to if or
when conversion to a REIT will be successful. Furthermore, if we do convert, the effective date of the REIT conversion could be delayed beyond January 1,
2014.
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If we fail to complete the necessary steps to qualify as a REIT or fail to remain qualified as a REIT, we would be subject to tax at corporate income tax
rates and would not be able to deduct dividends to stockholders when computing our taxable income, which would reduce the amount of cash available
for the declaration and payment of dividends to our stockholders.

We are currently not treated as a REIT for tax purposes. Our board of directors has authorized us to commence the steps necessary to elect to be taxed as
a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, effective for the taxable year beginning January 1, 2014, and we expect to make such election for such year.

We have received opinions from special REIT tax counsel ("Special Tax Counsel") to the effect that we will be organized in conformity with the
requirements for qualification and taxation as a REIT under the Code, and that our proposed method of operation will enable us to meet the requirements for
qualification and taxation as a REIT commencing with our taxable year ending December 31, 2014. It must be emphasized that the opinions of Special Tax
Counsel are based on various assumptions relating to our organization and operation, and are conditioned upon fact-based representations and covenants
made by our management regarding our organization, assets, and income, and the present and future conduct of our business operations. While we intend to
operate so that we will qualify as a REIT, given the highly complex nature of the rules governing REITs, the ongoing importance of factual determinations,
and the possibility of future changes in our circumstances, no assurance can be given by Special Tax Counsel or by us that we will qualify as a REIT for any
particular year. The opinions we received are each expressed as of the date issued. Special Tax Counsel will have no obligation to advise us or our
stockholders of any subsequent change in the matters stated, represented or assumed, or of any subsequent change in the applicable law. You should be aware
that opinions of counsel are not binding on the IRS, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not challenge the conclusions set forth in such opinions.

If, in any taxable year, we fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT and are not entitled to relief under the Code, then:

• we will not be allowed a deduction for dividends to stockholders in computing our taxable income;

• we will be subject to federal and state income tax, including any applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular corporate
rates; and

• if such failure to qualify occurs after the effective date of our election to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we would be
disqualified from re-electing REIT status for the four taxable years following the year during which we were so disqualified.

Although we may have federal net operating losses available to reduce any such taxable income, to the extent our federal net operating losses have been
utilized or are otherwise unavailable, any such corporate tax liability could be substantial, would reduce the amount of cash available for other purposes and
might necessitate the borrowing of additional funds or the liquidation of some investments to pay any additional tax liability. Accordingly, funds available for
investment would be reduced.

Qualifying to be taxed as a REIT involves highly technical and complex provisions of the Code, and violations of these provisions could jeopardize our
qualification as a REIT.

REIT qualification involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the Code to our operations, as well as various factual
determinations concerning matters and circumstances not entirely within our control. There are limited judicial or administrative interpretations of these
provisions. Although we plan to commence the steps necessary to operate in a manner that will allow us to qualify to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal
income tax purposes, and believe that, as of January 1, 2014, we will be organized, and as of such date we expect to operate, in such a manner as to qualify
for taxation as a REIT, we cannot assure you that we will so qualify or remain so qualified.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, certain of our business activities will be subject to corporate level income tax and foreign taxes, which will reduce our cash
flows, and we will have potential deferred and contingent tax liabilities.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain federal, state, local and foreign taxes on our income and assets, including
alternative minimum taxes, taxes on any undistributed income, and state, local or foreign income, franchise, property and transfer taxes. In addition, we could
in certain circumstances be required to pay an excise or penalty tax, which could be significant in amount, in order to utilize one or more relief provisions
under the Code to maintain qualification for taxation as a REIT.

Our small cells will initially be conducted through one or more wholly owned TRSs. Additionally, we intend to include in TRSs our tower operations in
Australia, and may include certain other assets and operations. Those TRS assets and operations would continue to be subject, as applicable, to federal and
state corporate income taxes and to foreign taxes in the jurisdictions in
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which such assets and operations are located. Our foreign assets and operations most likely will be subject to foreign income taxes in the jurisdictions in
which such assets and operations are located, regardless of whether they are included in a TRS or not. Any of these taxes would decrease our earnings and our
available cash.

Following an election to be taxed as a REIT, we will also be subject to a federal corporate level tax at the highest regular corporate rate (currently 35%)
on all or a portion of the gain recognized from a sale of assets occurring within a specified period (generally, ten years) after the effective date of such
election, to the extent of the built-in-gain in those assets based on the fair market value of those assets on the effective date of the REIT election in excess of
our then tax basis. If we elect REIT status for the taxable year commencing January 1, 2014, such tax on subsequently sold assets will be based on the fair
market value and built-in-gain of those assets as of January 1, 2014. Gain from a sale of an asset occurring after the specified period ends will not be subject
to this corporate level tax. Any recognized built-in gain will retain its character as ordinary income or capital gain and will be taken into account in
determining REIT taxable income and our distribution requirement for the year such gain is recognized. Any tax on the recognized built-in gain will reduce
REIT taxable income. We may choose not to sell in a taxable transaction appreciated assets that we might otherwise sell during the period in which the built-
in gain tax applies in order to avoid the built-in gain tax. However, there can be no assurance that such a taxable transaction will not occur. If we sell such
assets in a taxable transaction, the amount of corporate tax that we will pay will vary depending on the actual amount of net built-in gain or loss present in
those assets as of the time we became a REIT. The amount of tax could be significant.

REIT dividend requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our Common Stock. To qualify and be taxed as a REIT, we will generally be required to
distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income after the utilization of any available net operating loss carryforward (determined without regard to the
dividends paid deduction and excluding net capital gain) each year to our stockholders. Our determination as to the timing and amount of future dividends
following the effective date of an election to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes will be based on a number of factors, including
investment opportunities around our core business and the availability of our existing federal net operating losses of approximately $2.7 billion to reduce our
REIT taxable income. We do not expect to make a "purging" dividend prior to our REIT conversion. We currently expect to begin paying a regular quarterly
dividend commencing in the first quarter of 2014, subject to the successful completion and financing of the Proposed AT&T Transaction. Any such dividends,
however, are subject to the determination of our board of directors based on then-current and anticipated future conditions, including our earnings, net cash
provided by operating activities, capital requirements, financial condition, our relative market capitalization, our existing federal net operating losses and
other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. See note 13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

To the extent that we satisfy the 90% distribution requirement, but distribute less than 100% of our REIT taxable income (after the application of
available net operating losses, if any), we will be subject to federal corporate income tax on our undistributed taxable income. In addition, we will be subject
to a 4% nondeductible excise tax if the actual amount that we pay out to our stockholders for a calendar year is less than a minimum amount specified under
the Code.

From time to time, we may generate taxable income greater than our cash flow as a result of differences in timing between the recognition of taxable
income and the actual receipt of cash or the effect of nondeductible capital expenditures, the creation of reserves or required debt or amortization payments. If
we do not have other funds available in these situations, we could be required to borrow funds on unfavorable terms, sell assets at disadvantageous prices or
distribute amounts that would otherwise be invested in future acquisitions to make distributions sufficient to enable us to pay out enough of our taxable
income to satisfy the REIT dividend requirement and to avoid corporate income tax and the 4% excise tax in a particular year. These alternatives could
increase our costs or reduce our equity. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to grow, which could adversely affect the value
of our Common Stock. Furthermore, the REIT dividend requirements may increase the financing we need to fund capital expenditures, future growth and
expansion initiatives, which would increase our total leverage.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our flexibility or cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for tax purposes, we will need to continually satisfy tests concerning, among other things, the sources of our income, the nature
and diversification of our assets, the amounts we dividend to our stockholders and the ownership of our capital stock. Thus, compliance with these tests will
require us to refrain from certain activities and may hinder our ability to make certain attractive investments, including the purchase of non-qualifying assets,
the expansion of non-real estate activities, and investments in the businesses to be conducted by our TRSs, and to that extent limit our opportunities and our
flexibility to change our business strategy. Furthermore, acquisition opportunities in domestic and international markets may be adversely affected if we need
or require the target company to comply with some REIT requirements prior to completing any such acquisition. In addition, a conversion to a REIT may
result in investor pressures not to pursue growth opportunities that are not immediately accretive.
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In addition, if, following the effective date of an election to be taxed as a REIT, we fail to comply with certain asset ownership tests, at the end of any
calendar quarter, we must correct the failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid
losing our REIT qualification. As a result, we may be required to liquidate assets in adverse market conditions or forgo otherwise attractive investments.
These actions may reduce our income and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for the reduced tax rates available for some dividends.

Dividends payable to domestic stockholders that are individuals, trusts, and estates are generally taxed at reduced tax rates. Dividends payable by
REITs, however, generally are not eligible for the reduced rates. The more favorable rates applicable to regular corporate dividends could cause investors who
are individuals, trusts and estates to perceive investments in REITs to be relatively less attractive than investments in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that
pay dividends, which could adversely affect the value of the stock of REITs, including our Common Stock. In addition, the relative attractiveness of real
estate in general may be adversely affected by the favorable tax treatment given to non-REIT corporate dividends, which could affect the value of our real
estate assets negatively.

Covenants specified in our existing and future debt instruments may limit our ability to make required REIT distributions.

Our revolving credit facility, our term loan and our existing senior notes contain, and future agreements governing our financing activities may contain,
covenants that could limit our ability to declare and pay dividends to stockholders. If, following the effective date of an election to be taxed as a REIT, these
limits prevent us from satisfying our REIT distribution requirements, we could fail to qualify for taxation as a REIT. If these limits do not jeopardize our
qualification for taxation as a REIT but do nevertheless prevent us from distributing 100% of our REIT taxable income, we will be subject to federal
corporate income tax, and potentially a nondeductible excise tax, on the retained amounts.

If we fail to pay scheduled dividends on the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, in cash, Common Stock or any combination of cash and
Common Stock, we will be prohibited from paying dividends on our Common Stock, which may jeopardize our status as a REIT.

The terms of the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock provide that, unless accumulated dividends have been paid or set aside for payment on
all outstanding 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for all past dividend periods, no dividends may be declared or paid on our Common Stock. If
that were to occur, the inability to pay dividends on our Common Stock might jeopardize our status as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes. See note
13 to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

We expect to adopt certain REIT-related ownership limitations and transfer restrictions with respect to our capital stock.

In order for us to qualify as a REIT under the Code, shares of our capital stock must be owned by 100 or more persons during at least 335 days of a
taxable year of 12 months or during a proportionate part of a shorter taxable year (other than the first year for which an election to be taxed as a REIT has
been made). Also, not more than 50% of the value of the outstanding shares of our capital stock may be owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer
individuals (as defined in the Code to include certain entities such as private foundations) during the last half of a taxable year (other than the first year for
which an election to be taxed as a REIT has been made). To qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy other requirements as well.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation ("Charter") does not currently contain REIT-related limitations on the ownership and
restrictions on the transfer of our capital stock. During 2014 (and following the effective date of our election to be taxed as a REIT), we intend to pursue the
adoption (which may be effected by merger or otherwise) of customary REIT-related ownership limitations and transfer restrictions in our Charter (or the
certificate of incorporation or other equivalent governing document of a successor entity) in order to protect our ability to remain qualified as a REIT. The
actual provisions that we ultimately propose will depend on a number of considerations, and those proposed provisions will be subject to approval by our
board of directors and, ultimately, a vote of our common stockholders. In general, we expect that the proposed provisions will provide that, among other
things and subject to certain exceptions, no person may own, or be deemed to own by virtue of the attribution provisions of the Code, more than 9.8%, by
value or number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock, or 9.8% in aggregate value of all classes and
series of our capital stock. In addition, we expect our Charter will provide that no person may beneficially own shares of our capital stock to the extent such
ownership would cause us to fail to qualify as a "domestically controlled qualified investment entity." We expect that the proposed provisions will provide
that in the event any transfer of shares of stock or other event would result in a person ("Intended Transferee") beneficially or constructively owning shares
in excess of an ownership limit or that would otherwise result in our disqualification as a REIT or cause us to fail to qualify as a "domestically controlled
qualified investment entity," the number of shares that would cause a violation of the applicable limit, referred to as the "excess shares," will be
automatically transferred to a trust for
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the benefit of a charitable organization selected by our board of directors. If a transfer to a trust would not avoid a violation of the ownership limitation
provisions for some reason, we expect our proposed provisions to provide that such transfer of the excess shares to the Intended Transferee will be null and
void and of no force or effect.

We expect our ownership limitations and transfer restrictions will provide that within a certain number of days after receiving notice of the transfer of
excess shares to the charitable trust, the trustee of the trust will be required to sell the excess shares to a person or entity who could own such shares without
violating the applicable ownership limitation provision. The trustee, upon a sale of these excess shares, would distribute to the Intended Transferee an
amount equal to the lesser of the price paid by the Intended Transferee for the excess shares or the net sales proceeds received by the trust for the excess
shares. If the excess shares were a gift or were not a transfer for value, we anticipate that the provisions will provide that the trustee will distribute to the
Intended Transferee an amount equal to the lesser of the fair market value of the excess shares as of the date of the automatic transfer to the trust or the sales
proceeds received by the trust for the excess shares. Proceeds in excess of the amount distributable to the Intended Transferee would be distributed to the
charitable beneficiary.

In addition, we expect that excess shares held in the trust would be deemed to have been offered for sale to us, or our designee, at a price per share
equal to the lesser of (i) the price per share in the transaction that resulted in such transfer to the trust (or, in the case of a gift or other transaction not for
value, the market price at the time of the gift or other transaction) and (ii) the market price on the date we, or our designee, accept the offer. In such case, we
would have the right to accept such offer until the trustee has sold the shares in the trust.

To the extent we propose, and our common stockholders approve the adoption of, these types of customary REIT-related ownership limitations and
transfer restrictions, such ownership limitations and transfer restrictions would be applicable to all classes and series of our capital stock, and such provisions
could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a takeover or other transaction in which stockholders might receive a premium for their shares over
the then prevailing market price or which stockholders might believe to be otherwise in their best interest.

We expect any such ownership limitations and transfer restrictions will provide that our board of directors may, in its sole discretion, increase the 9.8%
ownership limitation referred to above with respect to one or more stockholders, subject to such terms, conditions, representations and undertakings as our
board of directors deems appropriate.

Our use of TRSs may cause us to fail to qualify as a REIT.

Under the Code, no more than 25% of the value of the assets of a REIT may be represented by securities of one or more TRSs and other non-qualifying
assets. Following the effective date of an election to be taxed as a REIT, this limitation may affect our ability to make additional investments in non-REIT
qualifying operations or assets, or in any operations held through TRSs. The net income of our TRSs is not required to be distributed to us, and income that is
not distributed to us generally will not be subject to the REIT income distribution requirement. However, there may be limitations on our ability to
accumulate earnings in our TRSs and the accumulation or reinvestment of significant earnings in our TRSs could result in adverse tax treatment. In particular,
if the accumulation of cash in our TRSs causes the fair market value of our securities in our TRSs and certain other non-qualifying assets to exceed 25% of
the fair market value of our assets at the end of any quarter, then we may fail to qualify as a REIT.

The current market price of our Common Stock may not be indicative of the market price of our shares of Common Stock following the potential REIT
conversion.

Our current share price may not be indicative of how the market will value our Common Stock following an election to be taxed as a REIT because of
the effect of the change in our organization from a taxable subchapter C corporation to a REIT and subsequent changes in our dividend policy. See note 13 to
our condensed consolidated financial statements. Our Common Stock price may not necessarily take into account these effects, and our Common Stock price
after the REIT conversion could be lower than the current price. Furthermore, one of the factors that may influence the price of our Common Stock
following our election to be taxed as a REIT will be the yield from dividends on shares of our Common Stock compared to yields on other financial
instruments. If, for example, an increase in market interest rates results in higher yields on other financial instruments, the market price of our Common
Stock could be adversely affected. The market price of our Common Stock following our election to be taxed as a REIT will also be affected by general
market conditions (as the price of our Common Stock currently is) and will be potentially affected by the economic and market perception of REIT
securities.
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We have no experience operating as a REIT. Our failure to successfully operate as a REIT may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations, cash flow, the per share trading price of our Common Stock, and our ability to satisfy debt service obligations.

We have no operating history as a REIT. In addition, our senior management team has no experience operating a REIT. We cannot assure you that our
past experience will be sufficient to operate our company successfully as a REIT. In connection with our planned REIT conversion, we will be required to
implement substantial control systems and procedures in order to maintain the possibility of qualifying to be taxed as a REIT. As a result, we will incur
significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we have not previously incurred, and our management and other personnel will need to devote a
substantial amount of time to comply with these rules and regulations and establish the corporate infrastructure and controls demanded of a REIT. These costs
and time commitments could be substantially more than we currently expect. Therefore, our historical combined consolidated financial statements may not be
indicative of our future costs and performance as a REIT.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table summarizes information with respect to purchase of our equity securities during the third quarter of 2013:

Period  
Total Number of Shares

Purchased  
Average Price Paid per

Share  

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs  

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Value) of Shares that

May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Programs

  (In thousands)       
July 1 - July 31, 2013  —  $ —  —  —

August 1 - August 31, 2013  1  69.57  —  —

September 1 - September 30, 2013  4  70.55  —  —

Total  5  $ 70.44  —  —

We paid $0.4 million in cash to effect these purchases.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

The list of exhibits set forth in the accompanying Exhibit Index is incorporated by reference into this Item 6.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

  CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.
    
Date: November 8, 2013  By: /s/ Jay A. Brown
    Jay A. Brown
    Senior Vice President,
    Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
    (Principal Financial Officer)

    
Date: November 8, 2013  By: /s/ Rob A. Fisher
    Rob A. Fisher
    Vice President and Controller
    (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit No.  Description

 
3.1

 
Composite Certificate of Incorporation of Crown Castle International Corp.

(a) 3.2
 

Composite By-laws of Crown Castle International Corp.

(d) 3.3
 

Certificate of Designations of the 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, of Crown Castle International Corp., filed
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and effective October 28, 2013

(d) 3.4
 

Certificate of Elimination of Certificate of Designations of the 6.25% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock of Crown Castle
International Corp., dated August 2, 2000

(d) 3.5
 

Certificate of Elimination of Certificate of Designation of the Series A Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock of Crown Castle
International Corp., dated August 21, 1998, as amended on August 2, 2000

(b) 10.1

 

Incremental Facility Amendment No. 2 dated as of August 22, 2013, among the Company, the Borrower, certain subsidiaries of the
Borrower, the lenders party thereto, and The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, as administrative agent, to the Credit Agreement dated as of
January 31, 2012, by and among the Company, the Borrower, the lenders and issuing banks from time to time party thereto, The Royal
Bank of Scotland plc, as administrative agent, and Morgan Stanley Senior Funding Inc., as co-documentation agent.

(c) 10.2  Master Agreement dated as of October 18, 2013, among AT&T Inc. and Crown Castle International Corp.

(c) 10.3  Form of Master Prepaid Lease

(c) 10.4  Form of Management Agreement

(c) 10.5  Form of MPL Site Master Lease Agreement

(c) 10.6  Form of Sale Site Master Lease Agreement

 31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 101.INS  XBRL Instance Document

 101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

 101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

 101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

 101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

 101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
________________
(a) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form S-3 (Registration No. 333-180526) on April 3, 2012.
(b) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on August 22, 2013.
(c) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on October 21, 2013.
(d) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit previously filed by the Registrant on Form 8-K (File No. 001-16441) on October 28, 2013.
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Exhibit 3.1

COMPOSITE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

(giving effect to all amendments through October 28, 2013)

The present name of the corporation is Crown Castle International Corp. The corporation was originally incorporated on April 20, 1995, under the
name “Castle Tower Holding Corp.” by the filing of its original Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which
certificate was restated on August 21, 1998 (such restated certificate, as subsequently amended, the “Restated Certificate of Incorporation”). This Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation, which both restates and further amends the provisions of the corporation’s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 242 and 245 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The
Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation is hereby amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLE I

Name

The name of the corporation (which is hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation”) is:

Crown Castle International Corp.

ARTICLE II

Address

The address of the Corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street in the City of
Wilmington, County of New Castle. The name of the Corporation’s registered agent at such address is The Corporation Trust Company.

ARTICLE III

Purpose

The purpose of the Corporation shall be to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized and incorporated under
the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

ARTICLE IV

Capitalization

The total number of shares of stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is six hundred twenty million (620,000,000), consisting of
twenty million (20,000,000) shares of Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (hereinafter referred to as “Preferred Stock”), and six hundred million
(600,000,000) shares of Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share (hereinafter referred to as “Common Stock”).

The Corporation shall be entitled to treat the person in whose name any share of its stock is registered as the owner thereof for all purposes and
shall not be bound to recognize any equitable or other claim to, or interest in, such share on the part of any other person, whether or not the Corporation shall
have notice thereof, except as expressly provided by applicable law.

A. Undesignated Preferred Stock. The undesignated Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series. The Board of
Directors of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Board of Directors”) is hereby authorized to provide for the issuance of shares of Preferred Stock
in series and, by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the
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State of Delaware (hereinafter referred to as a “Preferred Stock Designation”), to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such
series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof.
The authority of the Board of Directors with respect to each series shall include, but not be limited to, determination of the following:

1. The designation of the series, which may be by distinguishing number, letter or title.

2. The number of shares of the series, which number the Board of Directors may thereafter (except where otherwise provided in the Preferred
Stock Designation) increase or decrease (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding).

3. The amounts payable on, and the preferences, if any, of shares of the series in respect of dividends, and whether such dividends, if any, shall be
cumulative or noncumulative.

4. Dates at which dividends, if any, shall be payable.

5. The redemption rights and price or prices, if any, for shares of the series.

6. The terms and amount of any sinking fund provided for the purchase or redemption of shares of the series.

7. The amounts payable on, and the preferences, if any, of shares of the series in the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation.

8. Whether the shares of the series shall be convertible into or exchangeable for shares of any other class or series, or any other security, of the
Corporation or any other corporation, and, if so, the specification of such other class or series or such other security, the conversion or exchange price or
prices or rate or rates, any adjustments thereof, the date or dates at which such shares shall be convertible or exchangeable and all other terms and conditions
upon which such conversion or exchange may be made.

9. Restrictions on the issuance of shares of the same series or of any other class or series.

10. The voting rights, if any, of the holders of shares of the series.

B. Common Stock.

1. General. The holders of shares of Common Stock shall be entitled to one vote for each such share upon all questions presented to the
stockholders. The holders of the shares of Common Stock shall at all times, except as otherwise provided in this Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or as required by applicable law, vote together with the holders of any other class or series of stock of the Corporation accorded such general
voting rights, as one class.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, except as otherwise required by applicable law, the holders of shares of Common Stock shall not be entitled to
vote on any amendment to this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (including any Preferred Stock Designation) that relates solely to the terms
of one or more outstanding series of Preferred Stock if the holders of such affected series are entitled, either separately or together with the holders of one or
more other such series, to vote thereon pursuant to this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (including any Preferred Stock Designation) or
pursuant to the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

2. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
after payment of all preferential amounts required to be paid to the holders of Preferred Stock, the holders of shares of Common Stock then outstanding shall
share ratably in any distribution of the remaining assets and funds of the Corporation in proportion to the respective amounts which would otherwise be
payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full.

ARTICLE V

By-laws

In furtherance of, and not in limitation of, the powers conferred by law and subject to the other provisions of this Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation and subject to the Amended and Restated By-laws of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “By-laws”), the Board of
Directors is expressly authorized and empowered:

(1) to adopt, amend or repeal the By-laws; provided, however, that the By-laws adopted by the Board of Directors under the powers hereby
conferred may be amended or repealed by the Board of Directors or by the stockholders having voting power with respect thereto; provided, further,
that the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of the then outstanding Voting Stock (as hereinafter defined), voting together
as a single class, shall be required in order for the stockholders to alter, amend or repeal any provision of the By-laws or to adopt any additional By-law;
and

(2) from time to time to determine whether and to what extent, and at what times and places, and under what conditions and regulations, the
accounts and books of the Corporation, or any of them, shall be open to inspection of stockholders; and, except as so determined or as expressly
provided in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or in any Preferred Stock Designation, no stockholder shall have any right to
inspect any account, book or document of the Corporation other than such rights as may be conferred by applicable law.

The Corporation may in its By-laws confer powers upon the Board of Directors in addition to the foregoing and in addition to the powers and
authorities expressly conferred upon the Board of Directors by applicable law.

ARTICLE VI

Action of Stockholders

Except as otherwise specified with respect to any series of Preferred Stock, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the
Corporation must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation and may not be effected by any consent in writing
in lieu of a meeting of such stockholders.

ARTICLE VII



Board of Directors

Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect additional Directors of the Corporation (hereinafter referred to as
“Directors”) under specified circumstances, the number of Directors shall initially be 12 and may hereafter be changed from time to time solely by the Board
of Directors.

Unless and except to the extent that the By-laws shall so require, the election of Directors need not be by written ballot.

Subject to the last two sentences of this paragraph, the Directors, other than those Directors who may be elected by the holders of any series of
Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock Directors”), shall be divided into three classes, as nearly equal in number as possible, and members of each class shall
hold office until their successors are elected and qualified. At each annual meeting of the stockholders of the Corporation held in 2011, 2012 and 2013,
Directors (other than Preferred Stock Directors) elected by the stockholders shall have been elected at such meeting to hold office for a term expiring at the
third succeeding annual meeting of stockholders after their election, with each Director to hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected
and qualified. Commencing with the third annual meeting of stockholders following the 2013 annual meeting, the foregoing classification of the Board of
Directors shall cease. At each annual meeting of stockholders commencing with the 2014 annual meeting, Directors (other than Preferred Stock Directors)
elected by the stockholders shall be elected at such meeting to hold office for a term expiring at the first succeeding annual meeting of stockholders after their
election, with each Director to hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and qualified.

Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock, vacancies resulting from death, resignation, retirement, disqualification,
removal from office or other cause, and newly created Directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of Directors, may be filled only by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors. Each such Director so chosen shall hold
office for a term expiring (1) at the next annual meeting of stockholders at which the term of office of the class to which he or she has been elected expires or
(2) following the cessation of the classification of the Board of Directors in accordance with the immediately preceding paragraph, at the next annual meeting
of stockholders held after his or her election as Director, and, in each case, until such Director’s successor shall have been duly elected and qualified. No
decrease in the number of authorized Directors constituting the Board of Directors shall shorten the term of any incumbent Director.

Except for such additional Directors, if any, as are elected by the holders of any series of Preferred Stock, any Director may be removed from
office at any time, with or without cause only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least
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80% of the voting power of the then outstanding Voting Stock, voting together as a single class, except that any Director serving in a class of Directors elected
for a term expiring at the third annual meeting of stockholders following the election of such class of Directors may be removed only for cause by the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of the then outstanding Voting Stock, voting together as a single class.

ARTICLE VIII

Indemnification

Each person who is or was a Director or officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation to the fullest extent permitted by the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware as the same exists or may hereafter be amended or any other applicable laws as presently or hereafter in
effect. The Corporation may, by action of the Board of Directors, provide indemnification to other employees and agents of the Corporation, to directors,
officers, employees or agents of a subsidiary, and to each person serving as a director, officer, partner, member, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, at the request of the Corporation, with the same scope and effect as the
foregoing indemnification of Directors and officers of the Corporation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall be required to indemnify any
person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was
authorized by the Board of Directors or is a proceeding to enforce such person’s claim to indemnification pursuant to the rights granted by this Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation or otherwise by the Corporation. Without limiting the generality of the effect of the foregoing, the Corporation may enter
into one or more agreements with any person which provide for indemnification greater or different than that provided in this Article VIII. Any amendment or
repeal of this Article VIII shall not adversely affect any right or protection existing hereunder in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to such
amendment or repeal.

ARTICLE IX

Directors’ Liability

A Director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary
duty as a Director, except for liability (1) for any breach of the Director’s duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders, (2) for acts or omissions not in
good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (3) under Section 174 of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware, or (4) for any transaction from which the Director derived an improper personal benefit. Any amendment or repeal of this Article IX shall not
adversely affect any right or protection of a Director of the Corporation existing hereunder in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to such
amendment or repeal.

If the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware shall be amended, to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the
liability of Directors, then a Director of the Corporation, in addition to the circumstances in which he is not liable immediately prior to such amendment, shall
be free of liability to the fullest extent permitted by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as so amended.

ARTICLE X

Stockholder Rights Issuances

The Board of Directors is hereby authorized to create and issue, whether or not in connection with the issuance and sale of any of its stock or
other securities or property, rights entitling the holders of securities of the Corporation to purchase from the Corporation shares of stock or other securities of
the Corporation or any other corporation, recognizing that, under certain circumstances, the creation and issuance of such rights could have the effect of
discouraging third parties from seeking, or impairing their ability to seek, to acquire a significant portion of the outstanding securities of the Corporation, to
engage in any transaction which might result in a change of control of the Corporation or to enter into any agreement, arrangement or understanding with
another party to accomplish the foregoing or for the purpose of acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of any securities of the Corporation. The times at
which and the terms upon which such rights are to be issued will be determined by the Board of Directors and set forth in the contracts or instruments that
evidence such rights. The authority of the Board of Directors with respect to such rights shall include, but not be limited to, determination of the following:

(A) The initial purchase price per share or other unit of the stock or other securities or property to be purchased upon exercise of such rights.
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(B) Provisions relating to the times at which and the circumstances under which such rights may be exercised or sold or otherwise transferred,
either together with or separately from, any other stock or other securities of the Corporation.

(C) Provisions which adjust the number or exercise price of such rights or amount or nature of the stock or other securities or property receivable
upon exercise of such rights in the event of a combination, split or recapitalization of any stock of the Corporation, a change in ownership of the
Corporation’s stock or other securities or a reorganization, merger, consolidation, sale of assets or other occurrence relating to the Corporation or any
stock of the Corporation, and provisions restricting the ability of the Corporation to enter into any such transaction absent an assumption by the other
party or parties thereto of the obligations of the Corporation under such rights.

(D) Provisions which deny the holder of the specified percentage of the outstanding stock or other securities of the Corporation the right to
exercise such rights and/or cause the rights held by such holder to become void.

(E) Provisions which permit the Corporation to redeem or exchange such rights, which redemption or exchange may be within the sole discretion
of the Board of Directors, if the Board of Directors reserves such right to itself.

(F) The appointment of the rights agent with respect to such rights.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary, in addition to any other vote
required by applicable law, the affirmative vote of at least 80% of the voting power of the then outstanding Voting Stock, voting together as a single class,
shall be required to amend, repeal or adopt any provision inconsistent with this Article X.

ARTICLE XI

Amendments

Except as may be expressly provided in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Corporation reserves the right at any time
and from time to time to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or a Preferred
Stock Designation, and any other provisions authorized by the laws of the State of Delaware at the time in force may be added or inserted, in the manner now
or hereafter prescribed herein or by applicable law, and all rights, preferences and privileges of whatsoever nature conferred upon stockholders, Directors or
any other persons whomsoever by and pursuant to this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in its present form or as hereafter amended are
granted subject to the right reserved in this Article XI; provided, however, that any amendment or repeal of Article VIII or Article IX of this Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection existing thereunder in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to
such amendment, alteration, change or repeal, and provided further that no Preferred Stock Designation shall be amended after the issuance of any shares of
series of Preferred Stock created thereby, except in accordance with the terms of such Preferred Stock Designation and the requirements of applicable law.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to the contrary, and in addition to approval by the
Board of Directors and any other vote of stockholders required by applicable law, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the voting power of the
then outstanding Voting Stock, voting together as a single class, shall be required to amend, repeal or adopt any provision inconsistent with paragraph (1) of
Article V, Article VI, Article VII, Article X or this second paragraph of this Article XI. For the purposes of this Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation, “Voting Stock” shall mean the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in a general vote of stockholders of the
Corporation as a single class with shares of Common Stock.

4



CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
OF

4.50% MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES A
OF

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

(Pursuant to Section 151 of the

General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware)

Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), hereby certifies that, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 103, 141
and 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, (a) on October 17, 2013 the board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board of
Directors”), pursuant to authority conferred upon the Board of Directors by the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation (as
such may be amended, modified or restated from time to time, the “Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation” or “Charter”), appointed a
special committee (the “Pricing Committee”) and authorized the Pricing Committee to create, designate, authorize and provide for the issuance of shares of a
new series of the Corporation’s undesignated preferred stock, to be designated the “4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A”, and to establish
the number of shares to be included in such series, and to fix the powers, preferences and rights of the shares of such series and the qualifications, limitations
and restrictions thereof; and (b) on October 22, 2013, the Pricing Committee adopted the resolution set forth immediately below, which resolution is now, and
at all times since its date of adoption, has been in full force and effect:

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the provisions of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (which authorizes 20,000,000 shares of
Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Preferred Stock”)), and the authority vested in the Board of Directors, a series of Preferred Stock be, and it
hereby is, created, and that the designation and number of shares of such series, and the voting and other powers, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other rights, and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof are as set forth in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
and this Certificate of Designations, as it may be amended from time to time (the “Certificate of Designations”) as follows:

Part 1. Designation and Number of Shares. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, there is hereby created out of the
authorized and unissued shares of Preferred Stock of the Corporation a series of Preferred Stock consisting of 9,775,000 shares designated as the “4.50%
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A” (the “Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock”). Such number of shares may be decreased by resolution
of the Board of Directors, subject to the terms and conditions hereof and the requirements of applicable law; provided that no decrease shall reduce the
number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock to a number less than the number of such shares then outstanding.

Part 2. Standard Provisions. The Standard Provisions contained in Annex A attached hereto are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety and
shall be deemed to be a part of this Certificate of Designations to the same extent as if such provisions had been set forth in full herein.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Designations to be signed by E. Blake Hawk, its Executive Vice President
and General Counsel, this 28th day of October, 2013.

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

By:    /s/ E. Blake Hawk        

Name:     E. Blake Hawk

Title:     Executive Vice President and
General Counsel    
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ANNEX A

STANDARD PROVISIONS

SECTION 1. General Matters; Ranking. Each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be identical in all
respects to every other share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. The Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, with respect to dividend
rights and distribution rights upon the liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, shall rank (i) senior to each class or series of Junior
Stock, (ii) on parity with each class or series of Parity Stock, (iii) junior to each class or series of Senior Stock and (iv) junior to the Corporation’s
existing and future indebtedness.
SECTION 2. Standard Definitions. As used herein with respect to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock:

“Accumulated Dividend Amount” means, with respect to any Fundamental Change Conversion, the aggregate amount of undeclared, accumulated
and unpaid dividends, if any, for Dividend Periods prior to the Effective Date for the relevant Fundamental Change, including for the partial Dividend Period,
if any, from, and including, the Dividend Payment Date immediately preceding such Effective Date to, but excluding, such Effective Date, subject to the
proviso in Section 9(a).

“ADRs” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14.

“Agent Members” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 22.

“Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.

“Applicable Market Value” means the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock over the 20 consecutive Trading Day period (the “Settlement
Period”) beginning on, and including, the 22nd Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the Mandatory Conversion Date.

“Average Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(c).

“Average VWAP” means the average of the VWAPs for each Trading Day in the relevant period.

“Board of Directors” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on which commercial banks in New York City are authorized or
required by law or executive order to close.

“By-laws” means the Amended and Restated By-laws of the Corporation, as they may be amended or restated from time to time.

“Certificate of Designations” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.

“Clause I Distribution” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(a)(iv).

“Clause II Distribution” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(a)(iv).

“Clause IV Distribution” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(a)(iv).

“Common Stock” means the common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Corporation.

“Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent” means Computershare Inc., the Corporation’s duly appointed conversion and dividend disbursing
agent for the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, and any successor appointed under Section 15.

“Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).

“Corporation” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.
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“Current Market Price” per share of Common Stock (or, in the case of Section 13(a)(iv), per share of Common Stock, capital stock or equity
interests, as applicable) on any date means for the purposes of determining an adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates:

(i) for purposes of any adjustment pursuant to Section 13(a)(ii), Section 13(a)(iv) (but only in the event of an adjustment thereunder not
relating to a Spin-Off), or Section 13(a)(v), the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock over the five consecutive Trading Day period ending on the
Trading Day immediately preceding the Ex-Date with respect to the issuance or distribution requiring such computation;

(ii) for purposes of any adjustment pursuant to Section 13(a)(iv) relating to a Spin-Off, the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock,
capital stock or equity interests of the subsidiary or other business unit being distributed, as applicable, over the first 10 consecutive Trading Days
commencing on and including the fifth Trading Day immediately following the effective date of such distribution; and

(iii) for purposes of any adjustment pursuant to Section 13(a)(vi), the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock over the 10 consecutive
Trading Day period commencing on, and including, the Trading Day next succeeding the Expiration Date of the relevant tender offer or exchange offer.

“Depositary” means DTC or its nominee or any successor appointed by the Corporation.

“Dividend Payment Date” means February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year commencing on February 1, 2014 to and including the
Mandatory Conversion Date.

“Dividend Period” means the period from, and including, a Dividend Payment Date to, but excluding, the next Dividend Payment Date, except that
the initial Dividend Period shall commence on, and include, the Initial Issue Date and shall end on, and exclude, the February 1, 2014 Dividend Payment
Date.

“Dividend Rate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(a).

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Corporation.

“Early Conversion” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(a).

“Early Conversion Additional Conversion Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(b).

“Early Conversion Additional Share Number” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(b).

“Early Conversion Average Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(b).

“Early Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10(b).

“Early Conversion Settlement Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8(b).

“Effective Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(a).

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.

“Exchange Property” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14.

“Ex-Date,” when used with respect to any issuance or distribution, means the first date on which shares of Common Stock trade without the right to
receive such issuance or distribution.

“Expiration Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(a)(vi).

“Fair Market Value” means the fair market value as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee thereof),
whose determination shall be final.
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“Fixed Conversion Rates” means the Maximum Conversion Rate and the Minimum Conversion Rate.

“Floor Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3(e).

A “Fundamental Change” shall be deemed to have occurred, at such time after the Initial Issue Date, upon: (i) the consummation of any transaction
or event (whether by means of an exchange offer, liquidation, tender offer, consolidation, merger, combination, recapitalization or otherwise) in connection
with which 90% or more of the Common Stock is exchanged for, converted into, acquired for or constitutes solely the right to receive, consideration 10% or
more of which is not common stock that is listed on, or immediately after the transaction or event will be listed on, the New York Stock Exchange, the
NASDAQ Global Select Market or the NASDAQ Global Market; (ii) any “person” or “group” (as such terms are used for purposes of Sections 13(d) and
14(d) of the Exchange Act, whether or not applicable), other than the Corporation, any of the Corporation’s majority-owned subsidiaries or any of the
Corporation’s or the Corporation’s majority-owned subsidiaries’ employee benefit plans, becoming the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under
the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the total voting power in the aggregate of all classes of capital stock then outstanding entitled
to vote generally in elections of the Corporation’s directors; or (iii) the Common Stock (or, following a Reorganization Event, including, without limitation,
an Initial REIT Conversion Transaction, any common stock, depositary receipts or other securities representing common equity interests into which the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock becomes convertible in connection with such Reorganization Event) ceases to be listed for trading on the New York
Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Select Market or the NASDAQ Global Market (or any of their respective successors) or another United States national
securities exchange (each, a “Qualifying Market”).

“Fundamental Change Conversion” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(a).

“Fundamental Change Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 10(c).

“Fundamental Change Conversion Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(a).

“Fundamental Change Conversion Rate” means, for any Fundamental Change Conversion, the conversion rate set forth in the table below for the
Effective Date and the Share Price applicable to such Fundamental Change:

 Share Price on Effective Date
Effective Date $15.00 $30.00 $45.00 $60.00 $74.00 $83.00 $92.50 $100.00 $110.00 $120.00 $140.00 $160.00 $180.00 $200.00 $220.00

October 28, 2013 1.3411 1.3385 1.3121 1.2529 1.1917 1.1586 1.1314 1.1153 1.0999 1.0898 1.0793 1.0753 1.0738 1.0733 1.0731
November 1, 2014 1.3446 1.3442 1.3323 1.2825 1.2133 1.1721 1.1378 1.1180 1.1000 1.0892 1.0795 1.0768 1.0760 1.0758 1.0758
November 1, 2015 1.3480 1.3480 1.3464 1.3188 1.2429 1.1862 1.1383 1.1128 1.0933 1.0843 1.0792 1.0785 1.0784 1.0784 1.0784
November 1, 2016 1.3513 1.3513 1.3513 1.3513 1.3513 1.2048 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811 1.0811

If the Share Price falls between two Share Prices set forth in the table above, or if the Effective Date falls between two Effective Dates set forth in
the table above, the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate shall be determined by straight-line interpolation between the Fundamental Change Conversion
Rates set forth for the higher and lower Share Prices and the earlier and later Effective Dates, as applicable, based on a 365-day year.

If the Share Price is in excess of $220.00 per share (subject to adjustment in the same manner as adjustments are made to the Share Price in
accordance with the provisions of Section 13(c)(iv)), then the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate shall be the Minimum Conversion Rate. If the Share
Price is less than $15.00 per share (subject to adjustment in the same manner as adjustments are made to the Share Price in accordance with the provisions of
Section 13(c)(iv)), then the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate shall be the Maximum Conversion Rate.

The Share Prices in the column headings in the table above are subject to adjustment in accordance with the provisions of Section 13(c)(iv). The
Fundamental Change Conversion Rates set forth in the table above are each subject to adjustment in the same manner as each Fixed Conversion Rate as set
forth in Section 13.

“Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(a).

“Fundamental Change Notice” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 9(b).

“Global Preferred Shares” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 22.
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“Holder” means each Person in whose name shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are registered, who shall be treated by the
Corporation and the Registrar as the absolute owner of those shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for the purpose of making payment and
settling conversions and for all other purposes.

“Initial Issue Date” means October 28, 2013, the first original issue date of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

“Initial Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b)(ii).

“Initial REIT Conversion Transaction” means any transaction or series of transactions (whether by share exchange, reclassification, merger,
consolidation or similar means) pursuant to which the Corporation (or any successor entity) adopts, includes or otherwise implements REIT-related
Ownership Provisions in its Charter (or in the successor entity's certificate of incorporation or other equivalent governing document).

“Junior Stock” means (i) the Common Stock and (ii) each other class or series of capital stock of the Corporation established after the Initial Issue
Date, the terms of which do not expressly provide that such class or series ranks senior to or on parity with the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to
dividend rights and distribution rights upon the Corporation’s liquidation, winding-up or dissolution.

“Liquidation Dividend Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).

“Liquidation Preference” means, as to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, $100 per share.

“Mandatory Conversion” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(a).

“Mandatory Conversion Additional Conversion Amount” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(c).

“Mandatory Conversion Date” means November 1, 2016.

“Mandatory Conversion Rate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).

“Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning set forth in Part 1 of this Certificate of Designations.

“Maximum Conversion Rate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b)(iii).

“Minimum Conversion Rate” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b)(i).

“Nonpayment” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b)(i).

“Nonpayment Remedy” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b)(iii).

“Officer” means the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President,
any Vice President, the Treasurer or the Secretary of the Corporation.

“Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate of the Corporation, signed by any duly authorized Officer of the Corporation.

“Qualifying Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(c).

“Parity Stock” means each class or series of capital stock of the Corporation established after the Initial Issue Date, the terms of which expressly
provide that such class or series shall rank on parity with the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and distribution rights upon the
Corporation’s liquidation, winding-up or dissolution.

“Person” means any individual, partnership, firm, corporation, limited liability company, business trust, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated
association, joint venture, governmental authority or other entity of whatever nature.
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“Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.

“Preferred Stock Directors” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b)(i).

“Pricing Committee” shall have the meaning set forth in the recitals.

“Record Date” means, with respect to any Dividend Payment Date, the January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15 immediately preceding the
applicable February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 Dividend Payment Date, respectively. These Record Dates shall apply regardless of whether a
particular Record Date is a Business Day.

“Record Holder” means, with respect to any Dividend Payment Date, a Holder of record of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as such
Holder appears on the stock register of the Corporation at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the related Record Date.

“Registrar” initially means Computershare Inc., the Corporation’s duly appointed registrar for the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and any
successor appointed under Section 15.

“REIT” means a real estate investment trust under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“REIT-related Ownership Provisions” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(c).

“Reorganization Event” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14.

“Scheduled Trading Day” means any day that is scheduled to be a Trading Day.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations thereunder.

“Senior Stock” means each class or series of capital stock of the Corporation established after the Initial Issue Date, the terms of which expressly
provide that such class or series shall rank senior to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to dividend rights and distribution rights upon the
Corporation’s liquidation, winding-up or dissolution.

“Share Dilution Amount” means the increase in the number of diluted shares outstanding (determined in accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles, and as measured from the Initial Issue Date) resulting from the grant, vesting or exercise of equity-based compensation to
directors, employees and agents and equitably adjusted for any stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar transaction.

“Share Price” means, for any Fundamental Change, (i) if the holders of Common Stock receive only cash in such Fundamental Change, the amount
of cash paid in such Fundamental Change per share of Common Stock, and (ii) if the holders of Common Stock receive any property other than cash in such
Fundamental Change, the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock over the 10 consecutive Trading Day period ending on, and including, the Trading Day
preceding the Effective Date.

“Shelf Registration Statement” means a shelf registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with the
issuance of or resales of shares of Common Stock issued as payment of a dividend, including dividends paid in connection with a conversion.

“Spin-Off” means a distribution by the Corporation to all holders of Common Stock consisting of capital stock of, or similar equity interests in, or
relating to a subsidiary or other business unit of the Corporation.

“Successor Entity” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(c)(v)(F).

“Threshold Appreciation Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b)(i).

“Trading Day” means a day on which the Common Stock:
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(a) is not suspended from trading, and on which trading in Common Stock is not limited, on any national or regional securities exchange or
association or over-the-counter market during any period or periods aggregating one half-hour or longer; and

(b) has traded at least once on the national or regional securities exchange or association or over-the-counter market that is the primary
market for the trading of Common Stock;

provided that if the Common Stock is not traded on any such exchange, association or market, “Trading Day” means any Business Day.

“Transfer Agent” shall initially mean Computershare Inc., the Corporation’s duly appointed transfer agent for the Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock and any successor appointed under Section 15.

“Trigger Event” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 13(a)(iv).

“Unit of Exchange Property” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 14.

“Voting Preferred Stock” means any series of Preferred Stock, in addition to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, ranking equally with the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock either as to dividends or to the distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up and upon which like
voting rights for the election of directors have been conferred and are exercisable.

“VWAP” per share of Common Stock on any Trading Day means the per share volume-weighted average price as displayed on Bloomberg page
“CCI <Equity> AQR” (or its equivalent successor if such page is not available) in respect of the period from 9:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., New York City time, on
such Trading Day; or, if such price is not available, “VWAP” means the market value per share of Common Stock on such Trading Day as determined, using
a volume-weighted average method, by a nationally recognized independent investment banking firm retained by the Corporation for this purpose.

SECTION 3. Dividends. (a) Rate. Subject to the rights of holders of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation ranking
senior to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, Holders shall be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board of
Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) out of funds of the Corporation legally available for payment, cumulative dividends at the rate per annum of
4.50% on the Liquidation Preference per share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Dividend Rate”) (equivalent to $4.50 per annum per
share), payable in cash, by delivery of shares of Common Stock or by delivery of any combination of cash and shares of Common Stock, as determined by the
Corporation in its sole discretion (subject to the limitations described below). Declared dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
payable quarterly on each Dividend Payment Date at such annual rate, and dividends shall accumulate from the most recent date as to which dividends shall
have been paid or, if no dividends have been paid, from the Initial Issue Date, whether or not in any Dividend Period or Dividend Periods there have been
funds legally available for the payment of such dividends. Declared dividends shall be payable on the relevant Dividend Payment Date to Record Holders on
the immediately preceding Record Date, whether or not the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock held by such Record Holders on such Record
Date are converted after such Record Date and on or prior to the immediately succeeding Dividend Payment Date. If a Dividend Payment Date is not a
Business Day, payment shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day, without any interest or other payment in lieu of interest accruing with respect to
this delay.

The amount of dividends payable on each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for each full Dividend Period (after the initial
Dividend Period) shall be computed by dividing the Dividend Rate by four. Dividends payable on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for any period
other than a full Dividend Period, including the initial Dividend Period, shall be computed based upon the actual number of days elapsed during such period
over a 360-day year (consisting of 12 30-day months). Accumulations of dividends on shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not bear
interest.

No dividend shall be declared or paid upon, or any sum of cash or number of shares of Common Stock set apart for the payment of dividends upon,
any outstanding shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to any Dividend Period unless all dividends for all preceding Dividend Periods
have been declared and paid upon, or a sufficient sum of cash or number of shares of Common Stock have been set apart for the payment of such dividends
upon, all outstanding shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.
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Holders shall not be entitled to any dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, whether payable in cash, securities or other property, in
excess of full cumulative dividends.

Except as described in this Section 3(a), dividends on Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock converted to Common Stock shall cease to accumulate
on the Mandatory Conversion Date, the Fundamental Change Conversion Date or the Early Conversion Date (each, a “Conversion Date”), as applicable.

(b) Priority of Dividends. So long as any share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock remains outstanding, no dividend or
distribution shall be declared or paid on Common Stock or any other class or series of Junior Stock, and no Common Stock or any other Junior Stock shall be
purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired for consideration by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries unless all accumulated and unpaid dividends for all
preceding Dividend Periods have been declared and paid upon, or a sufficient sum of cash or number of shares of Common Stock has been set apart for the
payment of such dividends upon, all outstanding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. The foregoing limitation shall not apply to (i) any
dividend or distribution payable in shares of Common Stock or other Junior Stock; (ii) purchases, redemptions or other acquisitions of Common Stock or
other Junior Stock in connection with the administration of any benefit or other incentive plan, including any employment contract, in the ordinary course of
business (including purchases to offset the Share Dilution Amount pursuant to a publicly announced repurchase plan); provided that any purchases to offset
the Share Dilution Amount shall in no event exceed the Share Dilution Amount; (iii) any dividends or distributions of rights in connection with a
stockholders’ rights plan or any redemption or repurchase of rights pursuant to any stockholders’ rights plan; (iv) purchases of Common Stock or other Junior
Stock pursuant to a contractually binding requirement to buy Common Stock or other Junior Stock existing prior to the preceding Dividend Period, including
under a contractually binding stock repurchase plan; (v) the deemed purchase or acquisition of fractional interests in shares of Common Stock or other Junior
Stock pursuant to the conversion or exchange provisions of such shares or the security being converted or exchanged; or (vi) purchases, redemptions or
acquisitions deemed to occur as a result of an Initial REIT Conversion Transaction.

When dividends on shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (A) have not been declared and paid in full on any Dividend Payment Date
or (B) have been declared but a sum of cash or number of shares of Common Stock sufficient for payment thereof has not been set aside for the benefit of the
Holders thereof on the applicable Record Date, no dividends may be declared or paid on any Parity Stock unless dividends are declared on the shares of
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock such that the respective amounts of such dividends declared on the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
and such Parity Stock shall bear the same ratio to each other as all accumulated dividends and all declared and unpaid dividends per share on the shares of
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and such Parity Stock bear to each other; provided that any unpaid dividends will continue to accumulate.

Subject to the foregoing, and not otherwise, such dividends (payable in cash, securities or other property) as may be determined by the Board of
Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) may be declared and paid on any securities, including Common Stock, from time to time out of any funds
legally available for such payment, and Holders shall not be entitled to participate in any such dividends.

(c) Method of Payment of Dividends. (i) Subject to the limitations described below, any declared dividend (or any portion of any declared
dividend) on the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, whether or not for a current Dividend Period or any prior Dividend Period (including in
connection with the payment of declared and unpaid dividends pursuant to Section 7 and Section 9 hereof), may be paid by the Corporation, as determined in
the Corporation’s sole discretion:

(A) in cash;

(B) by delivery of shares of Common Stock; or

(C) by delivery of any combination of cash and shares of Common Stock.

(ii) Each payment of a declared dividend on the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be made in cash, except to
the extent the Corporation timely elects to make all or any portion of such payment in shares of Common Stock. The Corporation shall give notice to
Holders of any such election and the portions of such payment that will be made in cash and in shares of Common Stock no later than 10 Scheduled
Trading Days prior to the Dividend Payment Date for such dividend, provided that if the Corporation does not provide timely notice of this election,
the Corporation will be deemed to have elected to pay the relevant dividend in cash.
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(iii) If the Corporation elects to make any such payment of a declared dividend, or any portion thereof, in shares of Common Stock,
such shares shall be valued for such purpose, in the case of any dividend payment or portion thereof, at 97% of the Average VWAP per share of
Common Stock over the five consecutive Trading Day period beginning on and including the seventh Scheduled Trading Day prior to the applicable
Dividend Payment Date (the “Average Price”).

(d) No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be delivered by the Corporation to Holders in payment or partial payment of a dividend. A
cash adjustment shall instead be paid by the Corporation to each Holder that would otherwise be entitled to receive a fraction of a share of Common Stock
based on the Average Price with respect to such dividend.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the number of shares of Common Stock to be delivered in connection with any declared
dividend, including any declared dividend payable in connection with a conversion, exceed a number equal to the total dividend payment divided by $25.90,
subject to adjustment as set forth in Section 13(c)(ii) (such dollar amount, as adjusted, the “Floor Price”). To the extent that the amount of any declared
dividend exceeds the product of the number of shares of Common Stock delivered in connection with such declared dividend and 97% of the Average Price,
the Corporation shall, if it is legally able to do so, pay such excess amount in cash.

(f) To the extent that the Corporation, in its reasonable judgment, determines that a Shelf Registration Statement is required in connection
with the issuance of, or for resales of, Common Stock issued as payment of a dividend on the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, including
dividends paid in connection with a conversion, the Corporation shall, to the extent such a Shelf Registration Statement is not currently filed and effective,
use its commercially reasonable efforts to file and maintain the effectiveness of such a Shelf Registration Statement until the earlier of such time as all such
shares of Common Stock have been resold thereunder and such time as all such shares would be freely tradable without registration by holders thereof that are
not “affiliates” of the Corporation for purposes of the Securities Act. To the extent applicable, the Corporation shall also use its commercially reasonable
efforts to have such Common Stock qualified or registered under applicable state securities laws, if required, and approved for listing on the New York Stock
Exchange (or if the Common Stock is not listed on the New York Stock Exchange, on the principal other U.S. national or regional securities exchange on
which the Common Stock is then listed).

SECTION 4. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. (a) In the event of any liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, each Holder shall be entitled to receive the Liquidation Preference per share of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, plus an amount (the “Liquidation Dividend Amount”) equal to accumulated and unpaid dividends on such shares to (but excluding) the
date fixed for liquidation, winding-up or dissolution to be paid out of the assets of the Corporation legally available for distribution to its stockholders, after
satisfaction of liabilities owed to the Corporation’s creditors and holders of shares of any Senior Stock and before any payment or distribution is made to
holders of any Junior Stock, including, without limitation, Common Stock.

(b) If, upon the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of the Corporation, the amounts payable with respect to (1)
the Liquidation Preference plus the Liquidation Dividend Amount on the shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and (2) the liquidation preference
of, and the amount of accumulated and unpaid dividends (to, but excluding, the date fixed for liquidation, winding up or dissolution) on, all Parity Stock are
not paid in full, the Holders and all holders of any such Parity Stock shall share equally and ratably in any distribution of the Corporation’s assets in
proportion to the respective liquidation preferences and amounts equal to the accumulated and unpaid dividends to which they are entitled.

(c) After the payment to any Holder of the full amount of the Liquidation Preference and the Liquidation Dividend Amount for each of such
Holder’s shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, such Holder as such shall have no right or claim to any of the remaining assets of the
Corporation.

(d) Neither the sale of all or substantially all of Corporation’s assets, nor its merger or consolidation into or with any other Person (including,
for the avoidance of doubt, any Initial REIT Conversion Transaction), shall be deemed to be the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, winding-up or
dissolution of the Corporation.

SECTION 5. No Redemption; No Sinking Fund. The Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be subject to any
redemption, sinking fund or other similar provisions.
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SECTION 6. Voting Rights.

(a) General. Holders shall not have any voting rights except as set forth in this Section 6 or as otherwise from time to time specifically
required by Delaware law.

(b) Right to Elect Two Directors Upon Nonpayment. (i) Whenever dividends on any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
(A) have not been declared and paid, or (B) have been declared but a sum of cash or number of shares of Common Stock sufficient for payment thereof has
not been set aside for the benefit of the Holders on the applicable Record Date, for the equivalent of six or more Dividend Periods, whether or not for
consecutive Dividend Periods (a “Nonpayment”), the authorized number of directors of the Board of Directors shall, at the next annual meeting of the
stockholders or at a special meeting of stockholders as provided below, automatically be increased by two and Holders, voting together as a single class with
holders of any and all other series of Voting Preferred Stock then outstanding, shall be entitled at the Corporation’s next annual meeting or at a special
meeting of stockholders to fill such newly created directorships by electing two additional members of the Board of Directors (the “Preferred Stock
Directors”); provided that the election of any such directors will not cause the Corporation to violate the corporate governance requirements of the New York
Stock Exchange (or any other exchange or automated quotation system on which the Corporation’s securities may be listed or quoted) that requires listed or
quoted companies to have a majority of independent directors; and provided further that the Board of Directors shall, at no time, include more than two
Preferred Stock Directors. In the event of a Nonpayment, the holders of record of at least 25% of the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and
any other series of Voting Preferred Stock may request that a special meeting of stockholders be called to elect such Preferred Stock Directors (provided,
however, that if the next annual or a special meeting of stockholders is scheduled to be held within 90 days of the receipt of such request, the election of such
Preferred Stock Directors, to the extent otherwise permitted by the By-laws, shall be included in the agenda for and shall be held at such scheduled annual or
special meeting of stockholders). The Preferred Stock Directors will stand for reelection annually, and at each subsequent annual meeting of the stockholders,
so long as the Holders continue to have such voting rights. At any meeting at which the Holders are entitled to elect Preferred Stock Directors, the holders of
record of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and all other series of Voting Preferred Stock, present in
person or represented by proxy, shall constitute a quorum and the vote of the holders of a majority of such shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock and other Voting Preferred Stock so present or represented by proxy at any such meeting at which there shall be a quorum shall be sufficient to elect the
Preferred Stock Directors. Whether a plurality, majority or other portion in voting power of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and any other Voting
Preferred Stock have been voted in favor of any matter shall be determined by reference to the respective liquidation preference amounts of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock and such other Voting Preferred Stock voted.

(ii) Any request to call a special meeting for the initial election of the Preferred Stock Directors after a Nonpayment shall be made
by written notice, signed by the requisite holders of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or other series of Voting Preferred Stock then
outstanding, and delivered to the Corporation in such manner as provided for in Section 17 below, or as may otherwise be required by law.

(iii) If and when all accumulated and unpaid dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock have been paid in full, or
declared and a sum (which may include shares of Common Stock) sufficient for such payment shall have been set aside (a “Nonpayment
Remedy”), the Holders shall immediately and, without any further action by the Corporation, be divested of the foregoing voting rights, subject to
the revesting of such rights in the event of each subsequent Nonpayment. If such voting rights for the Holders and all other holders of Voting
Preferred Stock shall have terminated, the term of office of each Preferred Stock Director so elected shall terminate at such time and the authorized
number of directors on the Board of Directors shall automatically decrease by two.

(iv) Any Preferred Stock Director may be removed at any time, with cause as provided by law or without cause by the holders of
record of a majority in voting power of the outstanding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and any other series of Voting Preferred
Stock (voting together as a single class), when they have the voting rights described above. In the event that a Nonpayment shall have occurred and
there shall not have been a Nonpayment Remedy, any vacancy in the office of a Preferred Stock Director (other than prior to the initial election of
Preferred Stock Directors after a Nonpayment) may be filled by the written consent of the Preferred Stock Director remaining in office or, if none
remains in office, by a vote of the holders of record of a majority in voting power of the outstanding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock and any other series of Voting Preferred Stock then outstanding (voting together as a single class) when they have the voting rights described
above; provided that the filling of each vacancy
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will not cause the Corporation to violate the corporate governance requirements of the New York Stock Exchange (or any other exchange or
automated quotation system on which the Corporation’s securities may be listed or quoted) that requires listed or quoted companies to have a
majority of independent directors. Any such vote of stockholders to remove, or to fill a vacancy in the office of, a Preferred Stock Director may be
taken only at a special meeting of such stockholders, called as provided above for an initial election of Preferred Stock Directors after a Nonpayment
(provided that such request is received at least 90 days before the date fixed for the next annual or special meeting of stockholders, failing which
such election shall be included in the agenda for and shall be held at the next scheduled annual or special meeting of stockholders). The Preferred
Stock Directors shall each be entitled to one vote per director on any matter that shall come before the Board of Directors for a vote. Each Preferred
Stock Director elected at any special meeting of stockholders or by written consent of the other Preferred Stock Director shall hold office until the
next annual meeting of the stockholders if such office shall not have previously terminated and such Preferred Stock Director shall not have been
removed from such office, in each case as above provided.

(c) Other Voting Rights. So long as any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or
consent of stockholders required by law or by the Charter, the affirmative vote or consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the shares of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock and all other series of Voting Preferred Stock (subject to the last paragraph of this Section 6(c)) at the time outstanding and
entitled to vote thereon, voting together as a single class, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at an annual or special
meeting of such stockholders, shall be necessary for effecting or validating:

(i) Authorization of Senior Stock. Any amendment or alteration of the Charter or this Certificate of Designations so as to authorize
or create, or increase the authorized amount of, any class or series of Senior Stock;

(ii) Amendment of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. Any amendment, alteration or repeal of any provision of the Charter
or this Certificate of Designations so as to adversely affect the special rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock; or

(iii) Share Exchanges, Reclassifications, Mergers and Consolidations. Any consummation of a binding share exchange or
reclassification involving the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, or of a merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into
another entity, unless in each case (x) the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock remain outstanding or, in the case of any such merger
or consolidation with respect to which the Corporation is not the surviving or resulting entity (or the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is
otherwise exchanged or reclassified), are converted or reclassified into or exchanged for preferred stock of the surviving or resulting entity or its
ultimate parent, and (y) such shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that remain outstanding or such shares of preferred stock, as the
case may be, have rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers that, taken as a whole, are not materially less favorable to the holders thereof
than the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, taken as a whole, of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock immediately prior to the
consummation of such transaction (any such preferred stock being referred to herein as “Qualifying Preferred Stock”);

provided, however, that for all purposes of this Section 6(c), (1) any increase in the amount of the Corporation’s authorized but unissued shares of Preferred
Stock, (2) any increase in the amount of the Corporation’s authorized Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or the issuance of any additional shares of the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, (3) the authorization or creation of any class or series of Parity Stock or Junior Stock, any increase in the amount of
authorized but unissued shares of such class or series of Parity Stock or Junior Stock or the issuance of additional shares of such class or series of Parity Stock
or Junior Stock or (4) the adoption or inclusion (by amendment, alteration, share exchange, reclassification, merger, consolidation or similar means) of
Charter provisions (whether in the Charter or a successor entity certificate of incorporation or other equivalent governing document) applicable to capital
stock (including the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or any successor preferred stock) relating to ownership limitations and transfer restrictions that
are customary, in the sole determination of the Board of Directors, for the protection of the Corporation’s or any successor entity's status as a REIT and a
“domestically controlled qualified investment entity” for tax purposes (such charter provisions, the “REIT-related Ownership Provisions”) shall be deemed
not to adversely affect (or to otherwise cause to be materially less favorable) the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, and shall not require the affirmative vote of the Holders.
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If any amendment, alteration, repeal, share exchange, reclassification, merger or consolidation specified in this Section 6(c) would adversely affect
one or more but not all series of Voting Preferred Stock, then only the series of Voting Preferred Stock adversely affected and entitled to vote shall vote as a
class in lieu of all other series of Voting Preferred Stock.

(d) Procedures for Voting and Consents. The rules and procedures for calling and conducting any meeting of the Holders (including, without
limitation, the fixing of a record date in connection therewith), the solicitation and use of proxies at such a meeting, the obtaining of written consents and any
other procedural aspect or matter with regard to such a meeting or such consents shall be governed by any rules the Board of Directors, in its discretion, may
adopt from time to time, which rules and procedures shall conform to the requirements of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the By-
laws, applicable law and the rules of any national securities exchange or other trading facility on which the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is listed or
traded at the time.

SECTION 7. Mandatory Conversion on the Mandatory Conversion Date. (a) Each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock shall automatically convert (unless previously converted at the option of the Holder in accordance with Section 8 or Section 9) on the Mandatory
Conversion Date (“Mandatory Conversion”), into a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Mandatory Conversion Rate.

(b) The “Mandatory Conversion Rate” shall, subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 7(c), be as follows:

(ii) if the Applicable Market Value is greater than $92.50 (the “Threshold Appreciation Price”), then the Mandatory Conversion
Rate shall be equal to 1.0811 shares of Common Stock per share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Minimum Conversion Rate”);

(iii) if the Applicable Market Value is less than or equal to the Threshold Appreciation Price but greater than or equal to $74.00 (the
“Initial Price”), then the Mandatory Conversion Rate per share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be equal to the Liquidation
Preference divided by the Applicable Market Value; or

(iv) if the Applicable Market Value is less than the Initial Price, then the Mandatory Conversion Rate shall be equal to 1.3513
shares of Common Stock per share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Maximum Conversion Rate”).

provided that the Fixed Conversion Rates, the Threshold Appreciation Price, the Initial Price and the Applicable Market Value are each subject to adjustment
in accordance with the provisions of Section 13.

(c) If on or prior to the Mandatory Conversion Date the Corporation has not declared all or any portion of the accumulated dividends on the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, the Mandatory Conversion Rate shall be adjusted so that Holders receive an additional number of shares of Common
Stock equal to the amount of such undeclared, accumulated and unpaid dividends (“Mandatory Conversion Additional Conversion Amount”) divided by
the greater of the Floor Price and 97% of the Average Price. To the extent that the Mandatory Conversion Additional Conversion Amount exceeds the product
of such number of additional shares and 97% of the Average Price, the Corporation shall, if the Corporation is legally able to do so, declare and pay such
excess amount in cash pro rata to the Holders.

(d) If the Corporation declares a dividend for the Dividend Period ending on the Mandatory Conversion Date, the Corporation shall pay such
dividend to the Record Holders as of the immediately preceding Record Date in accordance with Section 3.

SECTION 8. Early Conversion at the Option of the Holder. (a) Other than during a Fundamental Change Conversion Period, the
Holders shall have the right to convert their Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, in whole or in part (but in no event less than one share of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock), at any time prior to the Mandatory Conversion Date (“Early Conversion”), into shares of Common Stock at the Minimum
Conversion Rate, subject to adjustment as described in Section 13 and to satisfaction of the conversion procedures set forth in Section 10.

(b) If, as of any Early Conversion Date, the Corporation has not declared all or any portion of the accumulated and unpaid dividends for all
full Dividend Periods ending on a Dividend Payment Date prior to such Early Conversion Date, the
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Minimum Conversion Rate shall be adjusted, with respect to the relevant Early Conversion, so that the Holders converting their Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock at such time receive an additional number of shares of Common Stock (the “Early Conversion Additional Share Number”) equal to the
amount of undeclared, accumulated and unpaid dividends for such prior Dividend Periods (such amount of undeclared, accumulated and unpaid dividends,
the “Early Conversion Additional Conversion Amount”), divided by the greater of the Floor Price and the Average VWAP per share of the Common Stock
over the 20 consecutive Trading Day period (the “Early Conversion Settlement Period”) commencing on, and including, the 22nd Scheduled Trading Day
immediately preceding the Early Conversion Date (such average being referred to as the “Early Conversion Average Price”). Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in this Certificate of Designations, to the extent that the Early Conversion Additional Conversion Amount exceeds the value of the product of the
Early Conversion Additional Share Number and the Early Conversion Average Price, the Corporation shall not have any obligation to pay the shortfall in
cash. Except as described in the first sentence of this Section 8(b), upon any Early Conversion of any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock,
the Corporation shall make no payment or allowance for unpaid dividends on such shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, unless such Early
Conversion Date occurs after the Record Date for a declared dividend and on or prior to the immediately succeeding Dividend Payment Date, in which case
the Corporation shall pay such dividend on such Dividend Payment Date to the Record Holder of the converted shares of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock as of such Record Date, in accordance with Section 3.

SECTION 9. Fundamental Change Conversion. (a) If a Fundamental Change occurs on or prior to the Mandatory Conversion Date,
the Holders shall have the right to (i) convert their shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, in whole or in part (but in no event less than one
share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock) (any such conversion pursuant to this Section 9(a) being a “Fundamental Change Conversion”) at any
time during the period (the “Fundamental Change Conversion Period”) that begins on the effective date of such Fundamental Change (the “Effective
Date”) and ends at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date that is 20 calendar days after the Effective Date (or, if earlier, the Mandatory Conversion Date)
into a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate per share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock,
(ii) with respect to such converted shares, receive an amount equal to the present value, calculated using a discount rate of 4.50% per annum, of all dividend
payments on such shares (excluding any Accumulated Dividend Amount) for all the remaining Dividend Periods and for the partial Dividend Period from and
including such Effective Date to but excluding the Mandatory Conversion Date (the “Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount”); and
(iii) with respect to such converted shares, receive the Accumulated Dividend Amount, subject in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii) to the Corporation’s right to
deliver shares of Common Stock in lieu of all or part of such amounts as set forth in Section 9(d) below and subject to the limitations with respect to the
number of shares of Common Stock set forth in Section 9(d) below; provided that, notwithstanding clauses (ii) and (iii) above, if such Effective Date falls
during a Dividend Period for which the Corporation has declared a dividend, the Corporation shall pay such dividend on the relevant Dividend Payment Date
to the Record Holders as of such Record Date, in accordance with Section 3, and such dividend shall not be included in the Accumulated Dividend Amount,
and the Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount shall not include the present value of the payment of such dividend. Holders who do not submit
their Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock for conversion during the Fundamental Change Conversion Period shall not be entitled to convert their
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock at the relevant Fundamental Change Conversion Rate or to receive the relevant Fundamental Change Dividend Make-
Whole Amount or the relevant Accumulated Dividend Amount.

(b) On or before the 20th calendar day prior to the anticipated Effective Date or, if such prior notice is not practicable, no later than the
second Business Day immediately following the actual Effective Date, a written notice (the “Fundamental Change Notice”) shall be sent by or on behalf of
the Corporation to the Holders. Such notice shall state:

(ii) the event causing the Fundamental Change;

(iii) the anticipated Effective Date or actual Effective Date, as the case may be;

(iv) that Holders shall have the right to effect a Fundamental Change Conversion in connection with such Fundamental Change
during the Fundamental Change Conversion Period;

(v) the Fundamental Change Conversion Period; and

(vi) the instructions a Holder must follow to effect a Fundamental Change Conversion in connection with such Fundamental
Change.
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If the Corporation notifies Holders of a Fundamental Change later than the 20th calendar day prior to the Effective Date, the Fundamental Change
Conversion Period shall be extended by a number of days equal to the number of days from, and including, the 20th calendar day prior to the Effective Date
to, but excluding, the date of such notice; provided that the Fundamental Change Conversion Period shall not be extended beyond the Mandatory Conversion
Date.

(c) Not later than the second Business Day following the Effective Date (or, if the Corporation provides notice to Holders of the
Fundamental Change prior to the anticipated Effective Date, on the date the Corporation gives Holders notice of the anticipated Effective Date), the
Corporation shall notify Holders of:

(ii) the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate;

(iii) the Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount and whether the Corporation will pay such amount in cash, shares of
Common Stock or a combination thereof, specifying the combination, if applicable; and

(iv) the Accumulated Dividend Amount and whether the Corporation will pay such amount in cash, shares of Common Stock or a
combination thereof, specifying the combination, if applicable.

(d) (i) For any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that are converted during the Fundamental Change Conversion Period, in
addition to the Common Stock issued upon conversion at the Fundamental Change Conversion Rate, the Corporation shall at its option:

(A) pay the Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount in cash, to the extent the Corporation is legally permitted to do
so;

(B) increase the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued on conversion by a number equal to (x) the Fundamental Change
Dividend Make-whole Amount divided by (y) the greater of the Floor Price and 97% of the Share Price; or

(C) pay the Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount through any combination of cash and shares of Common Stock in
accordance with the provisions of clauses (A) and (B) above.

(ii) In addition, to the extent that the Accumulated Dividend Amount exists with respect to any Fundamental Change Conversion,
the converting Holder shall be entitled to receive such Accumulated Dividend Amount upon such Fundamental Change Conversion. The Corporation
shall, at its option, pay the Accumulated Dividend Amount:

(A) in cash, to the extent the Corporation is legally permitted to do so;

(B) in an additional number of shares of Common Stock equal to (x) the Accumulated Dividend Amount divided by (y) the greater
of the Floor Price and 97% of the Share Price; or

(C) in a combination of cash and shares of Common Stock in accordance with the provisions of clauses (A) and (B) above.

(iii) The Corporation shall pay the Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount and the Accumulated Dividend Amount in
cash, except to the extent the Corporation elects on or prior to the second Business Day following the relevant Effective Date to make all or any
portion of such payments in Common Stock. In addition, if the Corporation elects to deliver Common Stock in respect of all or any portion of the
Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount or the Accumulated Dividend Amount, to the extent that the Fundamental Change Dividend
Make-whole Amount or the Accumulated Dividend Amount or the dollar amount of any portion thereof paid in Common Stock exceeds the product
of the number of additional shares the Corporation delivers in respect thereof and 97% of the Share Price, the Corporation shall, if it is legally able to
do so, pay such excess amount in cash.

(iv) No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be delivered by the Corporation to converting Holders in respect of the
Fundamental Change Dividend Make-whole Amount or the Accumulated Dividend
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Amount. A cash adjustment shall instead be paid by the Corporation to each converting Holder that would otherwise be entitled to receive a fraction
of a share of Common Stock based on the Average VWAP per share of Common Stock over the five consecutive Trading Day period ending on, and
including, the seventh Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the relevant Conversion Date.

SECTION 10. Conversion Procedures. (a) Pursuant to Section 7, on the Mandatory Conversion Date, any outstanding shares of the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall automatically convert into shares of Common Stock. The Person or Persons entitled to receive the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon mandatory conversion of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be treated as the record holder(s) of such shares of
Common Stock as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the Mandatory Conversion Date. Except as provided under Section 13(c)(iii), prior to 5:00 p.m., New
York City time, on the Mandatory Conversion Date, the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be
outstanding for any purpose and Holders shall have no rights with respect to such Common Stock, including voting rights, rights to respond to tender offers
and rights to receive any dividends or other distributions on the Common Stock, by virtue of holding the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. A certificate
representing the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be issued and delivered to the converting Holder or, if the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock being converted is in book-entry form, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be delivered to the converting Holder
through book-entry transfer through the facilities of the Depositary, in each case together with delivery by the Corporation to the converting Holder of any
cash to which the converting Holder is entitled, on the later of (i) the third Business Day immediately succeeding the Mandatory Conversion Date and (ii) the
third Business Day immediately succeeding the last day of the Settlement Period.

(b) To effect an Early Conversion pursuant to Section 8, a Holder who

(ii) holds a beneficial ownership interest in a Global Preferred Share must deliver to DTC the appropriate instruction form for
conversion pursuant to DTC’s conversion program and, if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes or duties, if any; or

(iii) holds shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in definitive, certificated form must:

(A) complete and manually sign the conversion notice on the back of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate or a
facsimile of such conversion notice;

(B) deliver the completed conversion notice and the certificated shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock to be
converted to the Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent;

(C) if required, furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents; and

(D) if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes or duties, if any.

The Early Conversion shall be effective on the date on which a Holder has satisfied the foregoing requirements, to the extent applicable (“Early
Conversion Date”). A Holder shall not be required to pay any transfer or similar taxes or duties relating to the issuance or delivery of Common Stock if such
Holder exercises its conversion rights, but such Holder shall be required to pay any transfer or similar tax or duty that may be payable relating to any transfer
involved in the issuance or delivery of Common Stock in a name other than the name of such Holder. A certificate representing the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion shall be issued and delivered to the converting Holder or, if the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock being converted is in book-
entry form, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be delivered to the converting Holder through book-entry transfer through the
facilities of the Depositary, in each case together with delivery by the Corporation to the converting Holder of any cash to which the converting Holder is
entitled, on the latest of (i) the third Business Day immediately succeeding the Early Conversion Date, (ii) the third Business Day immediately succeeding the
last day of the Early Conversion Settlement Period, and (iii) the Business Day after the Holder has paid in full all applicable taxes and duties, if any.

The Person or Persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon Early Conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record
holder(s) of such shares of Common Stock as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the applicable Early Conversion Date. Except as set forth in Section 13(c)
(iii), prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time on such applicable
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Early Conversion Date, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be
deemed to be outstanding for any purpose, and Holders shall have no rights with respect to such shares of Common Stock, including voting rights, rights to
respond to tender offers for the Common Stock and rights to receive any dividends or other distributions on the Common Stock, by virtue of holding shares of
the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

In the event that an Early Conversion is effected with respect to shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock representing less than all the
shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock held by a Holder, upon such Early Conversion the Corporation shall execute and instruct the Registrar
and Transfer Agent to countersign and deliver to the Holder thereof, at the expense of the Corporation, a certificate evidencing the shares of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock as to which Early Conversion was not effected, or, if the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is held in book-entry form, the
Corporation shall cause the Transfer Agent and Registrar to reduce the number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock represented by the
global certificate by making a notation on Schedule I attached to the global certificate or otherwise notate such reduction in the register maintained by such
Transfer Agent and Registrar.

(c) To effect a Fundamental Change Conversion pursuant to Section 9, a Holder who

(ii) holds a beneficial ownership interest in a Global Preferred Share must deliver to DTC the appropriate instruction form for
conversion pursuant to DTC’s conversion program and, if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes or duties, if any; or

(iii) holds shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in definitive, certificated form must:

(A) complete and manually sign the conversion notice on the back of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate or a
facsimile of such conversion notice;

(B) deliver the completed conversion notice and the certificated shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock to be
converted to the Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent;

(C) if required, furnish appropriate endorsements and transfer documents; and

(D) if required, pay all transfer or similar taxes or duties, if any.

The Fundamental Change Conversion shall be effective on the date on which a Holder has satisfied the foregoing requirements, to the extent
applicable (the “Fundamental Change Conversion Date”). A Holder shall not be required to pay any transfer or similar taxes or duties relating to the
issuance or delivery of Common Stock if such Holder exercises its conversion rights, but such Holder shall be required to pay any transfer or similar tax or
duty that may be payable relating to any transfer involved in the issuance or delivery of Common Stock in a name other than the name of such Holder. A
certificate representing the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be issued and delivered to the converting Holder or, if the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock being converted is in book-entry form, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be delivered to the converting
Holder through book-entry transfer through the facilities of the Depositary, in each case together with delivery by the Corporation to the converting Holder of
any cash to which the converting Holder is entitled, on the later of (i) the third Business Day immediately succeeding the Fundamental Change Conversion
Date and (ii) the Business Day after the Holder has paid in full all applicable taxes and duties, if any.

The Person or Persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such Fundamental Change Conversion shall be treated for all
purposes as the record holder(s) of such shares of Common Stock as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the applicable Fundamental Change Conversion
Date. Except as set forth in Section 13(c)(iii), prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time on such applicable Fundamental Change Conversion Date, the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be outstanding for any purpose, and Holders
shall have no rights with respect to the Common Stock, including voting rights, rights to respond to tender offers for the Common Stock and rights to receive
any dividends or other distributions on the Common Stock, by virtue of holding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

In the event that a Fundamental Change Conversion is effected with respect to shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock representing less
than all the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock held by a Holder, upon such
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Fundamental Change Conversion the Corporation shall execute and instruct the Registrar and Transfer Agent to countersign and deliver to the Holder thereof,
at the expense of the Corporation, a certificate evidencing the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as to which Fundamental Change
Conversion was not effected, or, if the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is held in book-entry form, the Corporation shall cause the Transfer Agent and
Registrar to reduce the number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock represented by the global certificate by making a notation on Schedule
I attached to the global certificate or otherwise notate such reduction in the register maintained by such Transfer Agent and Registrar.

(d) In the event that a Holder shall not by written notice designate the name in which shares of Common Stock to be issued upon conversion
of such Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock should be registered or, if applicable, the address to which the certificate or certificates representing such
shares of Common Stock should be sent, the Corporation shall be entitled to register such shares, and make such payment, in the name of the Holder as shown
on the records of the Corporation and, if applicable, to send the certificate or certificates representing such shares of Common Stock to the address of such
Holder shown on the records of the Corporation.

(e) Shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall cease to be outstanding on the applicable Conversion Date, subject to the right
of Holders of such shares to receive shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and
other amounts and shares of Common Stock, if any, to which they are entitled pursuant to Sections 7, 8 or 9, as applicable and, if the applicable Conversion
Date occurs after the Record Date for a declared dividend and prior to the immediately succeeding Dividend Payment Date, subject to the right of the Record
Holders of such shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred on such Record Date to receive payment of such declared dividend on such Dividend Payment
Date pursuant to Section 3.

SECTION 11. Reservation of Common Stock. (a) The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized
and unissued Common Stock, solely for issuance upon the conversion of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as herein provided, free from
any preemptive or other similar rights, a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the product of the Maximum Conversion Rate then in effect and the
number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding. For purposes of this Section 11(a), the number of shares of Common Stock
that shall be deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be computed as if at the time of
computation all such outstanding shares were held by a single Holder.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation shall be entitled to deliver upon conversion of shares of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, as herein provided, shares of Common Stock reacquired and held in the treasury of the Corporation (in lieu of the issuance of authorized and
unissued shares of Common Stock), so long as any such treasury shares are free and clear of all liens, charges, security interests or encumbrances (other than
liens, charges, security interests and other encumbrances created by the Holders).

(c) All shares of Common Stock delivered upon conversion of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be duly authorized, validly
issued, fully paid and non-assessable, free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests and other encumbrances (other than liens, charges, security interests
and other encumbrances created by the Holders).

(d) Prior to the delivery of any securities that the Corporation shall be obligated to deliver upon conversion of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, the Corporation shall use commercially reasonable efforts to comply with all federal and state laws and regulations thereunder requiring the
registration of such securities with, or any approval of or consent to the delivery thereof by, any governmental authority.

(e) The Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that, if at any time the Common Stock shall be listed on the New York Stock Exchange or
any other national securities exchange or automated quotation system, the Corporation shall, if permitted by the rules of such exchange or automated
quotation system, list and keep listed, so long as the Common Stock shall be so listed on such exchange or automated quotation system, all Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of, or issuable in respect of the payment of dividends, the Accumulated Dividend Amount or the Fundamental Change Dividend
Make-whole Amount on, the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock; provided, however, that if the rules of such exchange or automated quotation system
permit the Corporation to defer the listing of such Common Stock until the first conversion of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock into Common
Stock in accordance with the provisions hereof, the Corporation covenants to list such Common Stock issuable upon the first conversion of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock in accordance with the requirements of such exchange or automated quotation system at such time.
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SECTION 12. Fractional Shares. (a) No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued to Holders as a result of any
conversion of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.

(b) In lieu of any fractional shares of Common Stock otherwise issuable in respect of any mandatory conversion pursuant to Section 7 or a
conversion at the option of the Holder pursuant to Section 8 or Section 9, the Corporation shall pay an amount in cash (computed to the nearest cent) equal to
the product of (i) that same fraction and (ii) the Average VWAP of the Common Stock over the five consecutive Trading Day period beginning on, and
including, the seventh Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the Mandatory Conversion Date, Early Conversion Date or Fundamental Change
Conversion Date, as applicable.

(c) If more than one share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is surrendered for conversion at one time by or for the same Holder,
the number of full shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion thereof shall be computed on the basis of the aggregate number of shares of the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock so surrendered.

SECTION 13. Anti-Dilution Adjustments to the Fixed Conversion Rates. (a) Each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be subject to the
following adjustments:

(ii) Stock Dividends and Distributions. If the Corporation issues shares of Common Stock to all holders of Common Stock as a
dividend or other distribution, each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for determination of the
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such dividend or other distribution shall be divided by a fraction:

(A) the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date
fixed for such determination; and

(B) the denominator of which is the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time,
on the date fixed for such determination and the total number of shares of Common Stock constituting such dividend or other distribution.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (i) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for such
determination. If any dividend or distribution described in this clause (i) is declared but not so paid or made, each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be
readjusted, effective as of the date the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) publicly announces its decision not to pay or make
such dividend or distribution, to such Fixed Conversion Rate that would be in effect if such dividend or distribution had not been declared. For the
purposes of this clause (i), the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for such
determination shall not include shares held in treasury by the Corporation but shall include any shares issuable in respect of any scrip certificates
issued in lieu of fractions of shares of Common Stock. The Corporation shall not pay any dividend or make any distribution on shares of Common
Stock held in treasury by the Corporation.

(iii) Issuance of Stock Purchase Rights. If the Corporation issues to all holders of Common Stock rights or warrants (other than
rights or warrants issued pursuant to a dividend reinvestment plan or share purchase plan or other similar plans) entitling such holders, for a period of
up to 45 calendar days from the date of issuance of such rights or warrants, to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock at a price per share
less than the Current Market Price, each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for determination of the
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such rights or warrants shall be increased by multiplying such Fixed Conversion Rate by a fraction:

(A) the numerator of which is the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on
the date fixed for such determination and the number of shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to such rights or warrants; and

(B) the denominator of which is the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time,
on the date fixed for such determination and the number of shares of Common Stock equal to the quotient of the aggregate offering price
payable to exercise such rights or warrants divided by the Current Market Price.
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Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (ii) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for such
determination. In the event that such rights or warrants described in this clause (ii) are not so issued, each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be readjusted,
effective as of the date the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) publicly announces its decision not to issue such rights or
warrants, to such Fixed Conversion Rate that would then be in effect if such issuance had not been declared. To the extent that such rights or
warrants are not exercised prior to their expiration or shares of Common Stock are otherwise not delivered pursuant to such rights or warrants upon
the exercise of such rights or warrants, each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be readjusted to such Fixed Conversion Rate that would then be in effect
had the adjustment made upon the issuance of such rights or warrants been made on the basis of the delivery of only the number of shares of
Common Stock actually delivered. In determining whether any rights or warrants entitle the holders thereof to subscribe for or purchase shares of
Common Stock at less than the Current Market Price, and in determining the aggregate offering price payable to exercise such rights or warrants,
there shall be taken into account any consideration received for such rights or warrants and the value of such consideration (if other than cash, to be
determined in good faith by the Board of Directors or an authorized committee thereof, which determination shall be final). For the purposes of this
clause (ii), the number of shares of Common Stock at the time outstanding shall not include shares held in treasury by the Corporation but shall
include any shares issuable in respect of any scrip certificates issued in lieu of fractions of shares of Common Stock. The Corporation shall not issue
any such rights or warrants in respect of shares of Common Stock held in treasury by the Corporation.

(iv) Subdivisions and Combinations of the Common Stock. If outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be subdivided into a
greater number of shares of Common Stock or combined into a lesser number of shares of Common Stock, each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at
5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the effective date of such subdivision or combination shall be multiplied by a fraction:

(A) the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock that would be outstanding immediately after, and solely as a
result of, such subdivision or combination; and

(B) the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such subdivision or
combination.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (iii) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the effective date of
such subdivision or combination.

(v) Debt or Asset Distribution. (A) If the Corporation distributes to all holders of Common Stock evidences of its indebtedness,
shares of capital stock, securities, rights to acquire shares of the Corporation’s capital stock, cash or other assets (excluding (1) any dividend or
distribution covered by Section 13(a)(i), (2) any rights or warrants covered by Section 13(a)(ii), (3) any dividend or distribution covered by Section
13(a)(v) and (4) any Spin-Off to which the provisions set forth in Section 13(a)(iv)(B) apply), each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m.,
New York City time, on the date fixed for the determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution shall be multiplied by
a fraction:

(1) the numerator of which is the Current Market Price; and

(2) the denominator of which is the Current Market Price minus the Fair Market Value, on such date fixed for
determination, of the portion of the evidences of indebtedness, shares of capital stock, securities, rights to acquire the Corporation’s capital
stock, cash or other assets so distributed applicable to one share of Common Stock.

(B) In the case of a Spin-Off, each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for the
determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution shall be multiplied by a fraction:

(1) the numerator of which is the sum of the Current Market Price of the Common Stock and the Fair Market Value of the
portion of those shares of capital stock or similar equity interests so distributed that is applicable to one share of Common Stock as of
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the 15th Trading Day after the effective date for such distribution (or, if such shares of capital stock or equity interests are listed on a U.S.
national or regional securities exchange, the Current Market Price of such securities); and

(2) the denominator of which is the Current Market Price of the Common Stock.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (iv) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for the
determination of the holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution. In the event that such distribution described in this clause (iv) is
not so made, each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be readjusted, effective as of the date the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee thereof)
publicly announces its decision not to make such distribution, to such Fixed Conversion Rate that would then be in effect if such distribution had not
been declared. If an adjustment to each Fixed Conversion Rate is required under this clause (iv) during any Settlement Period or Early Conversion
Settlement Period in respect of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that have been tendered for conversion, delivery of the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion shall be delayed to the extent necessary in order to complete the calculations provided for in this clause
(iv).

For purposes of this clause (iv) (and subject in all respect to clause (ii)), rights, options or warrants distributed by the Corporation to all
holders of its Common Stock entitling them to subscribe for or purchase shares of the Corporation’s capital stock, including Common Stock (either
initially or under certain circumstances), which rights, options or warrants, until the occurrence of a specified event or events (“Trigger Event”): (i)
are deemed to be transferred with such shares of the Common Stock; (ii) are not exercisable; and (iii) are also issued in respect of future issuances of
the Common Stock, shall be deemed not to have been distributed for purposes of this clause (iv) (and no adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates
under this clause (iv) shall be required) until the occurrence of the earliest Trigger Event, whereupon such rights, options or warrants shall be
deemed to have been distributed and an appropriate adjustment (if any is required) to the Fixed Conversion Rates shall be made under this clause
(iv). If any such right, option or warrant, including any such existing rights, options or warrants distributed prior to the Initial Issue Date, are subject
to events, upon the occurrence of which such rights, options or warrants become exercisable to purchase different securities, evidences of
indebtedness or other assets, then the date of the occurrence of any and each such event shall be deemed to be the date of distribution and the date
fixed for the determination of the holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such distribution with respect to new rights, options or warrants with
such rights (in which case the existing rights, options or warrants shall be deemed to terminate and expire on such date without exercise by any of the
holders thereof). In addition, in the event of any distribution (or deemed distribution) of rights, options or warrants, or any Trigger Event or other
event (of the type described in the immediately preceding sentence) with respect thereto that was counted for purposes of calculating a distribution
amount for which an adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates under this clause (iv) was made, (1) in the case of any such rights, options or
warrants that shall all have been redeemed or purchased without exercise by any holders thereof, upon such final redemption or purchase (x) the
Fixed Conversion Rates shall be readjusted as if such rights, options or warrants had not been issued and (y) the Fixed Conversion Rates shall then
again be readjusted to give effect to such distribution, deemed distribution or Trigger Event, as the case may be, as though it were a cash distribution,
equal to the per share redemption or purchase price received by a holder or holders of Common Stock with respect to such rights, options or warrants
(assuming such holder had retained such rights, options or warrants), made to all holders of Common Stock as of the date of such redemption or
purchase, and (2) in the case of such rights, options or warrants that shall have expired or been terminated without exercise by any holders thereof,
the Fixed Conversion Rates shall be readjusted as if such rights, options and warrants had not been issued.

For purposes of clause (i), clause (ii) and this clause (iv), if any dividend or distribution to which this clause (iv) is applicable includes one
or both of:

(C) a dividend or distribution of shares of Common Stock to which clause (i) is applicable (the “Clause I Distribution”); or

(D) an issuance of rights or warrants to which clause (ii) is applicable (the “Clause II Distribution”),
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then (1) such dividend or distribution, other than the Clause I Distribution, if any, and the Clause II Distribution, if any, shall be deemed to be a
dividend or distribution to which this clause (iv) is applicable (the “Clause IV Distribution”) and any Fixed Conversion Rate adjustment required
by this clause (iv) with respect to such Clause IV Distribution shall then be made, and (2) the Clause I Distribution, if any, and Clause II
Distribution, if any, shall be deemed to immediately follow the Clause IV Distribution and any Fixed Conversion Rate adjustment required by clause
(i) and clause (ii) with respect thereto shall then be made, except that, if determined by the Corporation (I) the date fixed for determination of the
holders of Common Stock entitled to receive any Clause I Distribution or Clause II Distribution shall be deemed to be the date fixed for the
determination of holders of Common Stock entitled to receive the Clause IV Distribution and (II) any shares of Common Stock included in any
Clause I Distribution or Clause II Distribution shall be deemed not to be “outstanding at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for such
determination” within the meaning of clauses (i) and (ii).

(vi) Cash Distributions. If the Corporation pays or makes a dividend or other distribution consisting exclusively of cash to all
holders of Common Stock (excluding (1) any cash that is distributed in a Reorganization Event to which Section 14 applies, (2) any dividend or
other distribution in connection with the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation and (3) any consideration
payable as part of a tender or exchange offer by the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation covered by Section 13(a)(vi)), each Fixed
Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for determination of the holders of Common Stock entitled to receive
such dividend or other distribution shall be multiplied by a fraction:

(1) the numerator of which is the Current Market Price, and

(2) the denominator of which is the Current Market Price minus the amount per share of Common Stock of such dividend
or other distribution.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (v) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date fixed for the
determination of the holders of Common Stock entitled to receive such dividend or other distribution. In the event that any dividend or other
distribution described in this clause (v) is not so paid or made, each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be readjusted, effective as of the date the Board of
Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) publicly announces its decision not to pay such dividend or make such other distribution, to such
Fixed Conversion Rate which would then be in effect if such dividend or other distribution had not been declared.

(vii) Self Tender Offers and Exchange Offers. If the Corporation or any subsidiary of the Corporation successfully completes a
tender or exchange offer pursuant to a Schedule TO or registration statement on Form S-4 for Common Stock (excluding any securities convertible
or exchangeable for Common Stock), where the cash and the value of any other consideration included in the payment per share of Common Stock
exceeds the Current Market Price, each Fixed Conversion Rate in effect at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the date of expiration of the tender or
exchange offer (the “Expiration Date”) shall be multiplied by a fraction:

(A) the numerator of which shall be equal to the sum of:

(1) the aggregate cash and Fair Market Value on the Expiration Date of any other consideration paid or payable for shares
of Common Stock purchased in such tender or exchange offer; and

(2) the product of (x) the Current Market Price and (y) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the time
such tender or exchange offer expires, less any purchased shares; and

(B) the denominator of which shall be equal to the product of:

(1) the Current Market Price; and
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(2) the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding at the time such tender or exchange offer expires, including any
purchased shares.

Any adjustment made pursuant to this clause (vi) shall become effective immediately after 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the 10th Trading Day
immediately following the Expiration Date but will be given effect as of the open of business on the Expiration Date. In the event that the
Corporation or one of its subsidiaries is obligated to purchase shares of Common Stock pursuant to any such tender offer or exchange offer, but the
Corporation or such subsidiary is permanently prevented by applicable law from effecting any such purchases, or all such purchases are rescinded,
then each Fixed Conversation Rate shall be readjusted to be such Fixed Conversion Rate that would then be in effect if such tender offer or exchange
offer had not been made. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, if the application of this clause (vi) to any tender offer or exchange offer
would result in a decrease in each Fixed Conversation Rate, no adjustment shall be made for such tender offer or exchange offer under this clause
(vi). If an adjustment to each Fixed Conversion Rate is required pursuant to this clause (vi) during any Settlement Period or Early Conversion
Settlement Period in respect of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock that have been tendered for conversion, delivery of the related
conversion consideration shall be delayed to the extent necessary in order to complete the calculations provided for in this clause (vi).

(viii) Fair Market Value in Excess of Current Market Price. Except with respect to a Spin-Off, in cases where the Fair Market Value
of the evidences of the Corporation’s indebtedness, shares of capital stock, securities, rights to acquire the Corporation’s capital stock, cash or other
assets as to which Section 13(a)(iv) or Section 13(a)(v) apply, applicable to one share of Common Stock, distributed to holders of Common Stock
equals or exceeds the Current Market Price (as determined for purposes of calculating the conversion rate adjustment pursuant to such Section 13(a)
(iv) or Section 13(a)(v)), rather than being entitled to an adjustment in each Fixed Conversion Rate, Holders shall be entitled to receive upon
conversion, in addition to a number of shares of Common Stock otherwise deliverable on the applicable Conversion Date, the kind and amount of the
evidences of the Corporation’s indebtedness, shares of the Corporation’s capital stock, securities, rights to acquire the Corporation’s capital stock,
cash or other assets comprising the distribution that such Holder would have received if such Holder had owned, immediately prior to the record date
for determining the holders of Common Stock entitled to receive the distribution, for each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, a
number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Maximum Conversion Rate in effect on the date of such distribution.

(ix) Rights Plans. To the extent that the Corporation has a rights plan in effect with respect to the Common Stock on any
Conversion Date, upon conversion of any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, converting Holders shall receive, in addition to the
Common Stock, the rights under such rights plan, unless, prior to such Conversion Date, the rights have separated from the Common Stock, in which
case each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be adjusted at the time of separation of such rights as if the Corporation made a distribution to all holders of
the Common Stock as described in Section 13(a)(iv), subject to readjustment in the event of the expiration, termination or redemption of such rights.
Any distribution of rights or warrants pursuant to a rights plan that would allow Holders to receive upon conversion, in addition to any shares of
Common Stock, the rights described therein (unless such rights or warrants have separated from Common Stock) shall not constitute a distribution of
rights or warrants that would entitle Holders to an adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates.

(b) Adjustment for Tax Reasons. The Corporation may make such increases in each Fixed Conversion Rate, in addition to any other increases
required by this Section 13, as the Corporation deems advisable to avoid or diminish any income tax to holders of the Common Stock resulting from any
dividend or distribution of shares of Common Stock (or issuance of rights or warrants to acquire shares of Common Stock) or from any event treated as such
for income tax purposes or for any other reason; provided that the same proportionate adjustment must be made to each Fixed Conversion Rate.

(c) Calculation of Adjustments; Adjustments to Threshold Appreciation Price, Initial Price and Share Price. (i) All adjustments to each
Fixed Conversion Rate shall be calculated to the nearest 1/10,000th of a share of Common Stock. Prior to the Mandatory Conversion Date, no adjustment in a
Fixed Conversion Rate shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least one percent therein. If any adjustment by
reason of this Section 13(c)(i) is not required to be made, such adjustment shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent adjustment;
provided, however, that on the earlier of the Mandatory Conversion Date, an Early Conversion Date and the Effective Date, adjustments
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to each Fixed Conversion Rate shall be made with respect to any such adjustment carried forward that has not been taken into account before such date.

(ii) If an adjustment is made to the Fixed Conversion Rates pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 13(b), (x) an inversely proportional
adjustment shall also be made to the Threshold Appreciation Price and the Initial Price solely for purposes of determining which of clauses (i), (ii)
and (iii) of Section 7(b) shall apply on the Mandatory Conversion Date and (y) an inversely proportional adjustment will also be made to the Floor
Price. Such adjustment shall be made by dividing each of the Threshold Appreciation Price and the Initial Price by a fraction, the numerator of which
shall be either Fixed Conversion Rate immediately after such adjustment pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 13(b) and the denominator of which shall be
such Fixed Conversion Rate immediately before such adjustment. Whenever any provision of this Certificate of Designations requires the
Corporation to calculate the VWAP per share of the Common Stock over a span of multiple days, the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee
thereof) shall make appropriate adjustments (including, without limitation, to the Applicable Market Value, the Early Conversion Average Price, the
Current Market Price and the Average Price (as the case may be)) to account for any adjustments, pursuant to Section 13(a) or 13(b), to the Initial
Price, the Threshold Appreciation Price, the Floor Price and the Fixed Conversion Rates (as the case may be) that become effective, or any event that
would require such an adjustment if the Ex-Date, effective date or Expiration Date (as the case may be) of such event occurs, during the relevant
period used to calculate such prices or values (as the case may be).

(iii) If:

(A) the record date for a dividend or distribution on shares of the Common Stock occurs after the end of the 20 consecutive Trading
Day period used for calculating the Applicable Market Value and before the Mandatory Conversion Date; and

(B) such dividend or distribution would have resulted in an adjustment of the number of shares of Common Stock issuable to the
Holders had such record date occurred on or before the last Trading Day of such 20-trading day period,

then the Corporation shall deem the Holders to be holders of record, for each share of their Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, of a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to the Mandatory Conversion Rate for purposes of that dividend or distribution.

(iv) If an adjustment is made to the Fixed Conversion Rates pursuant to Sections 13(a) or 13(b), a proportional adjustment shall be
made to each Share Price column heading set forth in the table included in the definition of “Fundamental Change Conversion Rate” as of the day on
which the Fixed Conversion Rates are so adjusted. Such adjustment shall be made by multiplying each Share Price included in such table, applicable
immediately prior to such adjustment, by a fraction, the numerator of which is the Minimum Conversion Rate immediately prior to the adjustment
giving rise to such Share Price adjustment, and the denominator of which is the Minimum Conversion Rate as so adjusted.

(v) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates shall be made if Holders may
participate, at the same time, upon the same terms and otherwise on the same basis as holders of Common Stock and solely as a result of holding
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, in the transaction that would otherwise give rise to an adjustment as if they held, for each share of the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the Maximum Conversion Rate then in effect. The
Corporation shall notify Holders, in the event they may so participate, at the same time it notifies holders of Common Stock of their participation in
such transaction. In addition, the Fixed Conversion Rates shall not be adjusted:

(A) upon the issuance of any shares of Common Stock pursuant to any present or future plan providing for the reinvestment of
dividends or interest payable on the Corporation’s securities and the investment of additional optional amounts in shares of Common Stock
under any plan;
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(B) upon the issuance of any shares of Common Stock or rights or warrants to purchase those shares pursuant to any present or
future benefit or other incentive plan or program of or assumed by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries;

(C) upon the issuance of any shares of Common Stock pursuant to any option, warrant, right or exercisable, exchangeable or
convertible security outstanding as of the Initial Issue Date;

(D) for a change in the par value of the Common Stock;

(E) for accumulated dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, except as provided under Sections 7, 8 and 9; or

(F) as a result of an Initial REIT Conversion Transaction which constitutes a Reorganization Event and in which (x) all shares of
Common Stock are converted or reclassified into or exchanged for, in each case, on a one-for-one basis, shares of common stock of the
successor entity to the Corporation (the “Successor Entity”) which is listed on a Qualifying Market, and each share of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock either remains outstanding and becomes convertible into shares of such common stock or is converted or
reclassified into or exchanged for, in each case, on a one-for-one basis, Qualifying Preferred Stock of the Successor Entity which is convertible
into shares of such common stock of the Successor Entity and (y) no issuance of rights or warrants and no other dividend or other distribution is
made to holders of Common Stock except as set forth in clause (x).

(d) Notice of Adjustment. Whenever the Fixed Conversion Rates and the Fundamental Change Conversion Rates set forth in the table in the
definition of “Fundamental Change Conversion Rate” are to be adjusted, the Corporation shall:

(ii) compute such adjusted Fixed Conversion Rates and Fundamental Change Conversion Rates and prepare and transmit to the
Transfer Agent an Officer’s Certificate setting forth such adjusted Fixed Conversion Rates and Fundamental Change Conversion Rates, the method
of calculation thereof in reasonable detail and the facts requiring such adjustment and upon which such adjustment is based;

(iii) within 10 Business Days following the occurrence of an event that requires an adjustment to the Fixed Conversion Rates and
the Fundamental Change Conversion Rates, provide, or cause to be provided, a written notice to the Holders of the occurrence of such adjustment;
and

(iv) as soon as practicable following the determination of such adjusted Fixed Conversion Rates and Fundamental Change
Conversion Rates provide, or cause to be provided, to the Holders a statement setting forth in reasonable detail the method by which the adjustments
to the Fixed Conversion Rates and Fundamental Change Conversion Rates were determined and setting forth such adjusted Fixed Conversion Rates
and Fundamental Change Conversion Rates.

SECTION 14. Recapitalizations, Reclassifications and Changes of Common Stock. In the event of:

(ii) any consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into another Person (other than a merger or consolidation in which the
Corporation is the surviving corporation and in which the Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to the merger or consolidation is not
exchanged for cash, securities or other property of the Corporation or another Person);

(iii) any sale, transfer, lease or conveyance to another Person of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the Corporation;

(iv) any reclassification of Common Stock into securities including securities other than Common Stock; or

(v) any statutory exchange of securities of the Corporation with another Person (other than in connection with a merger or
acquisition),
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in each case, as a result of which the Common Stock would be converted into, or exchanged for, securities, cash or property (each, a “Reorganization
Event”), each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock outstanding immediately prior to such Reorganization Event shall, without the consent of
the Holders, become convertible into the kind of securities, cash and other property that such Holder would have been entitled to receive if such Holder had
converted its Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock into Common Stock immediately prior to such Reorganization Event (such securities, cash and other
property, the “Exchange Property,” with each “Unit of Exchange Property” meaning the kind and amount of such Exchange Property that a holder of one
share of Common Stock is entitled to receive). For purposes of the foregoing, the type and amount of Exchange Property in the case of any Reorganization
Event that causes the Common Stock to be converted into the right to receive more than a single type of consideration (determined based in part upon any
form of stockholder election) shall be deemed to be the weighted average of the types and amounts of consideration received by the holders of Common
Stock that affirmatively make such an election (or of all holders of Common Stock if none makes an election). The Corporation shall notify Holders of the
weighted average as soon as practicable after such determination is made. The number of Units of Exchange Property for each share of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock converted following the effective date of such Reorganization Event shall be determined as if references in Section 7, Section 8
and Section 9 to shares of Common Stock were to Units of Exchange Property (without any interest thereon and without any right to dividends or
distributions thereon which have a record date that is prior to such Conversion Date, except as provided in Section 13(c)(iii)). For the purpose of determining
which of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of Section 7(b) shall apply upon Mandatory Conversion, and for the purpose of calculating the Mandatory Conversion Rate
if clause (ii) of Section 7(b) is applicable, the value of a Unit of Exchange Property shall be determined in good faith by the Board of Directors or an
authorized committee thereof (which determination will be final), except that if a Unit of Exchange Property includes common stock or American Depositary
Receipts (“ADRs”) that are traded on a U.S. national securities exchange, the value of such common stock or ADRs shall be the average over the 20
consecutive Trading Day period beginning on, and including, the 22nd Scheduled Trading Day immediately preceding the Mandatory Conversion Date of the
volume weighted average prices for such common stock or ADRs, as displayed on the applicable Bloomberg screen (as determined in good faith by the Board
of Directors or an authorized committee thereof (which determination will be final)); or, if such price is not available, the average market value per share of
such common stock or ADRs over such period as determined, using a volume-weighted average method, by a nationally recognized independent investment
banking firm retained by the Corporation for this purpose.

The above provisions of this Section 14 shall similarly apply to successive Reorganization Events and the provisions of Section 13 shall apply to any
shares of capital stock or ADRs of the Corporation (or any successor thereto) received by the holders of Common Stock in any such Reorganization Event.

The Corporation (or any successor thereto) shall, as soon as reasonably practicable (but in any event within 20 calendar days) after the occurrence of
any Reorganization Event, provide written notice to the Holders of such occurrence and of the kind and amount of the cash, securities or other property that
constitute the Exchange Property. Failure to deliver such notice shall not affect the operation of this Section 14.

SECTION 15. Transfer Agent, Registrar, and Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent. The duly appointed Transfer Agent,
Registrar and Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent for the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be Computershare Inc. The Corporation may,
in its sole discretion, remove the Transfer Agent, Registrar or Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent in accordance with the agreement between the
Corporation and the Transfer Agent, Registrar or Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent, as the case may be; provided that if the Corporation removes
Computershare Inc., the Corporation shall appoint a successor transfer agent, registrar or conversion and dividend disbursing agent, as the case may be, who
shall accept such appointment prior to the effectiveness of such removal. Upon any such removal or appointment, the Corporation shall send notice thereof by
first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the Holders.

SECTION 16. Record Holders. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the Corporation and the Transfer Agent may deem
and treat the Holder of any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock as the true and lawful owner thereof for all purposes.

SECTION 17. Notices. All notices or communications in respect of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be sufficiently
given if given in writing and delivered in person or by first class mail, postage prepaid, or if given in such other manner as may be permitted in this Certificate
of Designations, in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or the By-laws and by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the shares
of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are represented by Global Preferred Shares, such notices may also be given to the Holders in any manner
permitted by DTC or any similar facility used for the settlement of transactions in the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock.
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SECTION 18. No Preemptive Rights. The Holders shall have no preemptive or preferential rights to purchase or subscribe for any
stock, obligations, warrants or other securities of the Corporation of any class.

SECTION 19. Other Rights. The shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not have any rights, preferences,
privileges or voting powers or relative, participating, optional or other special rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as set forth
herein or in the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or as provided by applicable law.

SECTION 20. Stock Certificates.

(a) Shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall initially be represented by stock certificates substantially in the form set forth
as Exhibit A hereto.

(b) Stock certificates representing shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be signed by two authorized Officers of the
Corporation, in accordance with the By-laws and applicable Delaware law, by manual or facsimile signature.

(c) A stock certificate representing shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be valid until manually countersigned by
an authorized signatory of the Transfer Agent and Registrar. Each stock certificate representing shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
dated the date of its countersignature.

(d) If any Officer of the Corporation who has signed a stock certificate no longer holds that office at the time the Transfer Agent and
Registrar countersigns the stock certificate, the stock certificate shall be valid nonetheless.

SECTION 21. Replacement Certificates.

(a) If physical certificates are issued, and any of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificates shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or
destroyed, the Corporation shall, at the expense of the Holder, issue, in exchange and in substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock certificate, or in lieu of and substitution for the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate lost, stolen or destroyed, a new
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate of like tenor and representing an equivalent Liquidation Preference of shares of the Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, but only upon receipt of evidence of such loss, theft or destruction of such Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock certificate and indemnity,
if requested, reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation and the Transfer Agent.

(b) The Corporation is not required to issue any certificate representing the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock on or after the
Mandatory Conversion Date. In lieu of the delivery of a replacement certificate following the Mandatory Conversion Date, the Transfer Agent, upon delivery
of the evidence and indemnity described above, shall deliver the shares of Common Stock issuable and any cash deliverable pursuant to the terms of the
Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock formerly evidenced by the certificate.

SECTION 22. Book Entry Form.

(a) The Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be issued in global form (“Global Preferred Shares”) eligible for book-entry
settlement with the Depositary, represented by one or more stock certificates in global form registered in the name of the Depositary or a nominee of the
Depositary bearing the form of global securities legend set forth in Exhibit A. The aggregate number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
represented by each stock certificate representing Global Preferred Shares may from time to time be increased or decreased by a notation by the Registrar and
Transfer Agent on Schedule I attached to the stock certificate.

(b) Members of, or participants in, the Depositary (“Agent Members”) shall have no rights under this Certificate of Designations, with
respect to any Global Preferred Shares, and the Depositary shall be treated by the Corporation, the Registrar and any agent of the Corporation or the Registrar
as the absolute owner of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent the Corporation, the
Registrar or any agent of the Corporation or the Registrar from giving effect to any written certification, proxy or other authorization furnished by the
Depositary or impair, as between the Depositary and its Agent Members, the operation of customary practices of the Depositary governing the exercise of the
rights of a holder of a beneficial ownership interest in any shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. The Holders may grant proxies or otherwise
authorize any Person to take any action that a Holder is entitled to
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take pursuant to the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, this Certificate of Designations or the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

(c) Transfers of a Global Preferred Share shall be limited to transfers of such Global Preferred Share in whole, but not in part, to nominees of
the Depositary or to a successor of the Depositary or such successor’s nominee.

(d) If DTC is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as Depositary for the Global Preferred Shares or DTC ceases to be registered as a
“clearing agency” under the Exchange Act, and in either case a successor Depositary is not appointed by the Corporation within 90 days, the Corporation
shall issue certificated shares in exchange for the Global Preferred Shares. In any such case, the Global Preferred Shares shall be exchanged in whole for
definitive stock certificates, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, representing an equal aggregate Liquidation Preference. Such definitive
stock certificates shall be registered in the name or names of the Person or Persons specified by DTC in a written instrument to the Registrar.

SECTION 23. Miscellaneous. (a) The Corporation shall pay any and all stock transfer and documentary stamp taxes that may be
payable in respect of any issuance or delivery of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock or shares of Common Stock or other securities issued
on account of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock pursuant hereto or certificates representing such shares or securities. The Corporation shall not,
however, be required to pay any such tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance or delivery of shares of Common Stock or
other securities in a name other than that in which the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to which such shares or other
securities are issued or delivered were registered, and shall not be required to make any such issuance or delivery unless and until the Person otherwise
entitled to such issuance or delivery has paid to the Corporation the amount of any such tax or has established, to the satisfaction of the Corporation, that such
tax has been paid or is not payable.

(b) The Liquidation Preference and the Dividend Rate each shall be subject to equitable adjustment whenever there shall occur a stock split,
combination, reclassification or other similar event involving the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. Such adjustments shall be determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors (or an authorized committee thereof) and submitted by the Board of Directors (or such authorized committee thereof) to the
Transfer Agent.
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Exhibit A

[FORM OF FACE OF MANDATORY CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, SERIES A

CERTIFICATE]

[INCLUDE FOR GLOBAL PREFERRED SHARES]

UNLESS THIS CERTIFICATE IS PRESENTED BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY, A
NEW YORK CORPORATION (“DTC”), TO THE CORPORATION OR THE TRANSFER AGENT NAMED ON THE FACE OF THIS CERTIFICATE,
AND ANY CERTIFICATE ISSUED IS REGISTERED IN THE NAME OF CEDE & CO. OR IN SUCH OTHER NAME AS IS REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC (AND ANY PAYMENT IS MADE TO CEDE & CO., OR TO SUCH OTHER ENTITY AS IS REQUESTED
BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR
TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL IN AS MUCH AS THE REGISTERED OWNER HEREOF, CEDE & CO. HAS AN INTEREST HEREIN.
TRANSFERS OF THIS GLOBAL SECURITY SHALL BE LIMITED TO TRANSFERS IN WHOLE, BUT NOT IN PART, TO NOMINEES OF DTC OR
TO A SUCCESSOR THEREOF OR SUCH SUCCESSOR’S NOMINEE.

THE CORPORATION SHALL FURNISH A FULL STATEMENT ABOUT CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS ON OWNERSHIP AND
TRANSFERABILITY TO A STOCKHOLDER UPON REQUEST AND WITHOUT CHARGE.
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Certificate Number [________] [Initial] Number of Shares of Mandatory

Convertible Preferred Stock [_____]

CUSIP 228227500

ISIN US2282275005

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A

(par value $0.01 per share)

(Liquidation Preference as specified below)

Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”), hereby certifies that [_______] (the “Holder”), is the registered
owner of [_______] [the number shown on Schedule I hereto of] fully paid and non-assessable shares of the Corporation’s designated 4.50% Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, with a par value of $0.01 per share and a Liquidation Preference of $100.00 per share (the “Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock”). The shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock are transferable on the books and records of the Registrar, in person or by a duly
authorized attorney, upon surrender of this certificate duly endorsed and in proper form for transfer. The designations, rights, privileges, restrictions,
preferences and other terms and provisions of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock represented hereby are and shall in all respects be subject to the
provisions of the Certificate of Designations of 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A of Crown Castle International Corp. dated October
28, 2013 as the same may be amended from time to time (the “Certificate of Designations”). Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the
meaning given them in the Certificate of Designations. The Corporation will provide a copy of the Certificate of Designations to the Holder without charge
upon written request to the Corporation at its principal place of business.

Reference is hereby made to the provisions of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock set forth on the reverse hereof and in the Certificate of
Designations, which provisions shall for all purposes have the same effect as if set forth at this place.

Upon receipt of this executed certificate, the Holder is bound by the Certificate of Designations and is entitled to the benefits thereunder.

Unless the Transfer Agent and Registrar have properly countersigned, these shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be
entitled to any benefit under the Certificate of Designations or be valid or obligatory for any purpose.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this certificate has been executed on behalf of the Corporation by two Officers of the Corporation this [___] of [_______]
[____].

CROWN CASTLE INTERNATIONAL CORP.

By:                        

Name:
Title:

By:                        

Name:
Title:
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COUNTERSIGNATURE

These are shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock referred to in the within-mentioned Certificate of Designations.

Dated: [_______], [____]

Computershare Inc., as Registrar and Transfer Agent

By:                        

Name:
Title:
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[FORM OF REVERSE OF CERTIFICATE FOR MANDATORY

CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK]

Cumulative dividends on each share of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be payable at the applicable rate provided in the Certificate
of Designations.

The shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock shall be convertible in the manner and accordance with the terms set forth in the Certificate
of Designations.

The Corporation shall furnish without charge to each Holder who so requests the powers, designations, preferences and relative, participating,
optional or other special rights of each class or series of stock of the Corporation and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions of such preferences and/or
rights.
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NOTICE OF CONVERSION

(To be Executed by the Holder

in order to Convert the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock)

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to convert (the “Conversion”) 4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A (the “Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock”), of Crown Castle International Corp. (hereinafter called the “Corporation”), represented by stock certificate No(s). [______]
(the “Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock Certificates”), into common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Corporation (the “Common Stock”)
according to the conditions of the Certificate of Designations of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Certificate of Designations”), as of the
date written below. If Common Stock is to be issued in the name of a Person other than the undersigned, the undersigned shall pay all transfer taxes payable
with respect thereto, if any. Each Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate (or evidence of loss, theft or destruction thereof) is attached hereto.

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in or pursuant to the Certificate of Designations.

Date of Conversion:   

Applicable Conversion Rate:   

Shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock to be Converted:   

Shares of Common Stock to be Issued:*       

Signature:   

Name:   

Address:**        

Fax No.:   

   

* The Corporation is not required to issue Common Stock until the original Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate(s) (or evidence of loss,
theft or destruction thereof) to be converted are received by the Corporation or the Conversion and Dividend Disbursing Agent. 

** Address where Common Stock and any other payments or certificates shall be sent by the Corporation.*
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ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned assigns and transfers the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock evidenced hereby to:

 

 

(Insert assignee’s social security or taxpayer identification number, if any)
 

 

(Insert address and zip code of assignee)
 

and irrevocably appoints:
 

 

as agent to transfer the shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock evidenced hereby on the books of the Transfer Agent. The agent may
substitute another to act for him or her.
Date:
Signature:  
(Sign exactly as your name appears on the other side of this Certificate)
Signature Guarantee:  

(Signature must be guaranteed by an “eligible guarantor institution” that is a bank, stockbroker, savings and loan association or credit union meeting
the requirements of the Transfer Agent, which requirements include membership or participation in the Securities Transfer Agents Medallion Program
(“STAMP”) or such other “signature guarantee program” as may be determined by the Transfer Agent in addition to, or in substitution for, STAMP, all in
accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.)

Schedule I 1 

Crown Castle International Corp.

Global Preferred Share

4.50% Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A

1.    Attach Schedule I only to Global Preferred Shares.
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Certificate Number:

The number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock initially represented by this Global Preferred Share shall be [________]. Thereafter the
Transfer Agent and Registrar shall note changes in the number of shares of the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock evidenced by this Global Preferred
Share in the table set forth below:

Amount of Decrease in Number of
Shares Represented by this Global
Preferred Share

Amount of Increase in Number of
Shares Represented by this Global
Preferred Share

Number of Shares Represented by
this Global Preferred Share
following Decrease or Increase

Signature of Authorized Officer of
Transfer Agent and Registrar
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification
For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2013

I, W. Benjamin Moreland, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date:  November 8, 2013

 /s/ W. Benjamin Moreland  

 
W. Benjamin Moreland
President and Chief Executive Officer  



Exhibit 31.2

Certification
For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2013

I, Jay A. Brown, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp. (“registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date:  November 8, 2013

 /s/ Jay A. Brown  

 

Jay A. Brown
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer  



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Crown Castle International Corp., a Delaware Corporation (“Company”), for the period ending
September 30, 2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (“Report”), each of the undersigned officers of the Company
hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of such officer's
knowledge:

1) the Report complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company as of September 30, 2013 (the last date of the period covered by the Report).

 /s/ W. Benjamin Moreland  

 
W. Benjamin Moreland
President and Chief Executive Officer  

 November 8, 2013  
   
 /s/ Jay A. Brown  

 

Jay A. Brown
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer  

 November 8, 2013  

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to Crown Castle International
Corp. and will be retained by Crown Castle International Corp. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


